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Grosvenor is a privately-owned property
group, active in some of the world’s most
dynamic cities.

Our future success is tied to sustainable
growth of the cities in which we have a
presence. We have a vested interest in the
future shape of the urban landscape and
aim to help create and manage attractive
and vibrant cities in which people choose
to live and work.
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Ownership

Grosvenor remains privately owned The Shareholders — the Trustees of the Grosvenor Estate —
hold the shares and assets "In trust’ for the benefit of current and futere members of the Grosvenor
family The famuly 1s headed by the 6th Duke of Westminster, who i1s Chairman of the Trustees

Further information on the Grosvenar family 1s available at www grosvenorestate com

2000

Corporate structure

In Apnl 2000, Grosvenor adopted a corporate structure as a Group with regional businesses and
published its first full Annual Report and Accounts Our international fund management business
was formahsed in 2005 On 1 January 2012, in a further evolution of our corporate structure with the
maturing of the Group, we brought all our indirect investiments in property together, creating the
present tripartite structure Today, we have 18 offices in 10 countries and assets in a total of 17
countries

Further information on Grosvenor s available ai www grosvenor com

1950s

International expansion

During the second half of the 20th century, Grosvenor began to apply its estate management skills
of investment, development and asset management elsewhere in the UK The business expanded,
successively, into the Americas (from the 1950s), Austraha {from the 1960s), Asia Pacific {from the
early 1990s) and continental Europe (later that decade) Many projects were undertaken in
partnership with other investors, leading Grosvenor gradually mto fund management

1820s

Belgrawvia, London

‘Belgravia’, which lies south west of Mayfair, was originally part of the ‘Five Fields’ - open land
between Hyde Park and the Thames The end of the Napoleonic Wars and the conversion of nearby
Buckingham House 1nto a palace for George IV prompted the Grosvenors to develop it In the 1820s,
the family's surveyor, together with master builder Thomas Cubutt, oversaw the creation of an
elegant estate in the classic Regency style of squares, streets and crescents overlooking private
gardens The vast majority of Cubitt’s work survives and almost the whole of Belgravia 1s included in
a statutory Conservation Area, now encompassing housing, commercial and institutional
headquarters, retaif and, on the periphery, modern offices

1720s

Mayfair, London

‘Mayfair', the northern part of this land, took its name from the fair held here in May untit well into
the 19th century in 1720, the family began developing the land inte a fashionable residential area,
centred on Grosvenor Square The area’s character continued to evolve through subsequent
redevelopment n the 19th century, shops and, later, embassies and diplomatic residences moved
in, during the 20th century, it saw the westerly rigration of office users from the war-damaged Oty
of London Today, almost the whole of Mayfair, which now contamns a cosmopolitan mix

of commeraial and residential property, 15 included in a statutory Conservation Area

16777

The family and the land

The Grosvenor family history stretches back almost a thousand years, to the time of william the
Conqueror However, the onigins of the property business ie in the land in London which ¢ame into
the family in 1677 with the marriage of Mary Davies and Sir Thomas Grosvenor — 500 acres of
swamp, pasture and orchards to the west of the City, of which 300 acres remain with the famuly
today as Grosvenor's London estate
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Back cover flap

Front cover

3-10 Grosvenor Crescent Belgravia London
England this is a development of 15 luxury
apartments across a Grade [1* Listed terrace
between Belgrave Square and Hyde Park
Corner (see page 27)

Back cover

Bank ¢f Queensland Centre Brisbane Australia
through Grosvenor Fund Management we plan to
expand our investment partnerships in Austrabia
where our proprietary portfolio includes this well
known office building which 15 100% occupied and
achieved a 4 5 star NABERS Energy Ratng in 2011




Grosvenor Annual Report 2011 www grosvenors com

02 Grosvenor Group Limited

Group structure

Why has the Group structure changed?

As of 1 January 2011, we modified the Group’s
structure to reflect more accurately our current
areas of activity.
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Trustees of the Grosvenor Estate (Shareholders)

Grosvenor s privately owned The Shareholders are the Trustees of the Grosvenor Estate who hotd the shares and assets 'in trust’
for the benefit of current and future members of the Grosvenor family

There are six Trustees the Chairman (the éth Duke of Westminster), the Executive Trustee and four other Trusiees

I

Grosvenor Group Limited

The Company established by The Grosvenor Trusts as the holding vehicle for the Grosvenar Estate’s urban real estate interests

The Non-Executive Directors on the Group Board include the Executive Trustee and two other Trustees

I

Proprietary assets —
direct

Direct investment 1n real estate, through
the proprietary capital we allocate to our
regional Operating Companies

The Non-Executive Directors on the
Operating Company Boards include the
Group Chief Executive and the Group
Finance Director

Operating Compantes
Grosvenor Britain & Ireland
Grosvenor Americas
Grosvenor Asia Pacific

Proprietary assets —
indirect

Indirect investment in real estate,
through the proprnietary capital
we allocate to co-Investments In
Grosvenor-managed funds and
to other indirect investments

These investment opportunities are the
responsibility of the Holding Company

Investment areas

Investments managed by Grosvenor
Fund Management

Investments in other companies
and investments managed by

third parties

Fund
management

Our fund management Operating
Company, Grosvenor Fund
Management manages capital
through various investment vehicles
on behalf of a number of nvestors,
of which Grosvenor 15 one

The Non-Executive Directors on the
Grosvenor Fund Management Board
nclude the Group Chief Executive
and the Group Finance Director

Areas of activity
UK

usA

Continental Europe
Asia Pacific
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Financial highlights

See Glossary on back cover flap for definitions

Group

Shareholders’ funds Revenue profit Total returns
(including currency movement)

£2,855m £80.8m 9.0%

2010 £2.64%5M 2010 £64.2m 2010-10.9%

‘Why we measure Why we measure Wiy we measyre

To report the total value of the shareholders. imvestment
m the Grotp

Comment
Sharehokders funds have recovered to the level prios
10 the global fimancial cnys

To wentfy underiying performance exduding market
movements

Comment

Revenue pront has sncreased s each of our proprietary
Operating Compames and rs beosted by a strong
perfarmance in Sonae Sierra

To show haw our praper by portfolio has performed
ncluging botk income and capual returs

pespite challenging market conditions we have
delnered Strong 1otal returns

By Operating Company
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Grosvenor Group Limited

Operational highlights

See Glossary on back cover flap for definitions

The environment hughlights are taken from the Grosvenor
Environment Review 2011 which can be downloaded

from www grosvenar com
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Group

To momter the scale of the portfolic of property assets
that the Group s management teams are responsible for

Comment
A combination of asset purchases and valuation growth
has boosted assets under management to £12 5hn

Toquantitythe Group § financial investment N Preperty asse.s

Comment
Net acquisitians and revalualion growth have increased total
property assels by 7%

Assets under management Property assets Development exposure
£12.5bn £5,840m 15.7%

2010 £10 5bn 2014 £5,460m 2010 13 8%

why we measure Why we measore ‘Why we measure

1o indicate the level of development activity expressed
a5 a proportion of total property Commilments

Comment
we are gradually increasing our development activity
to take advantage of new opportunifies

Despute challengmg lettng markets, our occupancy levels
CORGRYE (O (158

we have reduced carbon across the directly managed
portioho through increased energy efticency

Occupancy Like-for-like carbon emissions Water consumption

(tco,e} Uke-tor Iike portfolio (m)
95.0% 23,570tC0,e  500,657m
2010-93.5% 2010- 25,809 1C0,¢ 2010- 542, 444m!
Why we measure Why we measure Why we measure
To help us mcrease revenue profit Maxmising occupancy To momtor pur carbon footprng S0 we can kentify ways To 255055 0ur waler Consumplon 50 we £an dentify ways
inour butldings 5 a key driver 10 IMpFOvE Our emaronmental performance (0 uPprove our emarcnmental performance
Comment Comment Commer

We redued waler COnSUMPLon across our decty-managed
portic! 0 (NOUEh Measures s as usig Iow-How sanitary
ware and improving conservaton m landscaped afeas.
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Chairman’s statement

Lesley Knox
Group Chairman

“an effecuve Board Is valuable
to Grosvenor, providing
independent views of business
opportunities and nisks, 1nsights
into our markets and challenges
to our strategies

The economic and financial climate was again
tough in 2011, but Grosvenor has kept its sights
firmly fixed on the long term and has performed
well. The financial highlights reveal a further
increase in Shareholders’ funds and in revenue
profit, and our second year of strongly positive
returns after the two-year dip of 2008-2009.

We also saw improvements in our main
measures of operational efficiency.

Our continuing financial resilience 1n the

face of uncertainty, as we move into the fifth
year following the global finanaal crisis, reflects
the determination and patience with which

our executive team pursues Grosvenor’s ambition
— to develop and co-ordinate a successful
internationally diversified property group

with a prudent approach to financing growth.
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Chairman’s statement

Our Sharehotders require a tevel of return consistent
with relevant benchmarks, an assessment of acceptable
risk and attention to social responsibility The strategies
employed by the Group — and set out in this Report —
are designed to meet these objectives and have proved,
both over the cycle and 1n 2011, to have done so

Diversification

The prinapal route to achieving required returns 15

by diversifying our expasure to property We do thisn
relation to geography and sector, and also by investing
both directly and indirectly Last year we changed our

structure to reflect eur three types of activity

First, we invest directly in property, via proprietary
Operating Companies Secondly, we invest indirectly

via Investments in property funds, in property companies
and in other ventures Thirdly, our property fund
management Operating Company manages capital

for clients (Including Grosvenor)

Mark Preston’s report highlights the progress made on

the key elements of the Group’s long-term strategy capital
planming. value creation for ourselves and for our clients,
sustaining our London estate, investing in people, and
deploying our cities expertise | am particularly pleased
with the attention given to environmental sustainability,
which 1s in keeping with the Trustees’ commitment to
social responsibility

07

The Board’s contribution

An effective Board 1s valuable to Grosvenor, providing
independent views on business opportunities and
risks, msights into our markets and challenges to our
strategies Its value was evident when we held our
September meeting in Beying and Shanghay, following
meetings and site wisits exploring the continuing
transformation of China’s urban fabric

Three of our Non-Executive Directors are also Trustees

of the Grosvenor Estate One of these, Robin Broadhurst,
retired from the Board in December after 11 years of wise
counsel, Induding a six year period as the Chairman of our
Remuneration Committee His successor, Michael McLintock,
joined the Board m March 2012, having been appointed

as a Trustee in 2008

Of our four other independent Non-Executive Directors,
Owen Thomas joined us n January 2012, bringing expertise
in real estate and financial services in the US and Asia

My thanks go to all cur Non-Executive Directors, in our
Operating Companies as well as on the Group Board, and
to the members of the Group Executive Committee who
run the business operations on which Grosvenor’s
reputation and success depends

Lesley Knox
Group Chairman
15 March 2012
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Chief Executive’s review

Mark Preston
Group Chief Executive

“The benesits of diversefication
have continued to serve us well
in 2011, as they have since we
first ventured abroad in 19537

For Grosvenor, the last several years have
been a time of transition which has involved
navigating the global financial crisis and
reshaping the Group to position ourselves
for the very different world which lies ahead.

Drawing on our experience of past property
cycles, we survived the severe 2008-2009
recession 1n the property market with, briefly,
only mildly negative returns; a strong balance
sheet; and significant financial capacity,
which we are deploying judiciously in future
developments and investments.
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Chief Executive’s review

Besides reacting to the turbulent external environment,
we have been preparing for the future The decade running
up to the global finantial crisis was an exceptional pertod
for property returns We expect the coming decade to be
much less hospitable In this new environment, specialist
property skills will be at a premium and we have
restructured Grosvenor to ensure that we can take
maximum advantage of the opportunities

This has involved big changes under the ‘Fast Forward’
programme at our largest propnetary Qperating Company,
Grosvenor Britam & ireland, to increase efficiency and our
abiity to add value to this core business We have increased
the amount of capital and resources we allocate to Asia

to reflect its growing role in the world economy We have
reorgamised our continental European and Australian
operations to shift the focus from proprietary to fund
management activity Finally, we have overhauled Grosvenor
Fund Management, the business devoted to creating value
for external investars, by bringing in new management
and setting ourselves ambitious new targets for growth

Qur 2011 results already show the benefit of some of

these changes and the increase in our revenue profit s
partrcularly satisfying There are still many uncertainties
ahead and we retain a conservative approach to financial
headroom, but we have nevertheless reinvested tn building
up a development pipeline suited to emerging trends

Wwe have also launched four new investment vehicles to
match our investors’ changing requirements All this has
been done with delivery of sustained returns firmly in mind,
as you would expect from a group which invests in and
manages urban property assets for the long term

We do not expect 2012 to be the year in which everything
becomes clear In too many markets, current property prices
reflect the security and tncome characteristics of property

09

as an asset class, rather than the underlying economic
fundamentals of those markets — so buying opporturities
remamn scarce and discipline and patience will continue

to be required

Performance

Our key financial metrics, identified in the highlights on
page 4 are as follows Shareholders’ funds, which have
increased to £2,855m (2010 £2,649m), revenue profit
which has improved to £80 8m (2010 £64 2m), and
total returns of 9 0%, against 10 9% in 2010

We consider these to be strong figures Assets under
management have increased by 15% to £12 5bn
(2010 £109bn) The figures reflect the success of our
Operating Companies, not least in respect of another
key operational metric, occupancy rates, which have
risen again to 959% across the Group's portfolio

Also significant 1s our year end development exposure
ratio, as a result of seeking out opportunibies to contribute
to the ‘Living cities’ of the future At 157% (2010 13 8%)
this promises the creauon of significant value in due
course We continue to invest to ensure we have a pipeline
of development projects at the night time i the property
cycle, while retaining sufficient financial capacity to satisty
our overall caution

Strategy

The Group operates and invests in three different business
areas, allocating capital to each in accordance with our
‘BIg SIxX” strategic priorities (see pages 12 and 13) to achieve
the diversification and potential for returns desired by our
Sharehotders and the opportuniies sought by our investor
partners and our staff The table below details this capizal
allocation and how we are achieving our ambitton of
international diversification

Property assets Assets under management

tm % £m %
Proprietary assets — direct
Britain & Ireland 2283 391 4,184 335
Americas 745 127 1,248 10.0
Asia Pacific 385 66 628 5.0
Proprietary assets — indirect 2,422 415 1,441 15
Fund management 5 o1 5,007 400
Total 5840 1000 12,508 100.0
Commeycial 1,603 274 3,543 283
Retail 2584 443 5,412 433
Residential 1,653 283 3,553 28.4
Total 5840 1000 12,508 1000
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First, our direct proprietary exposure This accounts for
the largest proportion of our capital and 1s carried out by
three regional Operating Companses — Grosvenor Britain
& Ireland, Grosvenor Amenicas and Grosvenor Asia Pacific
Using the skills and experience of Grosvenor people in

18 offices, these compantes invest directly in investment
and development property

Second, our mdirect proprietary exposure This invoives
entrusting our capital to other management teams whom
we rate highly in those sectors and geographies not
covered by our direct exposure

Third, managing cagital in our fund management business
on behalf of investors who select Grosvenor Fund
Management for the strategies and expertise It offers

The structure of this Annual Report reflects these three
business areas under the ‘Grosvenor” brand The Group
Executive Commuttee has an important role in ensuring the
connection between Group strategic priorities (the *Big Si1x')
and Operating Company strategies, and for overseeing
operattonal issues which require co-ordination (Research
projects provide good examples, such as that on the
resthence of urban planning models, now underway with
the London School of Economics, and that on energy in
the built environment with Cambridge University, which
concluded in 2011 )

In order to communicate better our progress against
our performance objectives, this document makes
explicit reference to what we said we would do in 2011
and what we did do in each section We have adopted
a stmilar approach in our second Environment Review,
which records the significant progress we have made
on environmental performance as a result of our self-
imposed reporting regime

Early m the year we centrahsed the responsibility of

our co-nvestment stakes n Grosvenor Fund Management
investment vehucles, increasing clanty about the scafe

of the capital we allocate to co-investment and ensuring

a single voice as investor

In the spring, we announced gur decision to achieve our
ambitions in Australia by expanding our fund management
business there rather than through further direct Grosvenor
investment The transition from proprietary Operating
Company to fund management business effective 1 January
2012, prompted the departure of Rob Kerr, Chief Executive
of Grosvenor Australa, after 17 years of loyal service we
thank him for his long dedication to the Group

The market

The benefits of diversification continued to serve us

well in 2011, as they have since we first veniured ‘abroad
11 1953, with markets in our chosen oties in Austraha.
Canada and Brazil holding up particularly well Central
London has been notably resilient too, particularly in the
prime residential sector where we have been very active
n developing new apartments and houses, such as
3-10 Gresvenor Crescent, Belgravia {see page 25)

There are several distinct trends The divergence between
the ‘developed’ and ‘developing” economies continues

to dominate the global picture There continues to be a
significant gap between demand for high quality property
which makes up the majonty of the Grosvenor portfolio,
and that for secondary or tertiary property There s an
equally large gap between the prospects of those potential
investors with cash or access to credit and those without
We expect these trends to continue to be features of the
market beyond 2012

While we have husbanded our financial capacity again

this year. we have nonetheless moved ahead vigorously
with site acquisitions and with progressing development
projects in Calgary, Cambridge, Edinburgh, London,

Los Gatos, Oxferd, Reston, San Francisco, Silver Spring,
Vancouver and Washington DC In qur proprietary Operating
Companies Such activity plays to the strengths of our
teams It offers prospective returns i ine with our
requirements, and capitalises on lower construction

prices and the imited availability of finance in the market
It also proves the importance of having good relationships
with civic authorities our ability to assemble complex
development sites in the Americas such as Ambleside in
West vVancouver (see page 37) provides a good example

In our indirect investments portfolto, while Eurozone
difficulties have affected retall sales at shopping cenires
In our Sonae Serra investment, the business as a whole,
and especially the Brazilian centres, continues to perform
well operationally and the quality of its assets has imrted
valuation falls

At Grosvenor Fund Management there 15 a continuing
demand from investors for assets which return both
attractive mcome yields relative to other asset classes

and a hedge aganst the inflation most commentators

now believe 1s ahead of us This has resulted in new
investment vehicle launches and acquisitions i the US,
Continental Europe and the UK A few very large sources
of equity dommated the market in 2011, including investors
from Asia, Canada and the Middle East in particular
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Our long-term commutment to managing such capital,
coupled with a cautious, disciplined and carefully researched
approach to investment, has enabled us to grow our fund
management business significantly in 2011

Commentary on our ‘Big SIx' priorities

We have made good progress with our strategic priorities,
largely achieving what we aimed for — as the table on
pages 12 and 13 shows In summary

@ Optimising capital planning We are on target with
implementing our plan to allocate additional capital to
Asia over the new two years The importance we attach
to China as a market was demonstrated by the Group
Board deciding to hold its September meeting n
Shanghai and Beljing

m Creating value from proprietary capital On the dwect
side, revenue profit has increased from £23 3m to £41 6m
partly as a result of the ‘Fast Forward’ performance
impravement programme in Grosvenor Britan & Ireland
As for indirect investrnents, we have detailed, and begun
implementing, our strategy

a Sustaining our core portfolio in London We continue to
reinvest In our London estate, with a marked increase in
development activity We are also committed to making
further improvements to the public realm

m Creating value from fund management There Is renewed
momentum N Grosvenor Fund Management, following
the recent change of leadership Investors have entrusted
further capital to us, with the result that funds under
management have grown further, from £3 8bn to £5 0bn

m Investing in our people Examples of successful
secondments and transfers between our businesses are
increasing internal mobility and offer valuable career
opportunittes for our staff, whose importance to the
business is reflected i the many quotations from them
now mciuded in this document

= ‘Living cities” We are broadening the scope of our focus
on the environment o nclude wider sustainability 1ssues
in response to the desire of our Trustees, our Board,
and our staff to take Grosvenar s commigment to socal
responsibility a stage further

11

Our 'Big Six’ prionties are often interlmked An exciting
example 1s the research into the scope for affordable
housing in China which we are funding, for which we

signed an agreement with the China Development Research
Foundation during the Board’s visit last September (see
page 46) This research Is relevant to our ambitions to grow
In Asia, 1t 15 an investment of proprietary capital which will
increase our understanding of China's residential markets,
it draws on our experience in London of running an
extensive mixed-use estate, it deepens our connection

with institutions in China with whom our proprietary

and fund management businesses deal, 1t will involve our
people, as our research team and property professionals
work with our Chinese partners, and it expresses our
desire for sustainability

The year ahead

Our prionties for 2012 are to continue to make acquisitions
and manage our portfolio with a view to growth in revenue
profit, to maintain a cautious stance with respect o
financing and financial capacity, and to focus on creating
value for our clients We also plan to mvest further effort
and capital in contributing to the development and
management of sustainable city communities, and

to continue to develop our people professionally

Conclusion

while | do not expect this to be the last review in which

1 sound a note of caution about the outlook, | do foresee

the Group managing significantly more chient capital by the
end of 2012 via Grosvenor Fund Management's investment
vehicles and in jont ventures undertaken by our proprietary
Operating Companies | also expect the Group to be further
diversified, thanks to the ability to invest indirectly as well
as directly, and to the growing variety of our co-investments
In Grosvenor Fund Management funds At the same time,

I remain confident of solid progress in our proprietary
Operating Companies as they create value through
development projects and the active management

of our investment portfolio

All thus can only be achieved as the result of the efforts

of the 545 hard working and dedicated people who are

our most important ambassadors in cities around the world
1 would like to thank them for devoting their energies to
Grosvenor in the same loyal fashion as their predecessors
have for more than three centunes

Mark Preston
Group Chief Executive
15 March 2012
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Group strategy: the ‘Big Six’ priorities

1.

Optimising capital
planning

we will allocate our Shareholders’
capital in three ways, first, to three
regional businesses which invest
directly in property, secondly, to
co-nvestment in Grosvenor Fund
Management funds, and thurdly,
to investments in other property-
related businesses, following a
strategy to increase our
dversification by geography

and sector We wili manage our
exposure through the cycle and
give more capital to Asia, to
benefit from iis long-term
growth prospects

2.

Creating value from
proprietary capital

Our aim 1s to generate total returns
from our proprietary capital that
are above our weighted average
cost of capital and are attractive
relative to industry benchmarks
The revenue profit component
of these returns 15 particularly
important and we aim to ensure
that revenue profit in each
Operating Company grows
year-on-year

3.

Sustaining our core
portfolio 1n London

Our aim 15 to ensure that our
London estate in Mayfair and
Belgravia — the core of our
portfolio — 1s financially sustainable
long-term and maintains its
pre-eminence as an urban estate
We will achieve this by reinvesting
in its fabric so that it has the right
mix of properties, community retail
and public spaces, and by serving
the needs of occupiers and the
people who visit for work or
pleasure

what we said we would do n 2011

w Make progress towards ncreasing,
our capital weighting to Grosvenor
Asia Pacific to 9 1%

a Maintan cash position, using
conservative cash flow forecasts

a Agree and start implementing
our indirect investments strategy

what we did in 2011

= Reallocated £20m camtal
to Grosvenor Asia Pacific

m Held our cash position —
£237m at year end

m Idenufied several mdirect
Investment opportunities
and commenced detalled
due diligence on one
of them

What we said we would do in 2011
m Invest in new developments

m Improve service to occupiers

m Grow revenue profit

what we did n 2011

= Increased our development
exposure

m Saw net satisfaction among
market let customers on our
London estate exceeded 80%
for the first tume

m Grew revenue profit from
£64 2m to £80 8m

What we said we would do in 2011

a Offer custamers a greater
range of property and a
higher leve! of service

= Enhance public spaces and
improve community retail

m Acquire and develop new
sites, particularly residential,
to rejuvenate key locations

What we did 1n 2011

u Began construction of the first
five-star hotel to be built on the
London estate sn the last decade

m Started our third project to
improve public spaces. in Mayfarr

= Acquired two key sites in Belgravia
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4.

Creating value from
fund management

Qur &im 15 to delwer attractive
risk-adjusted returns {relative to
agreed benchmarks) and excellent
service {0 clients seeking to invest
In property, thus creating value
for them through the management
of their capital This activity will
generate revenue from fees paid
for our services In managing
tnvestment vehicles on behalf

of those clents, thereby creating
value for our Shareholders

and staff

D.

Investing in
our people

Our aim IS to recrut the best
talent, to ensure that our people
understand our brand, its values
and ethos, and to Invest In
developing their skills, experience
and careers In doing s0, we not
only develop them professionally,
personally and financally but also
equip them to achieve Grosvenor's
business and financial objectives

6.

‘Living cities’

Our understanding of cities and
urban design and development

1s at the heart of Grosvenor

We aim continually to improve
this understanding for the benefit
of occupiers, mvestors and

other stakeholders Increasingly,
our business strategies and
investment and development
practices will also respond to
Grosvenor’s long-term ambition
in the creation and management
of vibrant, sustamable cities which
operate within the world's annually
renewable resources

what we said we would do in 2011
m Install new leadership

m Review business strategy
in the hght of our ambitions

= Launch new Grosvenor Fund
Management investment vehicles

What we did In 2011

m Reinforced the leadership team
with new regional directors and
SeNIoT Managers

a Commutted again to our
international markets and to
creating value via sector and
region-specific investment
vehicles

m Closed four new investment
vehicles with a totat investment
capacity of £1bn

what we said we would de in 2011

m Encourage staff transfers and
secondments between Operating
Companies and/or the Grosvenor
Holding Company

m Increase staff understanding
of management challenges

= Ensure the operational
restructuring in Grosvenor
Britain & Ireland enables
career development

what we did 1n 2011

m Arranged five staff transfers
within the Group

a Hosted a second leadership
programme at IMD in Switzerland

= Promoted 13 people into new roles
in Grosvenor Britain & Ireland

What we said we would do in 2011

m Deliver on our internal
emissions targets

m Publish our first
Environment Review

w Improve data collection
and reporting

what we did in 2011

w Delvered more than our target
reduction in carbon emissions

m Pubhshed our Environment
Review 2010 on our website

w Launched an online environmental
database to monitor, benchmark
and report our performance
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Nicholas Scarles
Group Finance Director

“Businesses which thrive over
the long term are not those
which are good at what they
do, but those which are good
at getting better "

2011 was probably Grosvenor’s peak ‘year of
transition’ in preparation for the new market
cycle. We completed implementation of our new
management structure, which resulted in three
‘direct’ operations 1n our key regions of Europe,
the Americas and Asia Pacific; one ‘indirect’
operation and one fund management operation.
Within those operations, we are making good
progress with programmes to improve efficiency
and effectiveness significantly.

Restocking the pipeline of development
opportunities also continues, with a number of
new development sites now acquired. At the same
time our financial capacity, sufficient to support
several years’ investments, has been maintained.
But this is not just promise for the future: the
benefits started to materialise in 2011,




Grosvenor Annual Report 2011 www grosvenor com

Finance Director’s report

Performance

| am pleased to report, in a year of significant market
uncertainties, a 25 9% increase in revenue profit —
Grosvenor's measure of underlying performance, which
derives from what Grosvenor staff do to create value, rather
than from extraneous factors — at £80 8m (2010 £64 2m)
Profit before tax was £315 0m (2010 £394 8m) and our
tota! return was 9 096 (2010 105%) At 31 December 2011,
Shareholders’ funds were £2,855m (2010 £2,649m)

Earnings

within revenue profit, which includes Grosvenor’s share

of joint ventures, gross rental income increased to £309 2m
(2010 £284 Om), due to property acquisitions and strong
occupancy levels Fees and other income decreased to

£54 8m {2010 £72 6m), largely due to lower performance
fees in Grosvenor Fund Management Net financing costs
decreased by 769 to £81 Om (2010 £877m), reflecting
lower nterest rates in 201t and one-off refinanang costs
in 2010

Overheads reduced slightly to £120 5m (2010 £123 2m)

Thus reflects savings from operational efficiencies and

lower performance fees in Grosvenor’s fund co-tnvestments,
offset by the costs of bullding teams to meet future growth
opportunities and some internal reorganisations

Our proprietary businesses, which invest directly in
property, all generated increased revenue profit on

a like-for-like basis compared to 2010 The 2010 profit
figures have been adjusted, to take account of the

new management structure (under which Grosvenor’s
Investments in Grosvenor Fund Management funds are
now managed centrally as indirect investments rather
than locally by our regional Operating Companies)
Grosvenor Britain & Ireland’s revenue profit more than
doubled to £16 4m (2010 £8 Om) as a result of trading
profits, Grosvenor Americas’ increased 689% to £12 8m
(2010 £7 6m), principally because of trading losses
recognised In 2010, and Grosvenor Asia Pacific’s increased
619% to £12 4m (2010 £77m). reflecting a full year of returns
from investment acquisitions made at the end of 2010

Revenue profit from indirect investments increased
by 27% to £59 1m {2010 £46 4m), COMPrISINg an
mcrease n the contributton from Sonae Sierra to

£46 Om (2010 £32 9m) and a shight decrease in the
contribution from investments managed by Grosvenor
Fund Management to £13 1m (2010 £13 5m)

Grosvenor Fund Management incurred a revenue loss of
£1 6m (2010 profit of £12 5m) due 1o lower performance
fees in 2011 and also the start of sigmificant investment
to build its capabiity for future growth
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For the second year running, Grosvenor Britam &

Ireland delivered, on a like-for-like basis, the highest
total return amongst our proprietary businesses, of 16 2%
{2010 15 5%), arising principally from value appreciaticn
on the London estate but also from increased value-add
activities Grosvenor Asia Pacific’s total return was 8 0%
{2010 4 5%), and Grosvenor Americas’ was 8 9%

(2010 8 4%)

The return from indirect investments was 3 0%

This included Sonae Sierra’s total return of 2 9%,

reflecting income returns of 4 7% offset by revaluation
returns of -1 8%, and the return from investments managed
by Grosvenor Fund Management of 2 99, where income
returns were 3 8% and capital returns were -0 9% as

a result of retai revaluations in the UK

Operational activity

Assets under management mncreased to £12 5bn

(2010 £109bn), chiefly due to the impact of revaluations
during the year and acquisitions in new and existing
Grosvenor-managed investment vehicles

Grosvenor’s share of property assets increased by 70% to
£5 8bn (2010 £5 5bry, principally due to revaluation gans

Our development exposure measured by our development
ratio has been steadly increasing, from a nadir of 13 0%
1n 2009 to 15 8% at the end of 2011, as we take advantage
of opportunities

Staff numbers excluding Sonae Sierra, remarned steady
at 545 (2010 547)

Qperational effectiveness

Businesses which thrive over the long term are not thase
which are good at what they do, but those which are good
at getting better

In Grosvenor Britain & Ireland, the ‘Fast Forward’ project,
nvolving a complete overhaul of business structures and
processes, now in 1ts second year, is already delivering
sigrficant results (see page 26) In Grosvenor Asia Paaific
a new Chief Operating Officer role has been created to
focus on operational efficiency and delivery 1 am delighted
that william Lo Grosvenor Asla Pacific s Finance Director
for 10 years, has been selected for this role and welcome
Chris Ip, as the OQperating Company’s new Finance Birector
Meanwhile, Grosvenor Fund Management, with new
leadershup, 1s implementing a more centralised business
structure to service investors better and support

future growth
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we have enhanced our legal, treasury and IT teams, to
tncrease further the professionalisation of the functrons
which support Grosvenor's core property expertise

Portfolio allocation

Diversification is at the heart of Grosvenor's strategy -

be it by geography, sector, management, currency, fender,
investor, partner or advisor Each of these contributes
towards the robustness and stability of Grosvenor's capital
base, measured by Shareholders’ funds, which remain, for
the fifth year running, within 109% of the 31 December
2010 level

The table to the left shows Grosvenor's economic exposure
to property by country The principal changes since 2010
relate to acquisitions of retal assets in France, Sweden

and China, and sales in Australia They also reflect valuation
movements, with large retaii in the UK and southern
Contmental Europe underperforming relative to the
London West End, the Amencas and Asia Pacific

Financing

Grosvenor has mamtamned sis ample finanoial capacity
(wholly-owned spare cash and undrawn commiited
facilities), which at year end was £855m (2010 £829m),
consistent with our policy of ensuring hquidity in the event
of any further market crisis while maintaining capacity to
invest when opportunities anse

Following the successful £125m S private placement by
Grosvenor Britain & Ireland early in the year, the average
matunity of Grosvenor's wholly-owned drawn debt has
Increased to 12 2 years (2010 95 years) The average
matunty for undrawn facilities was maintamed at 2 9 years
Year end wholly-owned spare cash of £212m was sufficient
to repay all wholly-owned debt maturing aver the next five
years Such spare faciittes and cash are spread amongst
29 institutions and mvestment vehicles in eight currencres
and 11 countries and comply with strict counterparty imis

Treasury activity

As well as arranging finance for proprietary activities,
Grosvenor aiso manages an increasing valume of finance
and financial market actiwity on behalf of its joint ventures
and Grosvenor Fund Management. Qverall, Grosvenor
manages £4 3bn of loans (2010 £3 7bn), comprising 125
faciities (2010 107), In mine currencies with 46 relationship
lenders (2010 39}, and i support of this £1 6bn notional
principal of derivatves (2010 £1 4bn) 44 financings and
refinancings (2010 36) were undertaken during the year
with a vaiue of £19bn (2010 £1 1bn) £461m (2010 £434m)
of managed facilities mature 1n 2012




Grosvenor Annual Report 2011 www grosvencr ¢om

Finance Director’s report

In 2006, when | became Group Finance Director, Grosvenor
managed £2 1bn of facilities under a fully devolved structure
in which local finance teams were wholly responsible for
local financing tin 2007 we introduced our co-ordinated
approach to treasury, establishing specialist professional
skills based in London in support of local finance teams,

and co-ordinating formally our principal lender refationships
which span our Operating Companies As well as avoiding
the inefficiencies of separately managing multipte ‘pots’ of
cash and debt, this co-ordination has enabled us to work
more effectively with our principal lenders for the benefit of
Grosvenor and its investors, while at the same time ensuring
local expertise and management of local property debt-
related matters In parallel we have introduced new treasury
systems and have designed our co-ordinated team 50 1t can
be scaled up if we need more capacity Treasury activity has
doubled since 2006 and we are positioned well to handle
any further increase — in particular to support the growth
of Grosvenor Fund Management

Ensuring liquidity
Qur approach to maintaining hguidity, introduced 1in 2007,

15 based upon continuing to meet Grosvenor’s commitments,

for at least two years, in the face of property and banking
market crises in each of our markets and at the same time
Qur assumptions are based on a 40% fall in all property
values, peak to trough, a market with no freehold asset
sales (at any price), no financing or refinancing beyond
existing committed lines, no cash remittances from jomt
ventures, and substantially mcreased bad debts and voids
reflective of severe stress in the occupier market Qur
approach is to contemplate, and then cater for, the
ummagnable — before it happens

Preserving the ability to continue to manage for
value-creation through a crisis 1s expensive, but reaps
rewards when others are compelled to manage for

cash or, when that fails, become managed by others

The approach of the Grosvenor businesses 1s to reman
selective in making new investments, generally focussing
on those assets which retain the potential to generate
value through the deployment of property skiils and
which, in the current challenging debt markets, are

not easily financed

Eurozone

Much of Grosvenor’s Euro-area investments are held via
Sonae Sierra SGPS We do not know how the Eurozone
financial cnisis wall pan out but, regardless of the gutcome,
investment in the Euro area will remain part of our strategy
while many faretell a deepening crisis, we should not
discount the possibihity of the Euro emerging from the
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crisis permanently strengthened and robustly structured
Politicians and central bankers have successfully, and
repeatedly, refreshed hope they have bought time to
convince voters of the need for the required reforms and
remain determined to ensure the Euro’s survival Future
historians may even see this as the time which created the
Euro as a robust and cohesive currency — a turning point
of major European significance

Grosvenor’s approach presupposes neither Euro
survival nor Euro break-up, but with Grosvenor's
ongoing participation at a level reflective of both our
capital allocation objectives and the opportunities which
arise Recognising future exchange rate volatility and
the uncertainty over future asset values, we took the
opportunity in mid 2011 to forward-sell anticipated
Euro denorminated cash flows in exchange for Sterling,
and have also written off accounting goodwill of £40m,
bringing Grosvenar's balance sheet values into line with
the values reflected in the underlying entity accounts

Regulation

The recent crisis demonstrated how self destructive
unrestrained capitalism can be Reform is necessary,
because regulation has been too lax, but the nisk I1s that
the pendulum may swing too far and stifle the markets
which support economies, or that reform will be rushed,
with undesired or unexpected conseguences Two proposals
which potentially threaten the property sector are the
requirement for EU property funds to post cash coliateral
in respect of therr interest rate hedges, and the pace and
manner of implementation of increased international
bank capital requirements in respect of property loans

Conclusion

We are in uncertain and volatite tumes with potentially
overwhelming and conflicting factors pushing real estate
values both tugher and lower This will not change i the
near future In this environment, the only approach for
Grosvenor 1s to conbinue as before - spreading equity
diversely, investing in our relationshups with partners,
investors and lenders, restraming gearing, ensuring
operational efficiency and skilled teams, and deploying
them on assets where such skills can add value

Nicholas Scarles
Group Finance Director
15 March 2012
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Grosvenor Group Board of Directors

As at 15 March 2012

Non-Executive Directors

Lestey Knax (Chairman) joined the Board in 2010
She s a Trustee of The Grosvenor Estate and a
Director of both Sasmiller pic and Centrica Ple
She quakdied as a soliciior and then spent 15 years
vath Kleinwort Benson (1981-1996) first as a
Corporate Finance Director and then as Chief
Executive of the nstitutional asset management
business She moved to the Briish Linen Bank
{1997-1999) latterly as Governar and then

was a founder Directar of British Linen Advisers
{2000-2003) She has held a vaniety of non-
executive directorships with international and
Brimsh corporates She s currently involved with
a number of charitable and arts argamsauons
and 1s the Chairman of the V&A at Dundee

Rod Kent joined the Board 1n 2000 and 15
currently a Non-Executive Director of Caledonia
investments plc Most of his career was spant
with Close Brothers Group plc where he was
Mzanaging Director from 1975-2002 then Non-
Executive Directar and latterly Chairman unul
2008 Over the last 20 years Rod has served as
non-executive direCtor on various boards and
has been Chairman ¢f M&G Bradiord & Bingley
and BT Penston Scheme boards He has also
been a Trustee of both the Esmee Fairbairn and
weltcome Trust charitabte trusts

Michael McLintock joined the Board in 2012 and
15 Chief Executive of MBG He joined M&G in 1992
as personal assistant to the then Chuef Executive
and later became Head of the Institutional and
International Desks He was appornted Chief
Executive in 1997 and gversaw the sale of M&G
10 Prudential In 1999 he joined the Board of
Prudential in September 2000 Michae! was a
Non-Executive Duegtor of Close Brothers Group
trom 200L-2008 Since Qctober 2005 he has
been a member of the Finance Committee of the
MCC Before maving te Banngs as a corporate
financier in £987 he joined Morgan Grenfell in
1983 where he worked in Investment
managament gnd corporate finance

1 alasdair Morreson joined the Board 1n 2004

He 15 a Semor Advisor te Ciugroup Asla Paafic
and a member of the firm s Business
Development Commuittee an Independent
Non-Executive Director of MTR Corporauon Ltd
the Hong Kong Mercantife Exchange and Pacific
Basm Shtpptng Limited From 20002007 he was
Chairman of Morgan Stanley A5ia, based in Hong
Kong From 2002 to February 2006 he was
concurrently Chairman ang Chief Executise Officer
of Morgan Stanley Asia Prior t0 Joining Morgan
Stanley he worked tn Asia for 28 years for the
lardine Matheson Group where he was the

Group Managmg Director from 19942000

Jeremy Newsum rmes 15 Executive Trustee of the

Grosvenor Estate He was Group Chief Executve
fram 1989-2008 He 15 a member of the Council
of Imperial College a member of Cambridge
University s Syndicate for the west and North
west Cambridge Estates and a Director of Grupo
Lar Past appomtments incude Chairman of the
Urban Land Institute (2009-2011) President of
the §riush Property Federation (2001-2002)
and Director TR Investment Property Trust
(2000-2007)

A pomenico Siniscalco e o joined the Board

1N 2008 He 15 Vice Chairman Country Head

of ltaly and Head of Government Coverage
EMEA for Morgan Stanley He 15 also Chairman
of Assogestiont (associatien of Italian asset
managers} From 2001~2005 he served in the
Italian government as Director General of the
Treasury and then Minister of Economy and
Finance He has been Professor of Economics
at Torino University since 15990 and hasa Ph D
n Economics from Cambridge University

Owen Thomas joined the Board in january

2012, He 15 a Chairman of Lehiman Brothers
Holdings and a former Managing Director and
Management Committee member of Margan
Stanley He was CEQ of Morgan Stanley Asta
Presdent of Morgan Stanley Investment
Management Chawrman and CEQ of Morgan
Stanley Real Estate and Chaieman of Mitsabish
Morgan Stanley Securities He 1§ a Director

of the University of Virginia Investment
Management Company a Trustee of the Urban
Land Instituze and the former Chairman of the
Penslon Real Estate Association

Executive Directors

EX MarkPreston umcs (Group Chief Executive}

joned Grosvenor inthe UK in 1989 seconded
to Hong Kong in 1995 he returned to {ead our
fund maragement aperations in 1997 spent
four years 1n San Francisco from 2002 became
Chief Executive of Grosvenor Britain & Ireland
in 2006 and Group Chief Executive in 2008

He 153 Non-Executive Director of both Sonae
Sierra SGPS and Persimmon plc Hes also a
member of the Board of The Association of
Foreign Investors in Real Estate the (University
of) Cambnidge Land Economy Adwisory Board
and the Eurohypo International Advisory Board

El Micholas Scarles rea arioaey a1 Law {(Group

Finance Director) joined Gresvenor in 2004

He was previously at Centrica Price Waterhouse
and Coopers and Lybrand He 15 a Governor of
the Haberdashers Elstree Schools Member

of the Court of Assistants of the Haberdashers
Livery Company and a Nan-Executive Director
of Sonae Sierra SGPS
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Grosvenor Group Executive Committee

As at 15 March 2012

E Mark Preston wmics (Chairman) s Group Chief

Seconded to Hong Kong n 1995 he returned 10
tead eur fund management operations in 1997
spent four years i 5an Francisco from 2002
became Chief Executive of Grasvenor Britain

& treland in 2006 and Group Chief Executive

in 2008 He 1s a Non-Executive Director of
both Sonae Sierra SGPS and Persimmon plc

He 1s also a member of the Board of The
Association of Foreign Investors in Real £state
the {Umiversity of) Cambnidge Land Economy
Adwisory Board and the Eurohypo International
Adwsory Board

Nicholas Scarles rca artorney a1 Law (Group
Finance Birector) joined Grosvenor in 2004

and Coopers and Lybrand He 15 a Governor of
the Haberdashers Elstree Schools Member
of the Court of Assistants of the Haberdashers
Lwvery Company and a Non-Executive Director
of Sonae Sierra SGPS

Andrew Bibby (Chief Executive Grosvenor
Americas) joined Grosvenor in 1984 Heisa
past Director of the Reat Property ASsoiaton
of Canada and a past member of the Fagulty

at the University of British Columbia

Executive and jeined Grosvenor in the UK in 1989

He was previously at Cenirica Price Waterhouse

Adwisory Board of the Sauder Schooel of Business

3 Nicholas Loup (Chief Executive Grosvenor Asia

Pacitic) established the aperation in Asia Pacific
1IN 1994 He 15 a Director of Asia Standard a listed
company in Hong Kong a General Committee
member of the British Chamber of Commerce
and a Director of the Spinal Cord Injury fund

He 15 3lso Chairman of ANREY of which he 1s
atounder member a member of the Asia Pacitic
Acquisitions Commuittee of the Tate and a
member of the World Economic Forum s Glebal
Agenga Council on Real Estate

H peter vernon wmes (Chief Executive Grosvenor

Britain & Ireland) (cined Grosyenor in 2005 1o
take responsibility for Grosvenor s property
wnvestments in the UK and Ireland incluging
Grosvenor s London estate and from 2006 the
London development business He 1s a member
of the Royal & Sun Alliance tondon Regional
Board and the Board of London First Previgusly
he was a Partner at IBM Business Consulting
Services and PwC Consulting

A seffrey Weingarten (Chief Executive
Grosvenor Fund Management) began his career
asa Securies Analyst at Scheinman Hochstein
& Trorta in 1970 before moving to Wertheim
& Co In 1677 he joined the research diision at
Gofdman Sachs & Co in New York becoming
Director of Research in London in 1987 and
General Partner of Goldman Sachs & Co1n 1950
From 1991-1995 leffrey was the Chief Investment
Officer and Managmg Director of Goldman
Sachs Asset Management International before
returing to International Equity Research as
Global Strategist From 1995-2008 Jeffrey
was General Partner and Chief tnvestment
Qthcer of Butionwood Capital Partners
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Proprietary
assets — direct

Grosvenor’s direct proprietary investment in
property encompasses Europe, North America
and Asia where we have 242, 63 and 62 people
respectively.

We have been managing land in Mayfair and
Belgravia since 1677 and from a dedicated
London office since 1836. For the past 40 years
we have also had assets elsewhere in the UK -
hence our office in Edinburgh, opened in 1987.

North America was the location of Grosvenor’s
first international projects we have been active
here for nearly 60 years. We have had an office
in Vancouver since 1953, in San Francisco since
1977, in Washington since 1988 and in Calgary -
with one small gap — since 1997.

Our knowledge of the Asia Pacific market
stretches back nearly 20 years and we have
had offices in Hong Kong since 1994, in Tokyo
since 2001, in Shanghai since 2004 and in
Beijing since 2010.
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Grosvenor Britain & Ireland
Pages 22 to 33

Grosvenor Americas
Pages 34 to 43

Grosvenor Asia Pacific
Pages 44 to 49
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62 Green Street, Mayfair,
London, England

We continued to develop our luxury
residential portfohio in Mayfair and
Belgravia in 2011 including mine
contemporary apartments at

62 Green Street
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Grosvenor Britain & Ireland
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Peter Vernon Business objective
Chief Executive
Grosvenor Britan & Ireland's aim 1s constantly to improve the neighbourhoods
of our London estate, and to complement this through additional value-creating
activity elsewhere with a particular focus on high-end residential and mixed-
use The end user is always in our minds our long-term success depends on
our meeting the needs of residents, businesses and wisitors for exceptional
places in which to ive and work
What we said we would do m 2011 what we did in 2011
m Grow our revenue profit m Doubled revenue profit to £16 4m
m Grow our pipeline of value-creating m Gamed control of four significant
development opportunities development opportunities with gross
m Deliver a total return above our development value of over £600m
cost of capital = Delivered a total return of 16 2%, above
our cost of capital, including £103m of
value-add through active management
Highhghts Number of assets by city*
Revenue profit Britain
[ cambndge 3
£16.4 T
. m @ Glasgow 107
2010 £8 Om (restated) Bl uverpool 1
@ wndon 1514
Total return A oo !
trefand
. (4] @ oubiin 2
2010~ 15 5% (restated}
Socre assets we hold directly-
pthers we manage on beball
of the Groswenor Trusts.
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2011 was a year of disciplined
execution of our strategy with

good results. We greatly increased
our capacity to create value while
significantly improving efficiency
and therefore regular mcome.

By delivering a major new
development in the heart of our
London estate at 3—10 Grosvenor
Crescent, we have further enhanced
our credentials in luxury residential
property.

Commentary on key performance indicators

In a market which continued to be testing, we stuck to
our strategy and achieved a total return of 16 2%, slightly
ahead of 2010 {15 5%) This includes 5 7% attributable to
value-add activity, in addition to market growth Relative
to the total return on the IPD All Property Index of 8 19,
it 1s a streng performance Revenue profit increased to
£16 4m (2010 £8 Om) Assets under management grew
18 9% to £4 2bn (2010 £3 5bn) We have the financal
capacity to ivest signiftcantly i the coming years

Strategic focus

We devote 90% of our capital to the London estate,
split between investment and development activity
We concentrate most of our development spend on
projects which wall grow long-term income — with
some trading of larger residential properties

We altocate 10% of our capital to Grosvenar Developments,
which operates outside our London estate and undertakes
trading activity, mainly development, to bogst gur

revenue profit

In both cases we continue to undertake some jomnt venture
projects, to ‘stretch’ our capital or to work with a partner
with complementary expertise

¢ Our public realm programme reflects
our conviction that places are about more
than buildings The appearance of streets
18 vital to the long-term success of the
neighbourhoods we manage ”

Will Bax
Director, Mayfair

London estate

Our London estate, led by Giles Clarke, 15 the core
investment for Grosvenor Brifain & Ireland and for the
Group as a whole Our ambition 1S to ensure this historic
mixed-use portfolio remans financially sustainable over
future generations This depends on continuous careful
asset management and well-udged reinvestment

However, it 1s important to complement long experience
with innovation We are constantly seeking to revitalise
and refresh our locations to serve our customers better
By understanding and anticipating market trends in our
re-development programme we can maintain demand
for our mature portfolio of prime properties

Off estate

Grosvenor Developments, led by Craig McWilliam,
undertakes projects ‘off estate 1n Londan and elsewhere
which allow us to recycle capital more quickly While the
focus s on London, there 15 a spread of activity in terms
of scale and complexity, from place-making projects in
Edinburgh and Oxford to indwvidual apartment bulldings
in London and Cambridge

When creating trading profits, we take a long-term
perspective we care about our legacy in the built
environment and our relationship with local stakeholders
We aim to create lasting developments in cities which we
either know well already or with which we want to establish
an enduring association In London we focus an high-end
restdential, elsewhere, on larger scale place-making
projects

Market conditions

The first half of 2011 saw a marked improvement in values

in Landon, which is still seen as a safe haven for international
investors, including some new to Investment in property as
an asset class Our office, residential and retait portfolios in
Mayfair and Belgravia have benefited in ine with this trend

Elsewhere the picture was increasingly muted, a trend
exacerbated by the Eurozone crisis and the reluctance of
banks to lend, which further depressed trading activity
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“We have a strong and diverse pipeline
of development opportunities which
will help us add value to our London
estate by creating differentiated
products and places that meet our
customers’ highest expectations ”

lan Morrison
Dhrector,
London Estate Developments

Our development business has the advantage of strong
financiai capacity but good opportunities for investment
were rare

with Lendon values growing against a backdrop of
increasing economic uncertainty, we will continue to
be selective in how we Invest In new opportunities

Investment and development highhghts

Over the year we increased our development pipeline under
construction both on and off our London estate, to increase
revenue and create value from capital appreciation, raising

our development ratio to 25 5% from 18 2% in 2010

At year end the portfolio sector mix was 13% retall, 56%
residential and 31% office

London estate

The tughlight of the year was the completion of 15
contemporary luxury apartments at 3—10 Grosvenor
Crescent, Belgravia, where we were project and
development manager, with a share of profits (see page 27}
This project adds to our credentials as a developer of luxury
residential accommodation Three units had been sold or
exchanged at year end

In November, on behalf of the Grosvenor Trusts for
whom we manage some assets, we reached agreement
with Derwent London to re-structure ownership of

1-5 Grosvenor Place, Belgravia (see page 27).into a
50/50 partnership, in which we will act as development
manager on this magnificent site at Hyde Park Corner

Taking advantage of a weak construction market we started
on site with our project at 8 Balderton Street {a luxury
boutigue hotel, The Beaument), part of our drive to increase
income from the hatel sector Our office development at
29-37 Davies Street (see page 28) went on site In January
2012 Meanwhile we made good progress on projects we
had under construction 55—73 Duke Street (retall and
residential — see page 28), 62 Green Street (residential)

25

“The redevelopment of
8 Balderton Street takes its
cue from 1ts art deco origins
We hope to create, 1n ‘The
Beaumont’, one of London’s
most exciting places to stay,
and to increase our tncome
from the hotel sector”

Emma Mountford

Serttor Development Manager,
London Estate Developments

with a restaurant at 30 North Audley Street (see pages 22
and 28), and 40-54 Grosvenor Hill {off:ce) Qverall, mcluding
refurbishments, across the estate we have more than

35 projects on site, bringing around 12,000m? of prume
residential stock to the market

Our work on public spaces In Mount Street, Mayfaur
(see page 29), completed in 2010, was complemented
in June with the stallation of a water feature by Tadao
Ando at the junction of Mount Street and Carlos Place

we started work on our third ‘public realm’ project, in
nearby North Audley Street, continuing our commitment
to upgrading the streets on our estate

Off estate

The most significant transaction off-estate was the
acqussition of Alpha Place, in Chelsea, London — our
fourth luxury residential joint venture with Native Land
(see page 29)

We also formed a joint venture with Oxford City Council
to plan and deliver a new community at Barton in north
Oxford — our first in the city (see page 29)

During the year we continued the construction of NEO
Bankside, London, cur second joint venture with Native
Land 114 of the 217 apartments had been sold or exchanged
at year end The fast-improving location and strong
architecture has given the scheme a ugh profile and good
sales results from international buyers and it continued to
win awards in 2011 We also took forward our joint venture
at Campden Hill in Holland Park, London — achieving
planning consent for our revision of the original scheme,
which promises to add significant value

Qutside London we started on site at Parkside Place,
Cambridge, pre-selling 66% of these residential units and
entirely covering our construction costs At Springside,
Edinburgh, we acquired the interests of our other partners
and now have 100% ownership of the development
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“With teams dedicated to each location

on our London estate we are now able

to focus more on dehvering the nght

service and product for each customer
1n those locatons across all sectors ”

Cathenne Stevensen
Drrector,
South Belgravia

Elsewhere, we sold our remaining interests at Preston
At Liffey valley, Dublin together with our partner Aviva,
we decided to retain our stake in the shoppeng centre to
benefit from the income 1t generates

Asset management highlights

tondon estate

Now managed as four focations {(Mayfair, North Belgravia,
Eaton Square and South Belgravia) to enable a more
focused customer service, our London estate performed
well in 2011 Occupancy rates were 98% (2010 98%) and
overall satisfaction levels were strong

Some assets we hold directly, others we manage on
behalf of the Grosvenor Trusts For the directly held
portfohio, rental mcome was £60 5m (2010 £55 2m)
Revaluation of the London estate (+13 4%, compared to
+15 9% 1n 2010) made a strong contribution to our results
Active management — including refurbishments, change
of use and planning consents — contributed £63m

(2010 £37m)

Operational developments

Work on operational improvements continues and in

2011 our Fasi Forward’ programme delivered a sigmficant
improvement m performance The focus has now moved
from our property teams to our financial systems and
processes we chose Yardi as our IT prowder for a major
iavestment in new finance and property management
systems, which will bring further efficiencies

Our band issue In the US private placement market,
concluded In April, raised £125m, split between 20 and
30 year maturities at a blended average rate of 5 69%

“We completed our first development
1n Cambridge nearly 30 years age
Our four current projects in the
city demonstrate the benefits
of our long-term perspective 1n
the physical product we create
and 1n our relationships with
local stakeholders ™

Ed Skeates
Progects Thrector
Grosvenor Developmentsa

2012: strategic priorities

our prionities for 2012 are to mcrease revenue profit by
reducing voids, iImproving incorme generation through new
praducts and driving greater efficiency in our processes,
to ident:fy new value-adding opportunities to mcrease our
total return, and 1o secure future profit growth by building
our development pipeline on and off the estate

2012: market outlook

We expect weak economic growth in the short term and
believe the Eurozone crisis will continue to damage mvestor
confidence Against this uncertainty, demand remamns
strong for London property, especially prime residential,
viewed as a ‘safe-haven’ asset and benefiting from the city's
strong international hnks The 2012 Olympic Games should
also help sentiment and provide an opportunity for London
to increase 1ts global profide

in the medium term the pace of recovery 1s likely to
remain modest, given continng public sector austerity
and private sector deleveraging However, the current
low levels of construction and lack of available finance
promise significant development opportunities, albeit
imited 1n number

Overall, we are confident about the future Grosvenor Britan
& Ireland, which looks to the very long term on the majonty
of its portfolie, will continue to reinvest in its London estate
and n developments elsewhere If the risk-adjusted return
seems appropriate We believe London will remain a vibrant
place to live and an attractive destination for international
Investors, businesses and visitors, provided the Qity
maintains a stable and competitive tax environment, Irvests
m transport infrastructure and mamtams open borders
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“3-10 Grosvenor Crescent
has attracted great interest
from around the world
buyers often describe it as
an example of Belgravia’s

‘tuneless elegance’”

Jonathan Wystt
Assoazte Diroctor,
London Estate Developments Teamn

Proprietary assets — direct Grosvenor Britain & Ireland

“1-5 Grosvenor Place 15 an exciting
oppoertunity to deliver a building
appropriate for the gateway to
Belgravia We are delighted to work
with Derwent London to unlock its
potential to transform the area”
Mark Curry

Serucr Development Manager
London Estate Developments Team
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Grosvenor Britain & Ireland
Assets under management

Total

£4,184m

Investment

£3,064m

Development

£1,120m

3-10 Grosvenor Crescent,
Belgravia

City London

Country England

Sector Residential

Type Development

Area 7,600m?

Ownership Freehold owned by the
Grosvenor Trusts

We are project and development
manager on this scheme to develop
eight town houses as 15 luxury
properties with extensive underground
parking — the first Grosvenor-led
residential development scheme on
our London estate since completion

of Montrose Place 1n 2007

1-5 Grosvenor Place,
Belgravia

City London
Country England
Sector Mixeg-use
Type Development
Area 15,600m?

Ownership Jointly owned

This site — over 1 5 acres overlooking
Hyde Park and Green Park — offers
scope for redevelopment to create a
wortd-class, sustainabe building equal
to its remarkable location We hope it
will hguse a luxury hotel, commercial
and residential uses Subject to receipt
of planming consent, the construction
could start in 2014
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“QOur new building at 29-87 Davies

Street will create a timeless yet “62 Green Street was a technically
contemporary building for office and challenging development but with
retail use Traditional materials these tniplex penthouses we have
will ensure 1t fits wath the brought a new style of property
surrounding area ” to the Mayfair market ”
Philip Gearge Anna Farnes
Assoctate Director, Seror Development Manager,
Landon Estate Developments Team Landaon Extate Developments Team
29-37 Davies Street, 62 Green Street, Mayfair
Mayfair 55-73 Duke Street, Mayfair City London
City London ot p Country England
Country  England Ly London Sector Residential-led mixed-use
Country England Devel
Sector Office Type evelopment
Sector Residential/Retaut A 2.100m?
Type Development Devel i rea ,100m
Area 4,800m? 2’_2: Sg‘g’o?ggnen Ownership  Wholly owned
Ownership lointly owned ownership Whoﬂv owned Following redevelopment work that
29-37 Davies Street — our second joint ) returned the facade to its onginal
venture with Stow Capital Partners g‘:\fg ;"rg;fn‘:rfoiﬁr"’rf;éghl'g m:‘frd use design, this property now comprises
Ltd — 15 a prominent corner site 1n the apart n?e nts and fopur rotal umtsv a ground floor restaurant and ning
commercial heart of Mayfair Our new Tge Grade I} Listed Victorian mansion apartments All the apartments are
building scheduled for completion in bullding 15 beine redeveloned o the designed to have a contemporary,
2013 will be constructed and finished o A s Wil come o spacious feel. all will be part of our
to the highest standards expected by th% ket in earls 2013 Market Lets portfolio With solar-
commercial occupiers and by the Y Eowered hot water and rainwater
brands we will target for the two arvesting systems, the buitding
ground floor retail units This 15 a computer generated image has achreved a “Very Good” BREEAM
EcoHomes rating
This 15 a computer generated image




2012 with completion in 2015

This 1s a computer generated image
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“The acquisition of Alpha Place
adds to our growing number of
luxury development projects 1n
the capital but outside Mayfair
and Belgravia ”
Antheny Gil
Pregects Dhrector,
Grosvenor Developments
Mount Street, Mayfair Barton
City London City Oxford
Country England Country England
Sector Mixed-use Sector Residential-ted mixed-use
Type Investment Type Development
Area 76,9002 Alpha Place, Chelsea Area 364,000m?
Ownership  Wholly owned City London (whole site area)
The unveiling of a2 water feature by g::tn::y Eggllgggnal Ownersiup_Jointly owned
acclaimed Japanese architect Tadao Type Development An opportunity to provide an extension
Ando marked the fimal completion of Arza 9000m? to the city with more private and
the pubkic realm works in Mount Street, o hio jontl d soCial housing, this 15 & major project
which 1s now established as one of wnership Jomtly owne to delwver up 10 1,000 new homes
Londens premier retad destinations We acquired this prime 0 8 acre in a large-scale development
residential site in Chelsea in a three- west of Barton we look forward to
way joint venture with Native Land collaborating with our partners Qxford
and MountCity investments The site Gity Council who selected us, and with
had an extant planning permission for local resident groups, 1o ensure that
25 private, luxury residential units and the project attracts new life to the
eight on-site affardable units We have area while still meeting the wants
since modified tie planning permission and needs of the existing community
and expect to start on site In summer Construction 1s due to start in 2014
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Grosvenor Britain & Ireland

Board of Directors

As at 15 March 2012

Non-Executive Directors

Graham Pimlott (Chairman) oined the Board in
2009 Hewas a Partner at Lovells before taking
senmor roles within BZW and Barclays PLC He s

the Chairman of Tesco Personal Finance phc and
has held several non-executive directer roles in
the past

Michae! Gradon joined the Board (0 2007 He is
the Semor Independent Director of Modern Water
plc a Non-Executive Director of Aercap Holdings
NV and Exclusive Hotels, and 15 on The Commuitee
of Management of the All England Lawn Tennis
Club ang wimblegon Tennis Championships

He was previously a Main Board Director at PAD

Heather Rabbatts jmned the Board In 2009
She 1s a Non-Executwe Director of Cross London
Rail Links Ltd and s on the Board of several non-
profit organisations including the Royal Opera
House She was recently appointed asa Non-
Executive Director to the Board of the Football
Associztion She has previously held several
Board positions in commercial not-for-profit
and government organisations

E} Mark Preston wcs (Group Chief Executive)

joned Grosvenor In the UK in 1989 Seconded
to Hong Kongin 1995 he returned ta lead our
{fund management operations in 1997 spent
tour years in 5an francisco from 2002 became
Chief Executive of Gresvenor Britain & Ireland
in 2006 and Group Chuef Executive in 2008
He1s a Non-Executive Director of both Sonae
Srerra $GPS and Persimmon pi He 15 alse a
member of the Board of The Association of
Foreign Investors i Real Estate the (University
of} Cambridge Land Economy Adwisory Board
and the Eurohypo tnternationat Advisory Board

Nicholas Scarles roa atrorsey a7 Law (Group

Finance Director} joined Grosvensr in 2004

He was previously at Cenirga Price Waterhouse
and Coopers and Lybrand He 15 a Governor of
the Haberdashers Eistree Schools Member of
the Court of Assistants of the Haberdashers
Livery Company and 4 Non-Executive Director
of Senae Sierra SGPS

Executive Directors

0 Peter vernon wacs (Chiet Executive) joined

Grosvenor in 2005 to take responsibiity for
Grosvendor s property investments in the UK

and treland including Grosvenor s London
estate and from 2006 the Lendon development
business He s a member of the Royal & Sun
Alirance London Regional Board and the Board of
London First Previousty he was a Partner 3t 1IBM
Business Consuliing Services and PwC Consulting

2 Roger Blundell acs (Finance Director) jomed

Grosvenor 1n 2007 He was previously Group
Finance Director at Kensington Group Plc Finance
Dwector at BSkyB interactrve and Director of
Group Finance Tax and Treasury at Kigfisher

0 Gules Qarke umcs (Executive Director

London Estate) jomed Grosvenor 1n 2007

He 15 responsible for the London estate
including all investment development and
property management activity He was
prewiousty at The Crown Estate where he was
Director of Investment & Asset Management

EJ Craig Mcwitham wrics (Executive Director

Grosvenor Developments) joined Grosvenor in
2010 He was previousky Managing Director at
Fortress investment Group with responsibility
for real estate in the company s European
private equity business Previously he werked
at Chesterton UBS and Rodamco

I yinke Schwarz-Runer pocron oF Laws (General

Counsel) joined Grosvenor in 2010 and advises
Grosvenor Britain & Ireland Grosvenor Fund
Management Groswenor Group and the
Grosvenor Trusts She was previgusly General
Counsel of a sovereign wealth fund ang prior
{0 that Executrve Director at Goldman Sachs
Sheisa Non-Executive Deirector of the Barclays
Pensior Fund She is gualified to pracuse law
n England & Wales New York and Austria
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Grosvenor Britain & Ireland
Portfolio
Investment properties
Passing Runming Rewersionary Number of Grosvenor Assets under
rent ERV ek yeld properties share management
im £m % % £m £m
Office 278 369 4] 54 244 6800 Q627
Retail 141 155 55 60 101 2573 4804
Residential* 224 234 23 24 594 9760 16210
643 758 34 40 939 19133 30641

*The majority of the residential portfolio 15 ground rented and because of thus it has a low average yield The average yield on the rackrented portfolio 15 4 4%

Development properties

Number of Grosvenor Assets under
properues share management
£m £m
Office 3 106 470
Retail 1 472 1202
Residential 3 3122 9531
17 3700 11203

Geographic analysis

Grosvenor share

ASSPIS uner
management
Imeeiment Development Total Tetal
£ £m m £&m
London 18293 2666 2,0959 38291
Outside London 840 1034 1874 3553
19133 3700 22833 41844
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Portfoho
Continued

Grosvenor Britain & Ireland manages a portfolo of assets across 300 acres of Mayfar and Belgravia some parts of which are owned by

the Grosvenor Trusts The portfolio comprises more than 1500 retail residential and commercial properties managed through four location
tearns A summary of the London Estate investment portfolio is set out below In addition, Grosvenor Britain & Ireland manages a smal
portfolio of nvestment properties cutside the London Estate

Development activity 1s managed by the London Estate team (for projects in Mayfair and Belgravia) and by the Grosvengr Developments
team (for all projects outside the London Estate) A summary of principal development projects I1s presented opposite

Mayfair

Sector Office 188 offices
Retail 84 units
Residential 224 units

Area 7,911 000m?

with a mix of commercial and residential
properties, Mayfair 1s home to some of
the world s leading hoteis and restaurants
The {ocation includes one of London s
largest garden squares, Grosvenar Square
and one of the capital’'s most fashionable
shopping destinatons, Mount Street

B North Belgravia

Sector Office 86 offices
Retail 24 units
Residential 280 units

Area 3 682 000m?

Just north of Eaton Square, this location

15 centred around Belgrave Square

To the west, lies Motcomb Street a discreet
enclave of high-end retailers and fine
restaurants Grosvenor Crescent with the
new residential development at 3-10 runs
off the east end of Belgrave Square

Eaton Square

Sector Office 2 offices
Residential 77 units

Area 839,000m?

At the heart of Belgravia Eaton Square 1s

recognised as one of the finest residential
addresses i the world Arranged around

six private gardens, the square is a series

of iImposing stucco-fronted terraces

£ South Belgravia

Sector Office 110 offices
Retail 122 units
Residential 314 units

Area 2.943,000m?

This location 15 home to two retail
destmations Ehzabeth Street and Pimiico
Road, as well as quiet residential stregts
To the south, Buckingham Palace

Road and Grosvenor Gardens contamn
contemporary and pertogd office buldings
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Completion
Property Description Locatipn Aream? date
Principal development and trading properties — directly owned
Office
40-54 Grosvenor Hill Prime commercial offices with retained facades West End London 2 800 2012
18-20 Grosvenor Street Part new part refurbished pnme commeraial offices west End, London 5600 2013
Residential
55—73 Duke Street 16 apartments and 1,500m? retail West End London 5,000 2012
52 Green Street Five residential apartments West £nd, London 600 2012
62 Green Street Nine apartments and a 500m? restaurant West End London 2,100 2012
One Park west Resdential apartment block Liverpool, Merseyside 19100 2009
Parkside Place Residential apartment block with 99 units Cambridge,
Cambridgeshire 11600 2012
Hotel
8 Balderton Street 80-bed boutique hotel and restaurant West End London 5,800 2012
Development and trading preperties — jointly owned
office
29=37 Davies Street New prime commercial offices and retail West End London 4 800 2013
Residential
Alpha Place Luxury apartment block Chelsea, London 9,000 2015
Barton Development land Oxford, Oxfordshire 364,600 2018
Campden Hill Luxury apartment block Holland Park London 18 600 2016
3-10 Grosvenor Crescent Grade II* Listed apartment bullding with 15 urats West End London 7600 2011
1-5 Grosvenor Place Mixed-use hotel commercial and residential West End London 15 600 2017
Grouss Portfalio of 240 flats townhouses Edinburgh & Glasgaw,
and serviced apartments Scotland 33100 2010
NEQ Bankside Luxury apartment block Central London 38,000 2010-2012
Trumpington Meadows Development fand (ambridge
Cambridgeshire 240,000 2016
Mixed-use
Springside Muxed-use, city-centre scheme Edinburgh Scotland 83200 2015




The RISE, Vancouver, BC, Canada

The RISE, with both retai and residential
components 15 100% leased as a result of
dil:igent asset management
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Grosvenor Americas

35

Andrew Bibby
Chief Executive

Business objective

Grosvenor Americas” aim is to achieve a leading position n a selection of
geographic and sectoral markets in Canada and the United States, thus
continuing the focused expansion of the business By increasing brand
recognition and deepening our knowledge base we facilitate the flow of
attractive deals upon which value-creating investment and development

activity depends

what we said we would do in 2011

m Attract partners for new investments

m Buy investment and development
assets with scope to add value whether
by virtue of temporary or anticipated
market weakness, repositioning,
mtensification of use change in
use, or redevelopment

m Stay close to tenants to maintain
occupancy levels

What we d:d in 2011
m Agreed mandates and made snitial
investment with two new partners

® Acquired control of two
development sites

@ Delivered occupancy levels of 94 5%

Highhghts

Revenue profit

C$20.3m

2010~ C$12.1m (restated)

Total return

8.9%

2010 §.4% (restated)

Number of assets by aty
Canada
4] Calgary 5
vancouver 5
vVictora 1
UsSA
@ chicago 3
A vLos Angeles 2
San Francisco 5
B san wse a
B seanie 9

I washingron, BC
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The uncertain economic and
financial climate 1n 2011 made it a
year for stabilising the portfolio and
adding to it selectively. We performed
solidly despite the odds and have a
substantial development pipeline
with which to attract partners and
generate revenue and trading income
in the future.

Commentary on key performance indicators

Our financial performance remained siable Total returns
were 8 9% (2010 8 49%), maintaining the significant
improvement seen since 2009 despite the net decrease

in the stze of our portfolia over that period Revenue profit
was C$20 3m (2010 %12 Im) reflecting increased returns
from our mezzanine lending programme  Assets under
management Increased to C$2 Obn compared with C$1 7bn
In 2010 Our financial capacity 1s sirong, allowang scope

for repeated reinvestment when the time 13 rght

Strategic focus

Qur strategy is to focus on urban centres with the greatest
potential for growth These cities have strong economic
foundations, in services rather than manufacturing, good
transportation, and expanding, well-educated populations
The ‘Emerging Trends In Real Estate® 2012 report from the
Urban Land Institute vindicated our geographic choices

In the rankings our primary markets came 1st 1n the US
{Washington, DC), 3rd in the US (San Francisco), 2nd 1n
Canada (vancouver) and 3rd in Canada (Calgary), whtle
our secondary markets of Seattle, Los Angeles and
Chicago came in 6th, 9th and 21st respectively

we have specialist capabilities in several sectors, namely
retall, restdential, industrial, office and hotel expertise —
the mix varies from city to city We have made a strategic
decision to put more emphasis on residential property,
particularly at the hugh end of the market

Long term we aim to have 20% of our capital In
development activities and 80% in income-producing
investments Jont ventures on individual projects are
important to us as a way of sharing and diversifying risk
We work hard to ahgn expectations and to build the trust
required for efficient and effective partnerships

we have a similar long-term approach to relationships
in our mezzanine lending programme We focus on

“Qur team 1s currently very active,
having acquired prime development
sites 1n all of our major markets
With new projects underway, we
are able to expand responsibilities
and encourage innovation ”

Ryan Beechinor
Chief Development Officer

experienced developers who can withstand changing
conditions in the operating envirgnment We continue to
bring co-investment partners into our mezzanine lending
programme for specific projects

Market conditions

The nation’s economic expansion was unusually pressured

In 2011 — most notably by splking commodity prices, global
supply chain disruption, senal financial market turmoil due
to the Eurozone's sovereign debt problems, Congressional
brinksmanship, and the September downgrade of the US's
AAA credit rating In response, the US economy grew weakly
in the first half of the year and progressively strengthened
during the second half

Thus far, both the economy and banking system in the
USA continue to recover from the recession Employment
has been nising, inflation has been decreasing and

both consumer and business confidence are Improving
Economists now assign only one in four odds that the

US economy will suffer a ‘double-dip’ recession in 2012

The Canadian economy remained remarkably strong It was
impacted by several exogenous shocks in eariy 2011, both
directly and via 1ts close links with the US economy Internal
growth and renewed strength in its major trading partner
will support steady, moderate expansion

From a market fundamentals standpoint, our four primary
real estate sectors in the US have stabilised and — with
the exception of retail — registered several guarters

of improvement

Canadian commercial real estate markets continued to
benefit from economic growth and rising employment levels
All major property types are experiencing improvement

Investment and development highhghts
In thus cimate, there have been more development
than investment opportunities

We made six significant acquisitions We executed an
option to acquire a two-acre site at 8415 Fenton Street,
Silver Spring, Maryland, whech we will take through the
entitlement process i 2012, to create a mixed-use rental
apartment and retall building — expanding our areas of
expertise We acquired two residential assets a 38-unit,
multi-farmily site on Pacific Avenue 1n San Francisco

(see page 38), which will constitute the first residential
development project for our team tn the aity, and Borgata
Apartments, an 83-unit rental commuruty in Renton,
Washington, in our fourth joint venture with Mosaic Homes
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“Over my 10 years with Grosvenor
Americas, I've worked 1n three vibrant
markets — Vancouver, Washington, DC

and Calgary — where I've witnessed
firet-hand our commitment to

developing high-quahity urban projects ”

Michael Ward
Viee President, Developtment

In the commercial sector, we bought a 9.900m? office
property with additional land for develcpment, at 1520
Fourth Street, Calgary, and the 12-acre Campus at Sunrise
in Reston, Virginia — our first mvestment with two new
instituttonal investors

We continued to sell properties that do not fit our current
strategy for example, our South Pomnt Village development
site in the vancouver suburb of Surrey, BC, and a further
part of our investment portfoho in Old Town Alexandria, VA

We moved to the next stage on several projects At the
Ambleside site on Marine Drive in West Vancouver (see
page 38), we worked closely with the civic authorities
with a view to completing the site assembly and zoning
in 2012 The development Is a significant component of
the revitalisation of the civic heart of West Vancouver

In July, we started construction of our 135-unit residential
development Drake, in Calgary, taking advantage of

low constructton costs, and continued our pre-sales
programme, reaching 53% at the year end

Other projects passed significant milestones 15 West

in North Vancouver (see page 39) received unanimous
local council support for its zoning, and the marketing
presentation centre opened m November, at Distnict, 14th
Street, Washington, DC, we started on site (see page 39),
and at our North 40 mixed-use development site in Los
Gatos, CA, our option structure and strong relationship
with the property owner is allowing us to effectively work
with the community to refine the vision for this premier
Siicon valley location

During the year our exposure to development increased
shghtly to 10 5% (2010 79)

Asset management highlights

Our selection of properties in, predominantly, urban areas
has been borne out by the speed with which we have been
able to re-let where necessary the re-leasing of premises
previously occupred by Borders Books provides telling
examples Qccupancy rates have therefore remamed high
at just below 95% (2010 9490)

in suburban Chicago, we completed a major upgrade

to Rice Lake Square (see page 39), a grocery-anchored
shopping centre that we acquired in 2004 The extensive
refurbishment adds architectural interest, and major site
Improvements iImprove customer accessibility
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Our award-winmng mixed-use development in Vancouver,
The RISE (see page 34), achieved 100% leased status in
2011 and added landscaping accolades to its list of awards,
which included a prestigious Global Award for Excellence
in 2009 from The Urban Land Institute

Operational developments
We were pleased to welcome James E Hyman to the Board
in February

We continue to offer both younger and older staff the
chance of working n new markets Michael Ward moved
from washington, DC, to Calgary lenathan Carr moved from
San Francisco to a new role in Washington, DC, and Mark
Darley, who has managed our Washington office for almost
six years, returns to San Francisco early in 2012, creating an
opportunity for Don Capobres to move from the West to
the East Coast Following Andrew Galbraith’s move to
Grosvenor Fund Management, we merged our investment
and portfolto management teams and promoted Michael
Beattie to Chief Investment Officer Sebastien Hyest moved
to Grosvenor Fund Management and was succeeded as
Vice President, Finance and Operations by Graham Drexel
who rejoined Grosvenor Americas in October Emma
Yendole was promoted to Vice President, Reporting

and Compliance We also recruited a new Director of
Research Eilleen Marrinan

We broadened our banking relationships by partnering
with three new financial institutions for the purpose of
refinanang loans We refinanced four additional loans

with existing partners in the financial sector

2012: strategic priorities

We have three prionties for 2012 First, to attract financial
partners for our development projects Second, to

secure the planning entitlements that would allow us

to maximise the potential of those projects Third, to
decide when to commit to thewr construction and marketing
We will continue to moritor closely the pricing of ncome
properties that we might acquire in ine with our strategy

2012: market outlook

Although there Is construction activity in all our markets,
it 1s generally at significantly lower levels than before the
downturn This means we are more likely to be able to
start projects at the optimum moment, early in the next
property cycle
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“1645 Pacific Avenue sits between

the grand old residences of Paafic

Heights and Nob Hall, yet benefits

from the vibrant retaihng at

Russian Hill Our design 18 inspired

by the timeless and elegant hving

associated with these classic San
Francisco neighbourhoods

Steve O Connell

Development Manager

Grosvenor Americas
Assets under management

C$1,975m
C$1.833m

Development

C$142m

1645 Pacific Avenue

City San FranQisco

Country  USA

Sector Mixed-use
residential and retail

Type Development

Area 4 800n?

Ownership Wholly owned

1645 Pacific Avenue 1s a weli-located
condominium project in the vibrant and
supply-constramed northern waterfront
area of San Francisco with excellent
urban amenities within walking

distance The LEED® development will
offer views of the Golden Gate Brnidge
and San Franqisco Bay

This 15 a computer generated image

Ambleside

City west vancouver

Country Canada

Sector Mixed-use
residential and retail

Type Development

Area 25 000m?

Ownership  Wholly owned

We purchased all the private land for
this waterfront site in off-market
transactions and are negotiating with
the District of West Vancouver to
acquire addiional adjoining properties
to complete the full-block assembly
During 2011, we involved the public
In a co-design process to inform a
comprehensive plan for this block,
whichwill serve as the gateway to
West vancouver and the Ambleside
neighbourhood We expect to submit
are-zoning application in June 2012
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“At 15 West, we recognised an
opportunity to develop an
environmentally friendly building
mn an area rch in amenities In
support of our commitment to
‘Living cities’ we have included
green roofs, community pardens,
a centralised heating plan, and
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“With District, we have tried to
create & project that complements
the diversity and energy of the
surrounding area The 14th Street
corridor 1 one of the most exciting

an energy-effictent building urban neighbourhoods 1n the
envelope 1n our design ” nation’s capital ”
Michael Mortensen Jonathan Carr
Semor Development Manager Development Manager

District

City Washington, DC

Country UsA

Sector Mixed-lise Rice Lake Square

residential and retail City Wheaton
15 West Type Developgnent Country  USA
City North vancouver grea h }lln(irIOm ned Sector Retall
Country  Canada wnership oty owne Type Investment
Sector Mixed-use Distnct Is a mixed-use residential/retail Area 23.400m
residential and retail development in the vibrant 14th Street Ownership Jaintly owned

Type Developr?ent nerghbourhood of washington, Dﬁ Thle The makeover of Rice Lake Square was
Area 12,200m project will feature six residential levels substantially completed i October
Ownership lointly owned Egg;?é”g‘fogf-r’taopﬁgﬁeg‘;nzfl'tgg-‘ésmz 2011, on time and below the approved
with our development partner Citrmark, ' P I 8 : budget By enhancing the facade and

of ground floor retail space #tis due to ndertaking ext " k th
we have re-zoned this site for 120 b leted 1n October 2012 undertaking extensive site work, the
condominium residences and 700m? € comp retail centre was transformed imto a
of retail space with transport routes shopping destination that offers an
nearby The project includes green This 1 a computer generated image outstanding apportunity for national
design, green roofs and energy and regional retailers
conservation measures, density
transfers from an adjacent site, and
a density bonus for dedicating five
apartments to a non-profit organisation
that helps indmduals with disabalities to
live independently
This 1s a computer generated image
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Grosvenor Americas

Board of Directors

As at 15 March 2012

Non-Executive Directors

Brandt C Louie oec Lo rea (Chairman) was
appointed Chairman of the Grosvenor Amernias
Board in March 2010 He 1s Charrman and CEQ
of K Loule Co Limited and Chairman of the
Board for London Drugs Ltd He 1s Chancellor
emeritus of Simon Fraser University and serves
as a board member officer or trustee of
nudmerous organisations including Royal

Bank of Canada 16A Canada World Economic
Forum Duke University Medical Center Duke
Heart Center Yancouver Cemmunity College
vancouver Board of Trade Fraser Institute and
Harvard Unuversity s John F Kennedy School

of Government

James E Hyman was apponted to the Board

in February 2011 He has more than 25 years of
experience In nternational business teadership
He 15 currently President and CEO of Testamenica.
Prior to that he was Chairman President CEO
and a Drrector of Cornelt Companies Earlier he
held executive positions in the US and Europe
with FTI Starwood Hotels & Resorts worldwide
GE Capital McKinsey & Cempany and JP Morgan
among cthers He chairs the non-profit Mega-
Cities Project focused on urban development
55ues In the world s largest cities

E John Y Roberts, Ir was appointed to the

Board in October 2010 Mr Roberts has more
than 25 years of experience in the commerdial
rezl estate Industry having serveg most recently
as President of AMB Capital Partrers Before
that he served as Senior Vice President and
Director of Capital Markets for AMB Property
Corparation Earlwer i his career he held
pasitions at Amentech Pension Trust tn Chicago
Richard Ellis In¢ and L) Hooker International
Realty He currently 15 a 8oard member of DuPont
Fabros Technology

Mark Preston wrics (Group Chiel Executive)
joined Grosvenor inthe UKn 1989 Seconded
{0 Hong Kong 1n 1595 he returned to lead our
fund management cperations in 1967 spent
four years in San Frangisco from 2002 became
Chief Executive of Grosvenos Britain & Ireland
in 2006 and Group Chuef Executrve in 2008

He 15 3 Non-Executive Director of both Sonae
Sierra SGPS and Persimmon plc He s also a
member of the Board of The Association of
Foreign Investors in Real Estate the (University
of) Cambridge Land Economy Agwvisory Board
and the Eurchypo Intecnational Advisory Beard

H Nicholas Scartes rea atrorner at Law (Group

Finance Director) joined Grosvenor in 2004

He was previpusly at Centrica Price Waterhouse
and{oopers and Lybrand Heis a Governor of
the Haberdashers Elstree Schools Member

of the Court of Assistants of the Haberdashers
Livery Company and a Non-Executive Director
of Sonae Sierra SGPS

Executrve Directors

n Andrew Bibby (Chief Executive) joined Grosvenor

In 1984 He 15 a past Director of the Real Property
Assoaation of Canada and a past member of the
Faculty advisory Board of the Sauder School of
Business at the University of British Columbia

Rekha Pate! cea (Finance Director} joined

Grosvenor in 2003 following 12 years with the
real estate investment asm of GIC Real Estate
the Singaporean sovereign wealth fund She s
a member of Commercial Real Estate Women
and aDirector of the Yerba Buena Center for
the Arts
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Grosvenor Americas
Investment properties
Passng Running Reversionary Nurmber of Grosvenor Assers under
rent ERV yield yield properties share  management
Csm Cc$m % 9% C$m sm
Office 130 134 B1 83 4 1610 3467
Retail 341 403 60 71 23 5711 10699
Residentsal 156 174 78 87 9 2000 2207
Hotel 27 27 172 172 1 158 630
Industrial 74 78 56 59 1 1325 1325
28 816 67 76 38 10804 18328
Development properties
Number of Grosvenor ASSRLS unger
properties share  management
tsm C4m
Mixed-use 5 554 705
Residential 3 287 577
8 841 128 2
Geographic analysis
Grosvenor share
Financial ASseLs under
Investment Develogpment assets Total management
sm cém ctm Ctm ctm
usa 7628 255 71 7954 14820
Canada 3176 58 6 72 3834 4933
10804 841 143 11788 19753
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Portfolio
Continued

Property Des¢ription Locatwon Areamt
Investment properties — directly owned
Retail
DVC Plaza Community shopping centre Pleasant Hill CA USA 1B 100
Hamilton Marketplace Grocery-anchored community shopping centre Novata, CA, USA 8,400
La Colennade Three-storey, mixed-use building with retail

and office space Beverly Hills, CA, USA 2,300
Los Gatos Village Square Two-storey grocery-anchored community shopping

centre with retail and shoppmg space Los Gatos, CA, USA 4,300
Venator Bullding Urban retail building Calgary AB Canada 2500
Westgate West Community shopping centre San lose, CA, USA 21,700
Residential
Bluwater 152-unit apartment commurity Silver Lake WA USA 13,000
Chelsea at Juanita Village 196-urit apartment community Kirkland, WA USA 16700
Peloton 15Q0-unit apartment community Redmond, WA USA 11,800
Industral
Annacis Business Park Warehouse and distribution park Vancouver BC Canada 86000
Mixed-use
1520 Fourth Street Ten-storey office bulding with 2 200m¥ retail Calgary, AB, Canada 9900
tnvestment properties — jointly owned
Hotel
Courtyard by
Marrigtt Chevy Chase 226-room hotel Chevy Chase, MD, USA 7.000
Offtce
Carlyle Gateway 1 & Il Two six-storey office bulldings with ground floor

retail and parking Alexandria, VA, USA 23,200
1701 Pennsylvania Avenue NW  12-storey office bullding with ground floor

retail and parking Washington DC USA 18,000
Retail
Broadmead Village
Shopping Center Community shepping centre Saanich BC, Canada 11 800
Campus at Sunrise Three low-nise office buildings Reston, VA USA 23600
Church Street Plaza Community lifestyle centre Evanston, IL, USA 16,500
Coventry Hills Shopping Center  Community shoppeng centre Calgary. AB Canada 12600
Frontter Drive Metro Center Community shopping centre Sprngfield vA USA 2,800
High Street Suburban street-front retail bullding Surrey, BC Canada 1600
830 North Michigan Avenue Six-storey urban retall bullding Chicago, iL, USA 11,700
308-310 North Rodeo Drive Urban retaill buslding Beverly Hifls CA, USA 1,400
Rice Lake Square Nine-building community shopping centre Wheaton, 1L, USA 23,400
wesTech village Corner Cemmunity shopping centre Silver Spring, MD, USA 3,800
Residential
Ascent 90-unit apartment community Kirkland WA USA 7.000
Borgata Apartments 83-umit apartment community Renton Wa, LISA 8700
Northshore Townhouses 86-unit apartment community Kenmore, WA USA 11 600
Sancerre 140-umit apartment community Kirkland wa uSa 10 500
West Ridge Apartment Homes 239-unit apartment communmity Seattle, WA UISA 21900
Woodcreek Apartment Homes 164-unit apartment community Lynwood WA USA 15,500
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Property Cescriptan Locatien Area m?
Investment properties — jointly owned (continued)
Mixed-use
180 Post Street Three-storey mixed-use buillding with
retal} ang office space San Francisco, CA, USA 2,700
185 Post Street Six-storey mixed-use building with
retal and office space San Francisco, CA, USA 1,900
251 Post Street Six-storey mixed-use building with
retall and office space San Francisco, CA, USA 3,100
Dupont Circle properties Six-building urban retail portfolio washington DC, USA 9,000
Friendship Heights properties Three-building urban retail portfolio Washington DC/
Chevy Chase, MD, USA 24,800
The RISE Mixed-use shopping centre development
with 92 {ive-work rental lofts Vancouver, BC, Canada 26 400
Woodley Park properties Three-building urban retail portfolio Washington DC USA 5100
Completion
Property Destrption Location Area m? date
Principal devetopment and trading properties — wholly owned
Restdential
Drake 135-umit, multi-family development in pre-sales phase  (algary, AB, Canada 10,000 2013
1645 Pacific Avenue 38-unit luxury condominium with
underground parking San Francisco CA USA 4 800 2014
Mixed-use
Amblestde Full waterfront block residential-retail re-zoning in the  Vancouver BC, Canada 25,000 2015-2017
public process phase
Fenton Street 256-umt, multi-family development with 2 500m2
retal in the pre-entitlement phase Silver Spring, MD, USA 21800 Not
determined
North 40 32 5-acre phased mixed-use village development in the Los Gatos CA, USA 100000 2014-2020
Specific Plan phase
Principal development and trading properties — jointly owned
Residential
15 West 115-unut, muiti-family development in pre-sale phase  North vancouver BC
Canada 12,200 2014-2015
Mixed-use
5th Avenue 319-unit multi-family development featuring Not
two high-rise towers Calgary, AB, Canada 30,300 determtned
District 125-umit mixed-use development with 1,800m? of retall Washington DC, LISA 11100 2012




Roppong Arents, Tokyo, Japan

with the Roppong) Arents acquisition,
we mamtain our strategy of luxury
residential investment and
development 1n Asia's leading aties




Grosvenor Annuat Report 2011 www grosvenor com

Proprietary assets — direct Grosvenor Asia Pacific

Grosvenor Asia Pacific

Nicholas Loup
Chief Executive

Business objective

Grosvenor Asia Pacific’s aim is three-fold first, to build a luxury
residential brand under the Grosvenor banner, differentiated by the
quality and internationalism of its design, secondly, to grow a diversified
portfolio 6f core investments in this and other sectors through
co-investment partnerships, and thirdly, to identify prime central
bustness district development opportunities in Shanghal and Beljing,
creating high-gquality, long-term investments

45

What we said we would do in 2011

= identify a first project for our
multi-region residential development
partnership with a sovereign
wealth fund

= Grow our portfolio of investment
properties as a significant proportion
of revenue

m Continue to build brand recognition for
our luxury residential developments

What we did in 2011

m Completed acquisition of Roppong
Arents — the first project for our
residential development partnership

m Effecuvely paced our core investment
programme n Japan and Ching, given
market conditions

m Sold the penthouse at The Westminster
Terrace, Hong Kong, for a market-
leading price

Highlhights

Revenue profit

HK$154.8m

2010- HK$92.6em (restated)

Total return

8.0%

2010~ 4 5% (restatad)

Number of assets by aity
China

I} Hong Korg 2

D shanghai 2

Japan

[ osaka 1

B 1okvo 4




Grosvenor Annual Report 2011 www grosvenor com

46 Proprietary assets — direct Grosvenor Asia Pacifie

2011 exceeded our expectations
for performance. We are investing
again in the Japanese market and
are well placed to take advantage
of opportunities in China and
Hong Kong.

Commentary on key performance indicators

Revenue profit was HK$154 8m, up 67% on 2010

(HK$92 6m) Total returns increased significantly to
80% (2010 45%) Assets under management mcreased
to HK$7,573m (2010 HK$5,647m) with strong capital
growth registered at PCCW Tower, Hong Kong We have
the financial capacizy te meet our vestment plans

Strategic focus

Qur strategy Is to grow revenue profits through expanding
our core investment portfalio i office and retall, partly
through joint ventures, and te increase our trading profits
through development partnerships, primarily in the luxury
residential sector

We expect to increase our allocation to value-add and
development activities from 5% to 13% over 20122016, In
arder to Increase the frequency and scale of trading profits

Over the year our share of the Group’s total capital
allocation increased from 6 8% to 7 2%

Market conditions

Conditions 1n our markets have been broadly as expected
Desptte negative growth at -0 9% for 2011, Japan begana
gradual property market recovery following the March 2011
earthquake and tsunami In China, where growth in gross
domestic product dechined to a still very respectable 9 296
for the year, the government squeeze on credit led to
pressure on the residential market Hong Kong, in step with
Beljing policy and with 5% growth for 2011, saw transaction
volumes fall, especially at the high end

Investment and development highhights

The most significant change in our portfolio was the
acquisition of Roppongi Arents, Tokyo (see pages 44 and
47) This s the first project for the multi-region partnership
we commutted to in 2010, to develop high-end restdential

properties around the Pacific Rim, the deal was made In
a joint venture with two private Hong Kong investors and
a sovereign wealth fund, and takes our developrent
pipeline to HK$1,988m

in January, we sold the Penthouse at The Westminster
Terrace, Hong Kong (see page 47), for HK$162 8m, the
highest price for an apartment in the New Territories

Asset management highlights

Our 50% Interest in PCCW Tower, Island East, Hong Kong,
which we acquired in 2010, continued to perform well
Managed by our partners, Swire Properties, it has delivered
above target rental and ended the year 100% let

In China, our apartment bulding at Chester Court, Guber,
Shanghay, also performed strongly, being 99% let at
31 December 2011

Overall accupancy levels in Asia Pacific were 97%
(2010 91%0)

Operational developments

We strengthened our senior management team

by appointing William Lo to the newly created role
of Chief Operating OFficer and Christopher Ip as his
successor as Finance Director (Joining our Board in
March 2012) Junho Lee jomned us in January 2012
as Business Development Director

We completed an agreement with the China Development
Research Foundation to sponsor a research project into
the provision of sustainable low income housing in

China, the country plans to build 36 mullion low cost
homes by 2015 — the largest soctal housing project

of Its kind (see Chief Executive Review, page 11}

2012: strategic priorities

Our focus in 2012 will be on investing the capital raised

for our residential development partnershrp and deploying
remaining proprietary capital in investment opportunities

2012: market outlook

From a cychcal standpoint, 2011 was a good year to start
investing agan in Tokyo, we expect the cycle to come nto
focus again in China and Hong Kong during 2012, where
medium-term fundamentals are robust
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“We believe we made the Roppong
Arents acquisition at the rght point
m the economic and property cycle -
the point at which the medium-term
outlook began to improve ”

Koshiro Hoos
Managng Drrecter
Chief Representative Japan
Grosvenor Asia Pacific
Assets under management
Total
HK$7,573m
Investment
HK$5,585m
Development
HK$1,988m
The Westminster Terrace
ity Hong kong
Ro ne Arents Country China
PPOnEL Sector Residential
City Tokyo Type Development
Country  Japan Area 16 300m?
Sector Residential Ownership Jointly owned
Type Development
Avea 21.700m? The Westminster Terrace, our
Ownership Jointly owned JoInt venture with Asia Standard
International Group Limited, remains
Our investment In Roppong! Arents in one of the prime luxury residences In
Qctober 2011 contributes to a sigmficant Hong Kong s New Territories During a
shift in the overall balance of our difficult year in the hugh end property
portfolto, which 1s now less weighted market, the quality of the product
to the office sector The property n & offering led 1o the sale of 10 units
quiet, green area next to the Roppongl with a combined value of HK$532 3m
Hills redevelopment, comprises 99 13 of the 59 units remained as at
luxury uruts We plan to add value 31 December 2011, and the completion
through the quality of our design and of two new show flats at the end of
finishes as well as through energetic the year ensured a strong start to
asset management salesn 2012
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Grosvenor Asia Pacific

Board of Directors

As at 15 March 2012

Non-Executive Directors

Tim Freshwater (Chairman} joined the Board

n July 2008 He 15 vice Chairman of Goldman
sachs Asiz From 2001-2004 he was Chairman
of Investment Banking in As1a and was Chawrman
of tardine Flemng pnor 1o that Previously he
spent 29 vears with Slaughter and May Tim 15 a
director of several listed companies including
Swire Pacific and s a Director of the Community
Chesi of Hong Kong

Kensuke Hotta was appointed to the Board in
Hovember 2008 He s currently Chasrman of
Greenhill & Co JapanLtd and previously served
as Charman of Morgan Stanley Japan from
2001-2007 Prigr to that be was Deputy
President of Surmitomo Bank and alse worked
for Japan s Ministry of Finance for two years

He has served as a director or adwiser for varous
Instiiutions universities and foundations

Michael Lee (otned the Board in July 2008 Heis
Managing Director of MAP Capitai Ltd aswell as
an independent Non-Executsve Director of Chen
Hsong Holdings Ltd Hong Kong Exchanges and
Cleaning Ltd and Trinity Ltd He was Managing
Director of Hysan Development Company Ltd
from 2003-2007 and was appointed to the
Board of Hysan as a Non-Executive Direcior

n January 2010

Morman Lyle oee was appointed to the Board In
November 2008 He 15a Non-Executive Director
of Standard Chartered Bank {Hong Kong} Ltd
and Msheireb Properties He was Group Finance
Director of Jardine Mathesen Holdings Ltd until
his retirement in 2005 and prior 1o this worked
for Zeneca Group Pic and IC} Pic where he was
Group Treasurer and worked in the UK Kenya
and Malaysia

H wmark Preston umcs (Group Chief Executive)

jomned Grosvenor inthe UK In 1989 Seconded

to Hong Kong n 1995 he returned to lead gur
fund management operations sn 1967 spent four
years In 5an Francisco from 2002 became Chief
Executive of Grosvenos Britain & Irefand in 2006
and Group Chief Executive In 2008 Heisa Non-
Executive Direcior of both Sonae Sierra SGPS ang
Persmmon plc He 1S also a member

of the Board of The Assoaiation of Foreign
Investors in Real Estate the (University of)
Cambridge Land Economy Adwisory Board

and the Eurohypo International Advisory Board

A Nichotas Scarles rea aimorney ar Law (Group

Finance Director) jouned Grosvenor in 2004

He was previously at Centrnica Price Waterhouse
and Coopers and Lybrand He 15 a Gevernor of
the Haberdashers Elstree Schools Member of
the Court of Assistants of the Haberdashers
Livery Company and @ Non-Executive Director
of Sonae Sierra SGPS

Executive Directors

Nicholas Loup {Chief Executive) establ:shed

the operauon in Asia Paciiic 1n 1994 He 15 a
Director of Asia Standard a listed company

0 Hong Kong a General Committee member
of the Bnitish Chamber of Commerce and

a Director of the Spinal Cord Injury Fund

He 15 aiso Charrman of ANREV of which

he 15.a founder member a member of the
Asia Paoific Acquisiions Committee of the
Tate and a member of the world Economic
Forum s Global Agenda Councd on Real Estate

3 walliarm La reoa cra {Chief Operatng Officer)
|oined Grosvenor tn 2002 as Finance Director
responsible for driving performance and

operatonal efficiencies of Grosvenar Asia Pacific

Before joining Grosvenor he worked for 11 years
with AlA Capital Corporation as Finance Diregtor
for theregion and six years with Coopers and
Lybrand i Hong Kong

K2 chnstopher 1p (Finance Director) jomned
Grosvenor in March 2012 after seven years
wath the Jardine Matheson Group where he
was Finance Director of several companies
He wis Executrve Derector of Hopewell Highway
Infrasiruciure between 2003 and 2005 and
prior o that was 1n the mergers and acquisitions
divisions of Morgan Stanley and Devtsche Bank
in Hong Kong

Koshiro Hirei (Managing Director Chief
Representative Japan) joined Grasvener I
2001 as Chvef Representative and led the
growth of the business in Japan he joined
the Board of Grasvenor Asia Pacific in janyary
2011 Before joining Grosvener he worked for
Amencan private fund Lonre Star Group and
Takyo Tatemono
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Investment properties
Passing Runming Reversionary Number of Grosvenor Assets under
rent ERV yield wield properties. share  management
HK$m HKEm L % HK$m HK$m
Office 1361 1307 46 4 4 3 29805 29805
Retail 187 204 54 59 1 3488 0975
Residential 477 543 50 57 3 9557 18518
2025 2054 47 48 7 42850 55298
Development and trading properties
Number of Grosvenar Assets under
Properties share management
HK$M HKEm
Residential 2 3098 16879
Geographic analysis
Grosvenor share
Assets under
Financial management
Investment Development assels Total Total
HK$m HKim HK$m HKIM HKEmM
Hong Kong 24650 1388 555 2,6893 28281
China 6570 - - 6570 6570
Japan L1330 i710 - 13040 40881
42850 3098 555 46503 75732
Praperty Descrepbion {oraton Area m?
Investment properties — directly owned
office
Yoshiyasu Kanda Busdding Office bullding in Chiyoda-ku Tokyo, Japan 5000
Shinsen Bullding Office bullding In Shibuya-ku Tokyo Japan 2800
Residential
Chester Court at Gubei High-end serviced apartment bulding i Gubel Shanghal China 13 800
Grosvenor Place at Three units in a luxury residential apartment
Lakeville Regency building n Jingan Shanghal, China 970
Investment properties — jointly owned
Office
PCCW Tower Office building in Quarry Bay Hong Kong China 57600
Retail
Nakaza Curdaore Building Retail property in Chuo-ku Osaka, Japan 8700
Residential
Grosvenor Place, Kamizono-cho  Residential development in Shibuya-ku Tokyo fapan 18,100
Completion
Property Description Location Area m? dare
Development and trading propertres — jointly owned
Residential
Roppongi Arents Residential property in Minato-ku Tokyo, Japan 21700 2003
The Westminster Terrace Residential development in Yan Kam Tau Hong Kong, Chima 16,300 2009
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Proprietary assets — indirect

pmpr.eta_m& . Grosvenor invests indirectly in property in a
assets — indire number of ways.

We have been a co-investor in Grosvenor
investment partnerships and funds since
1976. We currently have co-investments in

19 investment vehicles managed by Grosvenor
Fund Management — six in the UK, four in
the US, four in Continental Europe, four in
Asia and one international fund.

We also have indirect investments in property,
managed by third parties. Our largest indirect
investment is our shareholding in Sonae Sierra,
a shopping centre specialist whose sector focus
and geographical reach complements our own.
We first invested in Sonae Sierra in 1996 and
since then have twice increased that holding:
we now control 50% of the company.

Our indirect portfolio is managed centrally by a
small team in the Grosvenor Holding Company
based in our London office.
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Shopping Metropole, Sao
Bernardo do Campo, Brazil

In 2011 Sonae Sierra expanded and
refurbished this 31 year old shopping
centre, which 15 one of 101t has

in Brazi!
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Indirect investments

53

Business objective

There are two aims for our indirect investment activity

we seek to align Grosvenor's interests with those of the other investors in
invesiment vehicles managed by Grosvenor Fund Management Co-investment
1n these investment vehicles 1s fundamental to our approach to this part of

our business, reflecting our commitment to long-term partnership

We also help Grosvenor diversify its overall partfolio, thereby improving
the Group’s risk-adjusted returns We achieve this by investing in mvestment
vehicles run by Grosvenor Fund Management as welt as other real estate
opportunities run by third party managers This portfolic complernents the
direct property investments through Grosvenor's proprietary Operating
Companies and gives us exposure to sectors, countries and mvestment
types which those businesses do not provide

What we said we would do in 2011 What we did n 2011

m Centralise the management of our m Established a central team and
co-investments In Grosvenor funds governance structure for managing our

w Clarify capital available and the criteria 8obal portfolio of indirect investments
for our co-investment in Grosvenor m Agreed policy for the scale of and
funds parameters for our co-tnvestment in

m Articulate an indirect Investments Grosvenor funds
strategy @ Formulated our indirect investments

strategy and began its implementation

Highhghts

Revenue profit

£59.1m

2010- £46.4m

Total return

3.0%

20106 5%

Number of investments by region

O Australa
O Brazl*
M china
[ Continental Europe
A lapan
@ ux
UsA
Internanonal

—_i O N e

*Exposure to Brazil 5 through the
investment n Sonae Siema which
15 also 1 Continenzal Europe.
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2011 was a good inaugural year

for our newly aggregated indirect
investment portfolio, which

totals £817.2m of equity invested.

It delivered positive returns across
uncertain markets, with a strong
contribution from income, balancing
more capital-dependent returns
produced elsewhere within

the Group.

Commentary on key performance indicators

The portfolio delivered a total return of 3 0% in 2011,

with an underlying income return of 4 1% offset by capital
reductions of 1 19 This compares with a global REIT index
return of -5 1% for the same period

Office and residential investments performed comparatively
well during the vear, but capital growth in these investments
was more than offset by challenging conditions, particulasly
In the UK and in southern Europe

Revenue profit was £59 1Im for the year, with £46 Om
contributed by Sonae Sierra and £13 Im by investments
managed by Grosvenor Fund Management

Strategic focus

The Group Board agreed our indirect investment strategy
In June 2011, with 26% of Group equity (adjusted for
deferred tax) allocated to this area

Investments managed by Grosvenor Fund Management
Qur co-investment in Grosvengr investment vehicles
reassures other investors that Grosvenor’s interests

are aligned with their own — a principle we regard as
fundamental Furthermare, it gives us indirect investment
exposure outside that which 1s accessible through our
direct proprietary businesses

“We have 24 investments with a
share of assets across 14 different
countries, giving us a great breadth
of real estate exposure ”

Chns Taite
Group Investment Director

As a single Grosvenor Fund Management client with a single
aggregated co-investment portfolio, we can better instil
two important internal disciplines first, of centralising
responsibility for this part of our global indirect investment
portfolio in much the same way as do the other investors
that we sit alongside; and second, of dispassionately
appraising each co-mvestment, and judging Grosvenor Fund
Management's success in preserving and adding value to
existing investments as our service provider

The Group has several historic investments and jomt
ventures in Continental Europe and Australia, where

we no longer have proprietary Operating Companies
These assets are presently held in our indirect investment
portfolio We outsource their management to Grosvenor
Fund Management as separate accounts

Investments (n other companies and investments
managed by third parties

Our strategy for further indirect investment in real

estate 1s to target growth opporturuties that are not
availabie to us directly through our proprietary Operating
Companies We currently achieve this through our 38 7%
(509 controlled) investment in Sonae Sierra, and plan to
expand this portfolio with new investments managed by
other third parties

Market conditions

The relatively tugh yield of our mdirect investment

portfolio positions it well given our caution about the market
outlook Together with the more stable core investments,
which continue to deliver solid tncome through difficult
economi¢ times, the unusual market conditions are creating
interesting investment opportunities on which we

can capitalise

Investment highlights

Investments managed by Grosvenor Fund Management
At year end, £504 9m of Grosvenor equity was held

In 19 investment vehicles, managed by Grosvenor

Fund Management
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“In tandem with our work on
global cities and the fast-evolving
retail landscape, we are keen to
understand opportunities for
growth 1n the logstics sector”

Graham Parry
Grosvenor Britam & Ireland
Research Drrector

During the year, we committed capital to three new
investment vehicles US Healthcare Venture, Grosvenor
Office London Partnership, and Grosvenor European Retail
Partnership (see page 62) We also approved in principle
co-investments in a number of new investment vehicles
planned for 2012, for which Grosvenor Fund Management
15 now seeking other investor commitments

Investments in other companies and investments
managed by third parties

At year end, £312 3m was invested 1n Sonae Sierra,

which has shopping centre investments and developments
covering six Continental European countries as well as
almost a third of its equity in Braail

During 2011, Sonae Sierra completed the Initial Public
Offering of Sonae Sierra Brazil, sold two Spanish shopping
centres and, through the Sterra Fund, became the sole
owner of a third, commenced construction at two new
Brazilian shopping centres, announced a development joint
veniure with MAB 1n Germany, and significantly expanded
its third party development and management business,
including new agreements in Algeria, Croatia and Morocco

Portfolio changes

There was hittle overall movement in the geographic and
sector make-up of the portfolio The largest sector exposure
Is to retail, making up 60 4% of total equity, this 1s down
from 62 7% ai the beginning of the year, reflecting the

net valuation falls felt in this sector across the UK and
Continental Eurcpe Office nvestments represent 31 4%

of the porifolio with the balance of 8 2% allocated to
residential, mixed-use and other investments

The valuation falls in southern European retall have had
the effect of reducing our overall exposure to Continental
Europe from 31 9% to 30 5% By contrast, in the UK,
relatively stronger office and residential markets provided
a balance to the performance of the retail portfolio, with
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“Centralising our fund
co-1nvestments enables us
to manage this global portfolio
of 1nvestments more effectively,
and pesitions us well to support
the future growth of Grosvenor
Fund Management ”

Tim Budden
Group Investments Finance Drector

the result that the UK’s share of the total portfolio remained
steady at 28 0% After Continental Europe and the UK, the
three Austrahan oifice assets represent the next largest
equity exposure within the portfohio at 20 0%, followed

by Brazil at 15 1%

Elsewhere, equity has increased in the USA, China and
Japan, through a combination of asset performance
and acquisitions

Operational developments
We introduced a new management reporting process for
our indirect investments porifolio from the first quarter

we agreed the terms of reference for our Group Investment
Committee, which 1s responstble for indirect investment
decisions 1t comprises the Group Chief Executive, Mark
Preston, the Group Finance Director, Nick Scarles, the
Grosvenor Britain & reland Research Director, Graham
Parry, and, where appropriate, the Chief Executive of the
proprietary Operating Company of the relevant region
Investment recommendations to the Commuttee and
day-to-day decision-making are the responsibility of
Chris Taite, who was apposnted Group Investment
Director on 1 January 2011

2012. strategic priorities

n 2012, we will seek new investment opportunities with
Grosvenor Fund Management and with specialist third-party
management teams m order to increase diversification and
returns within our indirect investment portfolio We will also
continue to improve our benchmarking and the way we
evaluate our own performance as an investment manager
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Proprietary assets — indirect
Portfolio

Portfolio
Property
assets Equaty
£€m m
By category Managed by Grosvenor Fund Management 9905 5049
Sonae Sierra 14303 3123
24208 8172
By sector Office 4719 2643
Retay 1,8777 5083
Residential 689 468
Other 23 216
Unallocated* - (23 8)
24208 8172
By region Australia 2528 166 8
Brazil 2435 125 4
China 210 76
Contnental Europe 13841 2533
lapan 522 221
UK 416 4 2325
USA 508 240
Unallocated* - (14 5)
24208 8172
By activity tnvestment 2,215 2 808 2
Development 2056 328
Unallocated* - (23 8)
24208 8172
*Unallocated equity represents loans from the Holding Company that are not allocated to a specific sector raglon or activity
Praperty assets represent the Groua s share of properties as included in the consohdated financial statements including assets attributable to minarity
interests Equity represents the Group s economic Interest i investments
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Investments
Location Sactor
Investments managed by Grosvenor Fund Management
Funds
Grasvengr Capital Advisors Partnership Japan Residential
Grosvenor Diamond Capital — Stable Residential Fund Japan Residential
Grosvenor Festival Place Fund UK Retail
Grosvenor French Retall Investments Continental Europe Retail
Grosvenor Liverpool Fund UK Mixed-use
Grosvenor London Office Fund UK Office
Grosvenor Office Retaill Fund Japan Difice & Retall
Grosvenor Residential Investment Fund UK Residential
Grosvenar Resideniial Investment Partners usa Residential
Grosvenor Retall European Properties Continental Europe Retail
Grosvenor Shopping Centre Fund UK Retall
Grosvenor Vega — China Retail Fund China Retall
ISPT Grosvenor International Property Trust International Dwversified
Shmael US Real Estate Fund usa Office
Clubs
Grosvenor European Retail Partnership Continental Europe Retail
! Grosvenor Hexagone Partnership Conttnental Europe Office
| Grosvenor Office Limited Partnership uK Office
Paris Antiques Market Continental Europe Retall
US Healthcare Venture usa Healthcare
Separate accounts
Bank of Queensland Centre Brishane Australia Office
Confidential mandate usa Office & Retall
400 George Street, Brisbane Australia Office
Omega Il Continental Europe Office
60 Station Street Parramatta, Sydney Australia Office
Investments managed by third parties
Sonae Sierra Continental Europe Retail
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Fund management

Grosvenor has been working in partnership
for over 50 years. We launched our first fund
in 1976 and formally established Grosvenor
Fund Management in 2005.

Grosvenor Fund Management offers a

range of sector and region-specific property
investment vehicles which aim to deliver
attractive, risk-adjusted returns. Operating
from offices in Australia, China, France, Italy,
Japan, Luxembourg, Spain, Sweden, the UK
and the US, we employ 133 professionals with
local knowledge and skills to execute our
strategic investment decisions and create
value for our investors.

We have 69 investor partners in 28 property
funds, club deals and separate accounts.
Aligning our interests with our partners

and building long-term investor relationships
is of paramount importance to us.
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Balsta Centrum, Bilsta, Sweden

we think the fundamentals of the
Swedish market are appealing and in
2011, in partnership with two other
investors, we acquired three shopping
centres in the Stockholm region and a
prime supermarket in Helsingborg
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Jeffrey Weingarten
Chief Executive

Business objective

Grosvenor Fund Management's objective 15 to create value for our investors,
Shareholders and staff We do this by holding firm to the things that make us
distinctive We are a client-foeused business with over 50 years’ experience

of working in partnership, and believe in delivering performance and superior
service We are a private company which treats investors as enduring partners,
and a real estate specialist which combines histary with a desire to innovate
We believe in having highly skilled staff with expertise in their local markets
and we offer a long-term view of iInvestment, yet we always seek to maximise
short-term opportunities

What we said we would do n 2011 what we did in 2011
w Launch four new investment vehicles m Closed four new investment vehictes
m Invest committed but un-invested m Invested £762m of capital

capital m Won the IPD UK Property Investment
m Manage our portfolio actively House of the Year award

Highlights

Property aequisitions

£762m

2010+ £230m

Funds under management

£5.0bn

2010+ £3 8bn

Number of assets by region

D Asia Paciic 43
O continental Europe 81
@ ux 18
B usa 77

Juawadeuew puny
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“We are very excited to continue

mvesting with Grosvenor Fund

Management to expand our portfolio
1nto the US healthcare sector”

Mr Al O Al-Ghannam
Head of the [nternauenal
Real Estate Department,
Kuwait Finence House

Economic uncertainty continued
throughout 2011 and real estate
markets were consequently subdued.
However, such conditions play to our
strengths and, despite the adverse
markets, values were enhanced in
our portfolio and we established

four new investment vehicles.

Commentary on performance

We judge our performance by the satisfaction of our

69 clients with the risk-adjusted returns that we deliver
to them We were delighted to receive the 1PD award for
UK Property investment House of the Year, the second
time Grosvenor Fund Management has won this award
In three years

Funds under management grew from £3 8bn in 2010 to

£5 0bn in 2011 as our lecat teams sourced and acquired
attractive investment opportuntties in their markets,
mvesting over £762m of capital during the year, on behalf
of existing and new clients We also expanded into Austraha
following Group’s decision to achieve exposure to this
market through co-investment rather than proprietary
activity from January 2012 (see Chief Executive’s review,
page 10)

In 2011 we also closed four new investment vehicles with
a combined future investment capacity of over £1bn

We made a revenue loss of £1 6m (2010 profit of £12 5m)
due to a reduced levet of performance fees compared to
2010 and significant investment (n the future capability of
the business We are continuing to make further investment
In gur infrastructure which will probably depress revenue
profit agam in 2012

Strategic focus

Tradstionally our business comprised funds and separate
accounts for indwidual chents, and we continue to see the
long-term opportunities for such vehicles However, 2011
saw increased appetite from instituttonal investors for
smaller club-style vehicfes with tighter governance
structures and increased investor control, and we have
continued to expand our product range to meet these
and other needs of our partners

“We have a long standing mvestor
relationship with Grosvenor,
whach 1s based upon a foundation
of quality fund mapagement
expertise, but also shared corporate
values, integrity, trust and a strong
reputation 1n the property arena ”

Richard Topps

Group Head of Property
NFU Mutual Insurance
Soctety Lamrted

Market conditions

2011 was a challenging year for real estate fund
managers to raise capital The number of new funds
launched globally was at the lowest level since 2003,
according to Pregin research

In property markets, new money continued to flow into
the prime end of specific asset classes, such as the London
office market, that are seen as a safe haven Demand

was generally lower for assets in secondary and

tertiary markets

It was also a year of increased regulatory focus, with the
continuing development of AIFMD, Solvency 1l and Basel
1I1'in Europe and the Dodd Frank Act in the US The private
equity, hedge fund and real estate fund management
industries, with which we are actively involved, are already
responding with highter systems, policies and procedures
and Grosvenor Fund Management has been proactively
updating compliance procedures across our business

Portfolio highhghts

In Continental European retail we launched, with Bouwinvest
and a North American nvestor, the €403m Grosvenor
European Retall Partnership, acquiring a portfolio of six
shopping centres in Sweden and France (see page 60)

In the US, we agreed a US$600m Shariah-complant
partnership with the Kuwart Finance House to invest in
medical offices and patient residenuial facilities — US
Heafthcare Veniure We also acquired the first asset
for the partnership (see page 64)

In Londen offices, we agreed a £200m equity joint venture
with the Canada Pension Plan Investment Board to invest
in value add opportunties in the West End and Midtown

Elsewhere in the UK, we won an asset management
mandate to manage a shopping centre on behalf of a major
bank — an area of business which we believe has potential
to grow

We completed the mvestment programmes for Grosvenor
Residential Investment Partners {in the USA), Grosvenor
French Retail Investments and Grosvenor Vega — China
Retall Fund (see page 65)

We extended the life of Grosvenor London Office Fund
and Grosvenor Capital Advisors Partnership {Japanese
residential property)
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“We expect Grosvenor Fund Management,

as a best-1n-class joint venture partner, to

deliver on a London West End-oriented

investment strategy We believe

Grosvenor Fund Management’s asset

sourcing capabilities and strong active
management expertise ”

Wenzel Hoberg
Managing Dhrector and Head of

Real Estate Investments — Europe,
Canada Pension Plan Investment Board

Asset management highlights

Our average occupancy rates for 2011 were above 90%
across our entire portfohio, indeed in the UK, Grosvenor
Shopping Centre Fund, Grosvenor Festival Place Fund
and Grosvenor Liverpool Fund, occupancy was above
95% throughout the year This compares well with other
UK shopping centres where the average occupancy stood
at 93% in 2011

Occupancy i Grosvenor Office Retall Fund in Japan s much
improved as a result of significant progress at the Joule A
office building, which 1s now 100% leased (see page 65)
Elsewhere, we attracted some exceptional new tenants,
including Samsung and BP to the Omega office park, Madrid,
Spain We also made significant progress at 60 Station
Street, Parramatta, Sydney, for which we assumed
responsihility at the year end, where pre-lettings of 80%
augur well for completion of this office development in
autumn 2012

We continue to manage our debt capital actively, with the
overarching goal of remaining conservative when it comes
to the use of leverage We refinanced or agreed 15 new debt
facilities totalling £1,091m during 2011 through continued
close haison with the 13 banking partners they involved

In May, Liverpool ONE, developed by Grosvenor in 2008 and
now managed by Grosvenor Fund Management, was named
‘Best-of-the-Best’ at the International Counci! of Shopping
Centers’ (1CSC) Vision, Innovation, Value and Achievement
Awards in Las Vegas (see page 64)

Operational developments
2011 saw a significant evolutton of our senor
management team

On 17 March, Jeffrey Weingarten succeeded Stuart Beevor
as Chuef Executive and lames Raynor and Robert Davis were
promoted to their new roles of Chief Investment Officer and
Chief Operating Officer respectively

in the US, we moved from a single Managing Director

to ajoint role Andrew Galbraith, who transferred from
Grosvenor Americas, and Alexia Gottschalch, both jomed
the Board in December In Continental Europe we recruited
Giles Wintle as Managing Director, he jomned the Board in
December In the UK, Richard Barkham, Group Research
Director, jomed the Board in April 2011 In Asia Pacific,
Morgan Laughlin, who joined the Board in January 2011,
took on additional responsibility for Austraha
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“At Bouwinvest we
partner with trustworthy,
knowledgeable real
estate professionals and
orgamsations with an
mstitutional and
sustamable leng-term
investment perspective
In Grosvenor we found
such a partner”

Stephen Tross

Thrector International Investments,
Bouwinvest

Juawadevew pung

Early 1n 2012 we opened an office in Stockholm, to support
our first (nvestments in Sweden

2012: strategic pniorities

we continually communicate with our investors and analyse
reat estate markets areund the world through our local
property and research teams We are exploring new
investment opportunities in four of our markets, including
Tokyo offices and residential, Australian offices, European
retail and an open-ended core fund in the USA In addition,
we are researching global real estate securities products |
(to address investors” desire for a iquid, diversified and

absolute-return style of exposure to property)

In existing and new vehicles we seek to provide our
investors with attractive risk-adjusted returns, by continually
reviewing our partfolio to optimise ncome and mamtaining
the important disapline of selling o realise profits in line
with our investment strategies

Recruiting, developing and retaining the hest staff remams
of paramount importance to us, gIViNg Our iNvestors access
to highly skilled professsonals in each of our local markets

2012: market outlook

The global economic picture remains guite fragile On
average, we expect yields to move out gently In some
regians over 2012 and 2013, due to weaker rental growth,
the pressures of dechning hquidity and volatile sentiment

However we believe that for experienced managers with
specialist local teams there will be attractive buying
opportunities in selected markets As always, we encourage
our ivestors to consider the long-term attributes of real
estate, including its ability to protect against the impact of
inflation In this way, we look forward to conunuing to create
value for our investors, Shareholders and staff
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“Edgehul] Retiwrement, Community 1s an

excellent anchar for the US Healthcare
venture portfolio, which will ultimatelty
consist of high-quality med:cal office
buildings and senior lIving facilities 1n
select US cities

20 assisted living’ apartments and
60 skilled nursing beds in a total of
39 units

Enc Cannon
Drrector Aoquisitions, USA
Fund management
Funds under management
2005
£2.0bn
2007
£3.1bn
2009
£3.6bn
2011
Edgehill Retirement
Community
City Stamford, Connecticut
Country UsAa
sector Senior housing
Area 38,255m2
wnersh Healthcare Ventur
0 ship  US Healthcare Venture Lord Strect
Edgehill1s a 959% occupied, 266-unit
retwrement cormmuenty located 'é'ty " Liverpool
Fairfield County, Connecticut It consists S:gtlzlrry ::rxe d-use
of 207 ndependent living’ apartments, Area 5.200m?

Ownership Grosvenor Liverpool Fund

We acquired this site on a key axis in
the centre of the City to prowide further
frontage on a thoroughfare already
benefiung from the additional footfall
generated by our neighbouring

Liverpool ONE scheme
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“Last year, Japan endured
one of the most challenging “In 2011, across our portfoho
years 1n recent history of 77 retail assets 1n
We have worked hard to Continental Europe, we
ensure that our high quality maintained occupancy at
portfolio can take advantage 97 5% ~ maximising mcomne
of the predicted growth for our mmvestors ™
1n this real estate market ™ Sara Lucas
Zachary McAfee Head of Portfalio Management,
Semuor Investment Manager, Japan Continental Europe
Parkside Plaza
City Shanghat
Country China
Sector Retail
Rue S Area 126,000m?
e Derpenolse Ownership Grosvenor Vega —
City Metz China Retad Fund
gg::‘tnotrry Eggﬁe Phase one of Parkside Plaza opened
Area 1L.060M?2 in December 2011 and footfalt 1s high
Joule A Ownership Grosvenor Erench Tenants now nclude Tesco, HEM
Uniglo, Mango, Espnit and Swatch
City Tokyo Retall Investments The second and final phase opens
Country  Japan This 15 a core high street asset, situated In Apnl 2012
Sector M'XEd'UZSE In one of the leading retail streets in
Area 8.500m France Recently refurbished and fully
Ownership Grosvenor Office leased to Printemps department store
Retail Fund

The Joule A buillding 1s located in
Central Tokyo, next to a subway station
in the vibrant neighbourhood of Azabu-
Juban Since acguiring the assetin
December 2007, we have managed a
comprehensive refurbishment of the
building and it 15 now 100% let

and twe Zara units, 1t provides very
strong income flow 1n a prime location
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Grosvenor Fund Management

Board of Directors

As at 15 March 2012

Non-Executive Directors

Mark Preston wmcs (Chairman} 15 the Groups
Chief Executive He joined Grosvenor inthe

UK in 1989 Seconded to Hong Kongn 1995

he returned to lead ous fund management
operations in 1997 spent four yearsin San
Franoisco from 2002 became Chief Executive

of Grosvenor Britain & Ireland 1n 2006 and Group
Chief Executive In 2008 He 15 a Non-Executive
Director of both Sonae Sierra SGPS and
Persimmon plc He 15 also a member of the Board
of The Association of Foreign investors in Real
Estate the (University of) Cambridge Land
Economy Advisory Board and the Eurohypo
International Adwisory Board

Nicholas Scarles rca arrorney a1 Law (Group
Finance Director) foined Grosvenor in 2004

He was previously at Centrica Price Waterhouse
and Coopers and Lybrand He 15 a Governor of
the Haberdashers Elstree Schoots Member

of the Court of Assistants of the Haberdashers
Lwvery Company and a Non-Executive Birector
of Sonae Sierra SGPS

Richard Barkham weics (Group Research Director)
[omned Grosvenor (n 2000 His first post was
Research Director for Grosvencer Britain & Ireland
He was appointed Group Research Director in
2006 and in 2011 he was appointed to the Board
of Grosvenor Fung Management

Executive Directors

3 Jeffrey Wemngarten (Chief Executive} began

his career as a Securities Analyst at Scheinman
Hochstein & Trotta in 1670 before moving to
Wertheim & Co 101977 he joined the research
division at Goldman Sachs & Co in New York
becoming Director of Research in tondon in 1987
and General Partner of Goldman Sachs & Co in
1990 Fram 1991-1995 Jeffrey was the Chief
{nvestment Cfficer and Managing Director of
Goldman 5achs Asset Management International
before returning to International Equity Research
as Global Strategist From 1998—2008 leffrey
was General Partrer and Chief Investment
Officer of Buttonwood Capital Partners

James Raynor {Chief investment Officer) joined

Grosvenor in 2004 from The Royal Bank of
Scotland in Pans where he was Senior Director
of European Real Estate He was promoted to his
present role at Grosvenor in March 2011 He sits
onthe INREV Training & Education Committeg
and the Uil French Councll

1A Rrobert Davis iChiet Operating Officer) joined

Grosvenor in 2006 from General Motors where
he undertook a number of roles within the

Group s finance functon and was most recenily
Chief Operaung Officer £uropean Qperattons for
GMAC Commercial Finance Plc He was promoted
to his present role at Grosvenor in March 2011
retaining his previous role of Finance Director

Andrew Gatbraith (Managing Director USA)
Joined Grosvenor (n 1990 and moved to his
current role as joiat Managing Director and
Head of Investments in November 2011
He has held various positions over the past
20 years with Grosvenor in London %an
Francisco and Washington DC Heisa
member of UL and NAREIM

X Alexia Gottschalch {(Managing Director USA)
joined Grosvenar Fund Maragement tn April
2011 In November 2011 Alexia was appointed
joint Managing Director and Head of Capital
Markets and Client Services in the US Prior to
joning Grosvenor she was a member of senior
management at Independence Capitad Partners
Cheswold Real Estate Investment Management
Prudenual Real Estate Investors Tishman
Spever ING and Beutsche Bank

[El Mervyn Howard (Managing Director UK) joined
Grosvenor In 2001 foliowing roles as Managing
Cirector of GE Caprtal s real estate business
nthe UK and Scandinavia and Head of Business
Development for TrizecHahn Europe

[ Morgan Laughlin (Managing Director
Asia Paanic) joined Grosvenor In fanuary 201
He was previously Managing Director Head of
Real Estate Finance Asia Paatic at RBS Prior
to joning RBS in 2006 Morgan headed Deutsche
Bark LaSalle Investment Management

[ Giles wintle (Managing Director Continental
Europe) joned Grosvenor in September 2041
from GIC Real Estate where he oversaw
nvestment activity In France Italy Nerdics
CEE and Ryssia He previous!y worked for BNP
Paribas Corporate and Investment Banking
1n Paris and fones Lang LaSalte in Londan
and Pars
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Grosvenor Fund Management
Portfolio

Funds under management

Gross asset value

Number of Toial Oftice Retai Residential Other
wnvestment vehicles £m tfm £&m im im
Asia Pacific 5* 12043 6361 2262 3420 -
Continental Europe 5* Licl 6 196 2 9054 - -
UK 7 18479 4189 13903 387 -
UsSA 10 8527 6838 746 476 467

tnternational } ———=——————ncluged above
Total 28 50065 19350 25965 4283 467

*Includes separate account chents

Asia Pacific

Name, GROSVENQR CAPITAL ADVISERS PARTNERSHIP

Launch date 2004 Gross asset value: 1P¥150n (£130m)
Sector Residential Number of assets 13

Risk profile.  Value-add Number of investors: 6

Grosvenor Capital Advisers Partnership is focused on opportunistic investment in residential assets in the greater metropolitan areas
of Tokyo and Osaka which both benefit rrom cyclical upturns Returns are enhanced through a value-add approach

Name GROSVENOR DIAMOND CAPITAL — STABLE RESIDENTIAL FUND

Launch date: 2005 Gross asset value IP¥25bn (£213m)
sector. Residential Number of assets 20
Risk profile  Core Number of iInvesters 6

Grosvenor Diamend Capitai — Stable Residentiat Fund 1s focused on high quality, well managed residential properties with stable
recurnng ncome 90% of assets are in Tokyo with the remaming 10% 1n other major Japanese aiiies

Name GROSVENOR OFFICE RETAIL FUND

Launch date: 2007 Gross asset value JP¥22bn (E192m)
Sector: Office and retail Number of assets. 12
Risk profile  Core and Value-add Number of investors 8

Grosvenor Office Retail Fund focuses on Grade B/C office and retail properties, primarnily in Tokyo and Osaka Returns are enhanced
through both a stable income and value-add approach

Name: GROSVENOR VEGA — CHINA RETAIL FUND

Launch date: 2008 Number of assets: 1
Sector: Retal Number of investors. 7
Risk profile  Value-add

Grosvenor vega-China Retall Fund owns and actively manages the Parkside Plaza shopping centre in Shanghat
Name SEPARATE ACCOUNT CLIENT — AUSTRALIA

Launch date: 2011 Gross asset value: A$673m (E444m)
Sector Office Number of assets 3
Risk profile  Vartous Number of mvestors |

Two modern energy-efnicient office buildings in Brisbane and one new office develapment in Parramatta Sydney, now managed by
Grosvenor Fund Management from our Sydney office
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Portfoho
Continued

Continental Europe

Name: GROSVENCR EURCPEAN RETAIL PARTNERSHIP

Launch date 2011 Gross asset value €403m (£337m)
Sector Retail Number of assets. 6
Risk profile. Core Number of investors 3

Grosvenor European Retal Partnership was created as a club vehicle to acquire a portfolio of 121,000m7 of urban shopping centres in
dynamic cities in France and Sweden

Name: GROSVENOR FRENCH RETAIL INVESTMENTS

Launchdate 2006 Gross asset value £344m (£288m)
Sector Retail Number of assets 45
Risk protile  Core Number of investors: 9

Grosvenar French Retasl Investments is focused on creating a balanced income-producing portfolic of high quality high street and
retail warehousing properties in France It has established a well diversified portfolio located within the sirongest French urban areas

Name. GROSVENOR RETAIL EUROPEAN PROPERTIES

Launch date 2004 Gross asset value €219m (£183m)
Sector: Retail Number of assets 26
Risk profile  Core Number of investors 8

Grosvenor Retail European Propertses has bullt up a diverse portfolio of high quality retail properties located within robust cities in
Continental Europe The fund provides @ mixed nisk profile of secure income-producing assets 2long with core plus oppartunities through
the properties repositioning

Name GROSVENOR HEXAGONE PARTNERSHIP

Launch date 2006 Gross asset value €159m (£133m)
Sector. Office Number of assets 2
Risk profile  Core plus Number of investors. 2

Grosvenor Hexagone Partnershup 1s a tactical office club created to take advantage of the attractive nvesiment opportunities
in select Continental European office markets

Name SEPARATE ACCOUNT CLIENT — CONTINENTAL EUROPE

Launchdate 2009 Gross asset value €123m (£103m)
sector: Diversified Number of assets 2
Risk profile  Various Number of investors: 1

Two assets in Paris and Madrid actively managed to create maximum value for our client
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uK

Name: GROSVENOR FESTIVAL PLACE FUND

Launch date: 1999 Number of assets. 1
sector. Retait Number of investors 3

Risk profile. Core

Grosvenaor Festival Place Fund was established in 1999 to manage the Festival Place retail development in Basingstoke, which was
completed by Grosvenor in 2002

Name- GROSVENOR LIVERPQOL FUND

Launch date: 2004 Number of assets. 1
Sector Retall Number of investors. &
Risk profile  Core

Grosvenar Liverpogl Fund was established in 2004 to finance the regeneration of and investment 1n the 42-acre Paradise Street area in
Liverpool Now branded Liverpool ONE the scheme has won more than 65 awards since completion and attracts more than 25 mellion
VISItOTS a year

Name GROSVENOR LONDON OFFICE FUND

Launch date: 1999 Gross asset value: £419m
Sector: Office Number of assets 4
Risk profile:  Core Number of investors- 5

Grosvenor London Office Fund invests wn large high quality office buildings in centrat London providing secure and stable income
10 a club of mvestors

Name: GROSVENCR RESIDENTIAL INVESTMENT FUND

Ltaunch date- 2005 Gross asset value: £387m
Sector Residential Number of assets 9
Risk profile: Core Number of investors 3

Grosvenor Residentral Investment Furtd was established i 2005 1o Invest in resident:al properties in clearty researched and defined
clusters of cities and towns situated throughout the UK

Name GROSVENOR SHOPPING CENTRE FUND

Launch date 1998 Gross asset value £314m
Sector Retail Number of assets 3
Risk profile: Core Number of investors 16

Grosvenor Shopping Centre Fund was established in 1998 It owns and actively manages a porifolio of three shopping centres
n medwm-sized towns in the UX whch are dominant m their catchment areas

Name: GROSVENOR OFFICE LONDON PARTNERSHIP

Launich date: 2011 Gross asset value £Om
Sector: Oftice Number of assets No acquisitions completed
Risk profile  Value-add Number of investors: 2

This club deal was created in 2011 1n partnership with Canada Pension Plan Investment Board to invest in value-add assets in London s
West End and Midtown office markets

Name: SEPARATE ACCOUNT CLIENT — UK

Launch date: 2011 Number of assets i
Sector: Retail Number of investors |
Risk Profile.  Core plus

We commenced a mandate on behalf of a major bank to manage a UK shopping centre
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Portfolio
Continued
USA
Kame: SHMAEL US REAL ESTATE FUND
Launch date 2005 Gross asset value us$e6m (€61 5m)
Sector. Office Number of assets. 6
Risk profile  Core plus Number of investors 15

The Shmael US Real Estate Fund 1s a closed-end fund, the focus af which was 1o invest in Class A and B+ office buildings in the USA
The fund closed in 2005 and s now fully invested i six properties

Name US HEALTHCARE VENTURE

Launch date 2011 Gross asset value: US$73m (€46 7m)
Sector Healthcare Number of assets 1
Risk profile: Core Number of investors 2

US Healthcare venture LLC s a partnership with Kuwait Finance House to invest in healthcare-related reai estate i the USA
The partnership will invest in the acquisiton and development of senior living communtties and med ical office buildings

Name. GROSVENOR RESIDENTIAL INVESTMENT PARTNERS

Launch date 2007 Gross asset value Us$74m (€47 6m)
Sector. Residential Number of assets 16
Risk profile  Debt Number of investors: 5

Grosvenor Residental investment Partners 1s a closed-end fund focused on the USA for-sale residential market The fund closed in 2007
and 1s now fully nvested having provided participating senior and mezzanine loans to 16 projects throughout the USA

Name- SEPARATE ACCOLINTS CLIENTS — USA

Launch various Gross asset value UsS$998m (£642m)
Sector Diversified Number of assets: 50
Risk profile  Various Number of investors; 7*

*Number of separate accounts

In the USA we manage seven long-standing separate account mandates on behalf of leading US, Eurcpean and Middle £astern clients




Grosvenor Annual Repert 2011 - www grosvenor com

Fund management Grosvenor Fund Management

71

International

Name: ISPT GROSVENOR INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY TRUST (IGIPT)

Launch date 2004 Gross asset value: A%174m (£115m}
Sector: Mixed-use Number of assets 4
Risk profile:  Core Number of investors. 7

IGIPT was established to provide a balance of secure tncome flow and long term growth potential by invesiing in institut:onal grade property
outside Austraha and New Zealand
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Corporate governance

THE COMBINED CODE

Grosvenor s business approach i1s based on openness and high levels of accountability, and the Board s approach to corporate governance follows
best practice recommended by the Financtal Reporting Council under the heading of the ‘Combined Code’ even though that code applies only to
publicly quoted companies As a privately-owned Group with its Shareholders represented on the Board, certain provisions of the Combined Code
are not relevant to Grosvenor The Board has reviewed each of the provisions of the Combined Code ssued by the UK Financial Reporting Council
In June 2010 and has determined which of those provisions are appropriate In the context of Grosvencr s ownership structure

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Structure of the Board

The composition of the Board is destgned to ensure effective management and control of the Group taking account of the devolved operating
structure and ensuring that the Shareholders interests are preperly represented It consists of the Group Chef Executive and Group Finance Director
and seven Non-Executive Directors (including the Chawrman) The Non-Executive Directors include three who represent the Shareholders (as Trustees
of the Grosvenor Trusts) and four who are independent The Non-Executive Directors demonstrate a range of experience and professional background
that enables them to make a valuable contribution to the Group and 10 provide independent judgement and challenge to the Board

Biographies of the members of the Board are set out on page 18

Board effectiveness
The Board 15 responsible for setting and monitoring Group strategy. reviewing performance ensuring adequate funding formulating policy on key
1ssues and reporting to the Shareholders

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive are ctearly defined The Chairman is primarnily responsible for overseeing the working of the Board
The Chief Executive 1s responsible for the implernentation of the strategy and policies set by the Board and the day-to-day management of
the Group

To enable the Board ta discharge its duties, all Directors receive appropriate and umely information including briefing papers distributed in advance
of Board meetings The Directors have access to the Company Secretary and may at the Company s expense take independent professional advice
and receive additional traiming as they see fit All new Directors parucipate in aninduction traming programme

The Board undertakes a regular evaluation of its own performance The last review was in November 2011

The Board encourages the appointment of Executive Directors to appropriate external posts asthis increases thewr breadth of knowledge and
experience Earnings from all such appointments are returned to the Group

The Board held five meeungs during the year, with the following attendance by Directors

January Margh June Septernber Hovember
Number of Directors attending 8/8 78 8/8 8/8 8/8
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
Aucit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises
— Michae! McLintock (Chairman)
— Lesley Knox

— Domemico Siniscalco

The Audit Committee 15 responsible for reviewing a wide range of financial matters including the annual financial statements and accompanying
reports Group internal and external audit arrangements, accounting policies internal control and the actions and procedures involved 1n the
management of nsk throughout the Group The Audit Committee reviews annually the scope of the external auditor s work and their fees 1t also
considers the auditor's independence which 1s ensured through a variety of procedures including regular rotation of audit partners Any non-audit
fees received by the auditor m excess of 50% of the audit fee are pre-approved by the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee meets at least three times a year with the auditor and 1s attended by invitation by the Group Chief Executive Group Finance
Director and other senior personnel as appropriate The Audit Committee met three imes durning the year with full attendance at each meeiing

The Brizatn & treland Americas Asia Pacific and Grosvenor Fund Management Operaung Companies each have thewr awn audit committees, which
meet at least twice a year The key decistons of these audit committees are reported to the Group Audit Committee

Nomnations Committee

The Nominattons Committee comprises all of the Non-Executive Directors The Committee meets when necessary and 15 attended, by mvitation by
the Group Chief Executive and other senior personnel as appropriate It 1s responsible for reviewing the structure of the Board giving consideration

to succession planning and for making recommendations to the Board with regard to any changes It s also responsible for idenufying and nommating
for the approval of the Board candidates to fill Board vacancies as and when they arise
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Remuneration Committee
The Group Remuneration Committee comprses

— leremy Newsum (Chairman)

- Alasdar Morrison

- Michael Mctintock

A description of the Remuneration Committee s responsibilities 1s included in the Remuneration Report on page 75

GROUP EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Group Execttive Commiitee compnses the Group Chief Executive, the Group Finance Director and the Chief Executives of each of the Proprietary
Operating Companies and Grosvenor Fund Management It meets three times a year and 1s responsible for co-erdimating the implementation of Group
Strategy Biographies of the members of the Group Executive Commuttee are set out on page 19

INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal controd and for reviewing its effectiveness This is designed to manage, rather than ekminate,
the risk of not achieving business objectves and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss

The Board considers that there 15 a continuous process for identifying, evaluating and managing significant nisks faced by the Group sn the course
of its husiness which has been in place throughout the year and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts This process Is
regularly reviewad by the Audit Committee and the Board and 15 consistent with the internal control guidance for Directors in the Combined Code

A key part of the system of internal control is the delegation of management responsibility for the Group s property investment development and fund
management activities together with supporting functions to Operating Company management teams The Groups Operating Companies have local
boards with independent Non-Executive Directors, which oversee the Operating Company s operations These boards form an integral part of the
overall internal control process The selationship between Operating Company boards and the Group Board 15 clearly defined and 1s set out i formally
approved financial delegaton procedures The membership of each Operating Company board i1s set out in the relevant Operating Company s section
of the business review

Each Operating Company and the Holding Company has management structures in place to enable effective decision making supported by documented
procadures and a regular review of financial performance, including comparisons against budget and forecasts Risk management is a regular agenda
item for all parts of the business with the emphasis on continuous improvement Each Operating Company board undertakes a regular assessment of
Its exposure 1o finanaal operational and strategic risks and the measures that have been put in place 10 manage those risks Significant risks arising
from Operating Company assessments are monitored by the Group Board

1n addrtion 1o local boards, each Operating Company together with the Holding Company s represented on the Group Finance Board, which meets
at least twice each year and provides a forum for debating 1ssues of a financial nature that are relevant to the Group as a whale including Group
financial policy and risk management

The Group operates a co-sourced approach to internal audit, werking jontly with PricewaterhouseCoopers Each Operating Company audit committee
approves an internat audit plan which 1s executed by PricewaterhouseCoopers but supplemented by Grosvenor employees on occasion and where
appropriate The Operating Company audit committees review the findings from the snternal audit reports together with management plans to address
any weaknesses I internal control The Group Audit Committee has an oversight role, which nvolves reviewing the Operating Company and Holding
Company internal audit plans summarnies of internat audit actwiry throughout the Group and signiiicant findings of individual reviews

The Board carried out its annual assessment of internal control for the year 2011 at its meeting n March 2012 by considering reports from management
and the Audit Committee and taking account of events smce 3t December 2011

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND LENDERS

Given the private ownership of the Group, the requirements of the Combined Code to communicate with institutional shareholders are not relevant
All the principal Shareholders are represented on the Board and all Shareholders receive a monthly report The Annua! Report and Accounts 1s widely
distnibuted and the Group s policy 1s 10 maintain close contact during each financial year with bondholders and other lenders at Group and Operatng
Company levels
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Remuneration report

REPORT ON EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION MATTERS SPECIFICALLY RELATING TO EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR STAFF
Consistent with the delegation of management responsibility o Operating Company Boards the 8ritain & Ireland Americas and Asia Paafic regrons
and the Grosvenor Fund Management bustness have their own remuneration committees with appropriate responsibility for remuneration matters
within those Operaung Companies The Group Remuneration Committee takes an independent overview of the various Operating Companies
remuneraiion and HR policies and practice, providing Group-wide guidelines and frameworks

During the year, the Group Remuneration Commuttee comprised three members, Robin Broadhurst (Chairman), Alasdair Mornison and Jeremy Newsum
Two of the Committee are mdependent Non-Executive Directors while Jeremy Newsum does nat meet this definsiion under the Combined Code We feel
that the Committee benefits from the expenence and skills of Mr Newsum and his status as non-independent does not adversely influence the overall
independence of the Commuittee

The Committee meets at least twice a year The Group Chief Executive and Group Human Resgurces Director may be mvited to attend, unless their own
remuneration 1s being discussed The Remuneration Committee met three tmes during the vear with full attendance at twoe of the three meetings
and two out of three directors attending the thwrd meeting As of 31 December 2011 Robin Broadhurst retired as Chairman and Jeremy Newsum was
appointed Chasrman effective 1 January 2012

The Committee is responsible for overseeing remuneration and employment policies across the whole Group and also for administening directly the
remuneration and contracts of Directors and staff in the Holding Company The Committee has access to external independent professional advisers
as necessary and receives advice on market pay levels and best practice in incentive scheme design

The Group's remuneration policies recognise the importance of attracting retaining and motivating executives of the appropriate calibre and
experience to enhance the performance and reputation of the Group The size, complexity and international perspeciive as weli as the long-term
nature of the business are all important facters The policy 15 to prowide competitive potential levels of compensation, benefits and incentive
opportunities within appropriate local markets

The remuneration of Executive Directors and senior staff includes a blend of short-term and long-term rewards and has been designed to provide
an alignment of interests between employees and Shareholders The elements are

— Basic salary and benefits are competitive withm the property Industry in the locations in which the Group operates Salaries are reviewed annually
or on promotion Taxable benefits are provided at levels simifar to those for comparable positions

— Bonus and incentive schemes operate for Executive Directors and semior staff and are designed to link rewards to both individual and company
performance Awards relating to company performance are determined by the achievement of total return compared with the cost of capital
revenue profit targets and other business improvement targets The incentive arrangements are designed to reward outstanding performance
and are linked to the achievement of performance targets at both team and individual levels A proportion of incentive awards each year are
long term and vest over periods of up to five years The Remuneration Cormmittee has discretion to award individual Bonuses in recognition
of special performance

— Pensions and life assurance for Executive Derectors and senior staff in the UK are provided through membership of the Grosvenor Penston Plan
(GPP) and If applicable, supplementary pension arrangements GPP 1s non-contributory and provides, for those who were members before 2004,
a maximum pension of up to two-thirds of pensionable salary on retirement The GPP also provides for dependants pensions of two-thirds of the
member s pension and an insured lump-sum payrnent of four umes basic salary in the event of death in service For all staff who joined the Group
after 1 January 2004, GPP provides a defined benefit pension up to an upper earmings imit and above this imit the Group will contribute between
25% and 30% of salary into employees stakeholder accounts

— Qutstde the UK pensions are provided from a number of schemes, including separate defined benefit schemes in Australia (closed as at 31 December
2011), Canada (now closed to new participants) and the USA (frozen) Further details of the Group s pension schemes are given in Note 11 to the
Accounts

A schedule of Directors remuneration including ail amounts required to be disclosed by the Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations 2002 15
approved by the Shareholders and detalls of Directors remuneration in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 are set out in Note 12 to the Accounts
Representatives of the Shareholders participate directhy in setting Directors’ remuneration

The notice pertod for the termnation of the employment of an Executive Director 15 six months

Non-Executive Directors representing the Shareholders, with the exception of the Chairman, recewved no fee from the Company The fees for other
Non-Executive Directors are reviewed every two years by the Charman Non-Executwve Directors do not have service contracts and do not participate
In borws arrangements in relation to those rotes

Transactions between the Group and the Shareholders are disclosed in Note 39 to the Accounts Certan Company Directors are Trustees of
Grosvenor Trusts Trustees of the Grosvenor Pension Plan and are also Directors of other compamies with which the Group may from time to time
enter mto transactions on normal commercial terms In the opimon of the Board none of these relationships are such as 1o mpair the independence
of the Directors

Jeremy Newsum
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee (appomnted 1 January 2012)
15 March 2012




Grosvenor Annual Report 2011 www grosvenor Com

76 Accounts Directors’ report

Directors’ report

The Directors present their Annual Report and the Group s audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BLUSINESS REVIEW
The Group s principal activities are property investment development and fund management

The review of the busmess in accordance with the requirements of section 417 of the Companies Act 2006 (the ‘Business Review ) can be found
In the review section on pages 1 to 71, which 1s iIncorporated into this report by reference

The other mformat:on that fulfils the requirements of the Business Review 15 set out below

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group aims to develop and co-ordinate an internaticnally diversified group of property compames and mvestments In property companies or
other praperty ventures Each Operating Company endeavours to maximise its returns in accordance with an agreed stance on risk The Group seeks
to ensure that the nisks encountered by the business are identrfied, quantified understood and managed mn an appropriaie way

The Group’s operations are managed under a devalved structure However since the activities of property investment, development and fund
management are comman to each region the nature of business risks encountered in each region 1s broadly similar Set out below 1S a summary
and explanation of the principal risks faced by the business

Market nsk
Property markets are cyclical, so the Group’s businesses will atways be subject to vanations in the value of the portfolio Taking a {ong-term vrew,
the Group s focus 15 less on short-term fluctuations and more on underiying revenue-generaung potential

Exposure 10 market risk 1s mitigated through a balanced allocation of capital to different geographic markets currenies and property sectors
which 1s explained in more detall under asset allocation below

Short-term market risk 15 more relevant in development aciivity where market conditons may affect leasing terms and capitalisation rates
The Group commits to development projects only after taking careful account of the market outlook Development exposures are frequently
reduced by working 1n joint ventures

The Group 1s able 1o make use of property derivatives as a further mechanism for managing exposure to market risk

Asset allocatson
The Group s primary finzncial objective 1s to mavimise returns at acceptable levels of risk Fundamental to this is the optimal allecation of equity
between each of the Operating Companies and Indirect Investments and the devolution of property decision-making authority to local boards

The allocation of equity to Operating Companies ard Indirect Investments 1s a continuous process on an annual cycle The process includes detaited
research of long-term (5+ years) macro-economic projections a review of regional economic and Operating Company historic and projected
performance constderation of wider issues such as climate change and the use of portfolio theory simufations From this the Holding Company
determines a range for the desired relative weighting of capital to each Operating Company and Inderect Investments over the long term Medium-term
(2-5 year) target weightings are set by reference to long-term ranges, adjusted for medwm-term factors Actual allocations are made consistent with
medium-term targets and long-term ranges but also in response to short-term (0-2 vear) tactical and opportunistic considerations The Group retams
the financial capacity for unplanned ogportunities that may anse

Long-term ranges for equity (adjusted for deferred tax) allocated to Operating Companies and Indirect Investments, together with actual equity
allocations at 31 December 2011 were as follows

Percentage of Group equity
tong-term  At31 December
range 2011
% LS
Britain & Ireland 35 0-60.0 48.6
Americas 10 0-25.0 155
Asia Pacific 50-20.0 72
Indirect Investments 20 0-30.0 28.3
Fund Managemen? 0.0-10.0 0.4

At the Operating Company and Indirect Investments level, each beard (the Group Investment Committee in the case of Indirect investments) reviews its
strategy annually This review takes account of the geographic allocation in the region as well as the allocation between sectors and the sphit between
nvestment and development

The current distribution of the Group s property assets and assets under management rs shown on page 9
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Property risks

Investment properties

The principal risk in property nvestment is the loss of mcome The Group ensures that properties are properly maintained and managed occupancy
15 maximised and exposure to individual tenants 1s managed Asset management is undertaken by teams with overall responsibility for the properties
within therr portfolios Day-to-day property management 1s either puisourced to professional property managers or managed mn-house

Leasing risk s managed by dedicated in-house leasing teams and the use of professional leasimg agents Exposure to individual tenants or sector
groups 1s reduced by mamtaining a diversified tenant base and by reviewing the credit-worthiness of new tenants

Developments

In property development the mam risks arise in managing the development cycle, including obtang apprapriate planning consents and controlling
the construction process The Group has dedicated teams involved 1n site assembly and planming, and limits commatted expenditure prior to planning
consent being obtatned Construction nisk 1s managed by n-house project management teams using external contractors In many cases construction
risk 1s shared with partners

Caputal raising

The Group has no plans to seek further equity capital through the issue of new shares Capita! for investment is available from retained earnings
The Group s preference for working with partners and fund management investors provides access (0 capital beyond its own resources, for specific
nvestment and development opportunities Working with ike-minded investors in property 15 a core part of the Group's business

Acquisitions and sales

When acquiring or selling property the prinapal risk 1s 1 assessing the future mcame flows n order to determine an apprapriate price The uming

of property transactions 15 managed as part of the annual asset allocation review within each Operating Company Estimated price levels are supported
by detailed financial appraisals, which are conducted for all property transactions Where deats occur within joint ventures or funds they require the
approval of an investment committee that 1s independent from the asset management team Every property transaction 15 subject to a due diligence
review Including corporate due diligence where properties are acquired within corporate vehicles

Financial and tax risks
The principal finanaial nsks faced by the Group are hquidity credit anterest rate and foreign currency fisk Each of these risks 1s explained in more
detail and analysed in Note 30 to the Accounts

Exposure 1o tax risk arises across a large number of tax junsdictions In addition to different tax filng requirements in each territory there s also
exposure to the impact of future changes in tax legistation These risks are managed by an in-house team which works alongside external tax advisers

Health and safety
The Group 1s committed to achieving high standards of health and safety throughout the business and aspires to best practice

Qverall responsibihty for health and safety 1s taken by the Group Finance Director Each Operating Company board 15 responsible for health and safety
in 1ts business with the support of the internal Heakth and Safety Director and external consultants with local expertise to help them achieve comphance

The Group’s objective 15 to ensure that employees throughout the Group are well informed and consulted on matters regarding health and safety,
which s treated as a key part of the wider risk management process

Each Operating Company reviews and reports formally its comphance each year and progress s monitored on a regular basis

The Group continues to review its reporting of performance information and 1ts health and safety information technology system to assist the bustness
All accidents and cases of il health are treated seriously In 2011 Grosvenor had no reportable mcidents to statutory authorities Each business made
good progress in completing its health and safety action plan

Grosvenor receved no enforcement notices from statutery health and safety authorities in 2011

Each bustness sets tseff annual targets in order to achieve theswr board objectives These include verifying that workplace and other risks are being
controlled and mitigated where necessary
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Environment
This year the Annual Report references our second stand alone Environment Review {see pages 1and 5), reviewing our environmental management
actvities

Reputation and brand

The professtonal reputation of the indviduals and businesses within the Group 1s an important intangible asset ass the Grosvenor brand The Group
seeks to manage these assets by mvesting approprately in them, and by identifying petential reputattonal or brand nisks and acting swiftly to mitigate
those risks All staff are briefed on the defimtion of the Group s brand and are advised on how to algn commurications and behawviour with it and
detaited brand management guidelines are provided for relevant in-house and consultancy teams

People

The Group takes constderable care in recruting retaining and developing Grosvenor people A graduate qualifying programime in the UK and a range
of development opporturuties exist Succession planning 1s overseen by remuneration committees Compensation s regularly benchmarked agamst
the market and the Group rewards loyalty excellence and effort

Information technology

The Group’s operations are dependent on the effectiveness of 1T systems, including an internauonal communications netwerk, property databases,
accounting and treasury systems Procedures are in place to protect the security and integrity of data and the Group has detatled incident management
and business continuity plans which are tested on a regular basis The Business Process Group which was established in 2006 continues to ensure that
the Group benefits from the efficeent delivery of Group-wide process and system changes

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS AND MEASURES OF RETURN
Grosvenor takes a long-term view 5o 15 less interested 1n year-on-year comparisens and 1s more concerned with the overall trend in performance

The Group momtors total return on property assets and growth i revenue profit Total return is calculated on a proportional basis, including tne
appropriate share of joint ventures and associates Revenue profit is shown in Note 4 Total return and revenue profit are defined in the glossary

Achievement against these indicators 1s set out in the Finance Director's report on pages 14 to 17 Appropniate key performance indicators are
employed throughout the Group to help achieve ambitious goals and a philosephy of continuous improvement

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results for the year are set out In the consolidated income statement on page 82 Profit for the year was £2459m (2010 £316 8m) Dividends
paid during the year amounted to £nd (2010 £11 6m)

FINANCIAL SERVICES ACTIVITIES
Grosvenar Investment Management Limited a wholly owned subsidiary, 15 authonised and regulated in the UK by the Financial Services Authonity
for the purposes of undertaking regulated activities

Grosvenor Australia Nomunees Pty Limited a wholly owned subsidiary 15 authorised to provide finanoial services and products to wholesale clients
under its Austrahan Financial Services Licence No 302153 issued by the Australan Securities and Investments Commission

Grosvenor Investment Management US Inc  a wholly owned subsidiary 1s a registered investment adviser i the USA pursuant to the nvestment
Adwvisers Act of 1940, for the purposes of providing real estate related investment advice

The lapan Branch of Grosvenor Fund Management Japan Limited a wholly owned subsidiary 1s autharised to prowide financial services and products
under its Kanto Local Finance Bureau (Kinsyo) License No 1956 issued by The Financial Services Agency the Japanese Government

GOING CONCERN

The Group s business activities, together with the factars likely to affect its future development performance and financial position are set out I the
review section on pages 1 to 71 and the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group are described in the Directors report In addition Note 30
to the financial statements includes an explanation of the Group s policies and processes for managing its financial and capital risks, details of its
financial mstruments and the exposure to interest rates credi and hquidity nsk

Each Operaiing Company and the Group as part of s regular evafuation of hauidity sk models the principal risks and uncertainges in its cash flow
projections for the foreseeable future, including an assessment of comphance with banking covenants and the implcations of any facilities that are
due to expire in the next 12 months

Based on the Operaung Company and Group cash flow projectsons the Group 1s satisfied that it has sufficient headroom from its cash balances and
commutted borrowing facilities to support the funding requirements of those projections

Therefore after making appropniate enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate resources
to continue In business for the foreseeabte future Accordingly the financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis

DIRECTORS
Details of the Directors of the Company and their biographies are given on page 18 All Directors served throughout the year except for Owen Thomas
who was appointed on 1 January 2012 Robin Broadhurst resigned on 31 December 2011
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
The interests of the Directors who served duning the year i the share and loan capital of Grosvenor Group Limited are shown below

Non-volng
Ordinary Shares Ordinary Shares A Preference Shares B Preference Shares
At At At At At At At At
1 January 31 December 1January 31 December 1January 31 December 1 January 31 December
2011 2011 2011 2011 201 01 2011 2011
Non-beneficial
leremy H M Newsum 4290433 4,290,433 34323463 34,323,463 4290433 4,290,433 81518227 61,953,852
Robin S Broadhurst 4,052,363 4,052,363 32,418.904 32,418,904 4052363 4,052,363 76594 897 58,516,122
Lesley M S Knox 1640580 1,640,580 13,124639 13,124,639 1640580 1,640,580  31171,020 23,689,975

The non-beneficial Interests above represent the shares owned by the respective Directors in thewr capacity as Trustees of the Grosvenor Trusts
Robin Broadhurst retred as at 31 December 2011 and fus non-beneficial Interests ceased as at that date Michael McLintock was appointed to the
Board on 1 March 2012 and his non-beneficial nterests as ar that date were 5,453 726 Ordinary Shares 43 629,809 Non-Voting Ordmnary Shares
5453,726 ‘A Preference Shares and 78,751,804 ‘B Preference Shares

Where a Director has a joint interest in securities the above disclosures mclude for each Director the number of secunities that are jointly held

Except as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the Company who served during the year had any interests in the secunties of the Company
or any of its subsidiary undertakings

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITY
The Company has made qualfymng third party indemnity provisions for the benetit of its Directors which were made during the year and remain
in force at the date of this report

CHARITABLE AND POLITICAL DONATIONS

Charitable contributions during the year amounted to £1 8m (2010 £17m) £1 5m was donated to the Westminster Foundation (2010 £1 4m), the
grant making foundation for the Grosvenor family and business interests As a registered charity the Westrinster Foundation focuses on social
care and education military welfare, and environmeni and conservatton and also provides subsidised office accommodation on Grosvenor s
London estate to over 30 registered charities

Staff are encouraged to undertake their own fundraising for charities by the active promotion of Give As You Earn within the UK as weli as by the
matched funding of employees chartable fundraising across all our Operating Companies The Group 15 developing a policy on pro-bono activity
to reflect the widespread involvement of siaff in giving time and expertise to support ther communities in other ways

No politica! donations were made dunng the year (201G £ail)

POLICY ON PAYMENT OF SUPPLIERS

Payment terms are agreed with suppliers on an individuai basis 1t is the policy of both the Company and the Group to abide by the agreed terms
provided that the supphiers also comply with all relevant terms and conditions In respeci of the Group s activities in the UK trade creditors at

31 December 2011 represented thirteen days purchases (2010 eleven days) The Company has no trade creditors

EMPLOYEES

The Group gives full and fair consideration to apphcations by disabled persons for employment Disabled employees and those who become disabled
are afforded the same training career development and promotion opportunities as other staff The Directars recognise the importance of good
communtcations and relations with the Group s emplayees and places considerable value on informing them on matters affecting them as employees
Each part of the Group maintains employee relations appropriate to its own particular needs and environment

AUDITOR

Deloitte LLP has been appointed as auditor under the provisions of section 487 of the Companies Act 2606
Each person who 1s a Director at the date of approval of this report confirms that

a) in so far as the Director 1s aware there s no relevant audit infermation of which the auditor 15 unaware and

b) the Director has taken all reasonable steps that he/she ought to have taken to make himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the Company s auditor 1s aware of that information

This infermation 15 given and should be interpreted in accordance with section 418 of the Companies Act 2006

Judith Ball UK Company registration number 3219943
Company Secretary Registered Office
15 March 2012 70 Grosvenor Street

London WIK 3IP
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statemenis in accordance with applicable laws and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year The Directors have elected to prepare the Group
financial statemenis in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Umon and Article 4

of the 1A5 Regulation and have alsa chosen to prepare the parent company financial statements under IFRSs as adepted by the European Union
Under company law the Directors must not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affars
of the Company and of the proht or loss of the Company for that pertod fn prepanng these financial statements International Accounting
standards requires that the Drrectors

- properly select and apply accounting policies
— present information, meluding accounting policies in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable information,

- provide additionat disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable users 1o understand the smpact
of particular transactions other events and condiions on the entity s financial position and financial performance and

— make an assessment of the Company $ ability to continue as a gaing concern

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that are sufficient to show and explatn the Company s transactions and disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any ume the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

The Directors are responsible for the mamtenance and integrity of the corporate and financial informator included on the Company s website
Legislation tn the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislauon in other jurisdictions
RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

We confirm that 1o the best of our knowledge

1 the financial statements, prepared in accordance with internationat Financial Reporung Standards as adopted by the EU give a true and fair view
of the assets, labsibes financial position and profii or loss of the Company and the undertakings mnctuded in the cansolidatien taken as a whole and

2 the management report which 15 incorporated into the Directors’ report, incfudes a fair review of the development and performance of the business
and the positton of the Cormpany and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal
risks and uncertanties that they face

This responsibility statement was approved by the Board of Directors on 15 March 2012 and 1s signed on its behalf by

Lesley Knox
Chairman

Corporate advisers and bankers

Audrtor Delostte LLP

Tax advisers KPMG LLP

Principal valuers. DTZ Debenham Tie Leung, Cushman & Wakefield, lones Lang LaSalle
soliciters Boodle Hatfield, Slaughter and May

Lead bankers: The Royal Bank of Scotland Group plc

Actuaries. Lane Clark & Peacock LLP
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Independent auditor’s report

to the members of Grosvenor Group Linited

We have audited the financial statements of Grosvenor Group Limited (the Group ) for 1he year ended 31 December 2011 which comprise the
consohdated mcome statement the consohdated statement of comprehensive income the conselidated statement of changes in equity the
consolidated and parent company balance sheets the consolidated statement of cash flows, and the related Notes 1 to 39 The financial reporting
framewaork that has been apptied in therr preparation s apphcable faw and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Unton and as regards the parent company financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

Thus report 15 made solely to the Company s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compantes Act 2006 Our audit work
has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company s members those matters we are required £o state to them in an auditor s report and for
no other purpose To the fullest extent permitied by law, we do not accept or assume responsibiity to anyone other than the Company and the
Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report or for the opinions we have formed

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR
As explained more fully tn the Statement of Directors’ responsipilities the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements

and for being sausfied that they give a true and fair view Qur responstbility 15 to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance

with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UX and Ireland} Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s
Ethical Standards for Auditors

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An audit involves obtaming evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficrent to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from material misstatement whether caused by fraud or error Thisincludes an assessment of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the Group s and the parent company's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed the
reasonableness of significant accounung estimates made by the Directors, and the overall presentatton of the financial statements In addiion, we
read all the fimancia! and non-financial information in the annual report to Identify material inconsistencies with the audited finanoial staternents

If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or Inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
in our opinion

~ the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group s and the parent company s affairs as at 31 December 2011 and
of the Group s profit for the year then ended,

the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the Eurcpean Union,

the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and as appled
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and

the financial staternents have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Compames Act 2006

OPINION ON OTHER MATTER PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006
In our opinion the information given in the Directors’ report for the fmanoal year for which the financial statements are prepared 15 consisient with
the financial statements

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TQ REPORT BY EXCEPTION
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report {0 you If in gur opinien

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches
not visited by us, or

the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

— certain dasclosures of Directors’ remuneration spegiited by law are not made or

— we have not received all the information ang expl re for our audit

Mark Goodey (Sentor Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Delonte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor —
London, United Kingdom
15 March 2012
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Consolidated income statement

for the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
Note £m £m
Total revenue 5 1952 2147
Gross rental income 3 1269 114 8
Property autgoings 7 40 0) @
Net rental income 869 737
Other mcome 3 40.7 540
Administragrve expenses 9 (89 8) 86 2)
Net losses on trading properties 13 (12 5) (57
Net losses on other investments 14 (71) {15
Net gans on revaluation and sale of investment property 15 3244 2924
Impairment of goodwill 24 07) -
Share of profit from joint ventures 22 25.0 1037
Gain from operations including share of joint ventures 3669 4304
Dividend income 16 0.1 o4
Financial income 16 Q1 101
Financial expenses 16 499) (47 4)
Fair value adjustments 16 (11 2) 13
Net financing costs 16 519 (35 6)
Profit before tax 3150 3948
Current tax expense 17 (147) 15
Deferred tax expense 17 (54.4) {76 5)
Profit for the year 37 2459 3168
Attnbutable to
Equity hotders of the parent 37 250 8 37
Non-controfling interests 37 (4.9) 51
Profut for the year 7 2459 3168
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2011
201 2010
Kote m fm
Profit for the year 37 2459 368
Revaluatron of property, plant and equipment 37 38 36
Available for sale financial assets
{Losses)/gans arsing during the period 37 37) 15
Fair value adjustments on swaps
(Losses)/gams arising during the period 37 (0 5) 18
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 37 57 697
Actuanal losses on defined benefit pension schemes 37 (12 4) 06}
Tax relatwmg to other comprehensive income 37 (11) 41}
Other comprehensive (expense)/income (19.6) 719
Total comprehensive tncome for the pertod 2263 3887
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 2364 3843
Non-controlling interests (10.1} 44
2263 3887
The Company's equity increased during the year as a result of dividends recewed from subsidianies for the year of £nil 2010 £21 Im) and reduced
as a result of dividends pard to Shareholders of £nil (2010 £11 6m)
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2011
Attnbutable to equity holders of the parent Non
Share Share Translation Other Fairvalue  Revaluation Retained controlling Total
capital premum reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interest equity
fm £m fm £m £m £m €m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2010 2785 283 3160 (121) (154 70 17845 2,3868 1565 25433
Changes in equity for 2010
Profit for the year - - - - - 37 317 51 3168
Other comprehensive income/(expense) - - 699 37 72.6 7 719
Dwvidends - - - (11 6) (11 6) 09) (12.5)
Transfer between reserves - - 07 26 34 (34 -
Non-controlling shares 1ssued
by subsidiaries - - - - - 24 24
Non-controdling shares acquired
by subsidiaries - - - - - (32 4) (32.49)
Redemption of Preference Shares (113 6) - - 1136) (113.6) - (113.6)
Balance at 31 December 2010 649 283 386 6 19699 2,6493 1266 27759
Changes in equity for 2011
Profit for the year - - - 2508 2508 49y 2459
Other comprehensive (expense)/ncome - - Q7 (11 6) (14.4) (52 (19 6)
Dividends - - - - - 62 62
Non-controlling shares 1ssued
by subsidiaries - - - - - 03 03
Non-controlling shares acquired
by substdiaries - - - - - {16 (16
Redemption of Preference Shares {259 - - (259) (259) - (25 9)
Other movements In joint ventures - - - (4 5} (4.5} (12 5.7
Balance at 31 December 2011 1390 283 385.9 21817 28553 107.8 2,963.1

The Company s statement of changes n equity rs as presented in Note 37(b)
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Balance sheets

as at 31 December 2011
Group Company
201 2010 2011 2010

Note fm &m £m £m
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investment propesty 19 28127 25259 - -
Other property plant and equipment 20 406 356 - -
Investments in subsidiaries 21 - - 1,358 4 1358 4
Investments n [CINT ventures 22 1,074 8 10633 - -
Qther financial assets 23 369 426 - -
Intangible assets 24 4.1 49 — —
Deferred tax assets 25 1034 1039 - -
Total non-current assets 40725 37762 1,358 4 1,358 4
Current assets
Trading properties 26 245.2 1387 - -
Trade and other recevables 27 158 5 1569 174 4 2003
Other financial assets 23 3.2 05 - -
Income tax recelvable 120 361 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 28 2375 2694 — -
Total current assets 656 4 6016 174 4 200 3
TOTAL ASSETS 4,7289 43778 1,532.8 15587
LIABILITIES
Non-current lrabilities
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 29 (776.8) {613 8) - -
Trade and other payables 31 (204 3) {1650) - -
Employee benefits 11 (37.2) 371 - -
Deferred tax liabikties 25 (576 4) (5221) - -
Total non-current habilsties (1,594 7) (1338 0) - -
Current hiabthities
Overdrafts 28 01 ©on - -
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 29 (28 6) (124 8) - -
Trade and other payahles 3l (123 3) (123 1) - -
Income tax payable (157) (12 4) - -
Provistons 32 (34) (35) - -
Total current iabilities 1ni) (263 9) - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES (1,765 8) (16019) - -
NET ASSETS 29631 27759 15328 15587
Equity
Share capital 36 1390 1649 1320 1649
Share premium 37 283 283 28.3 283
Reserves 37 5093 486 2 1,190.5 1164 &
Retaned earnings 37 21787 19699 1750 2009
Shareholders’ funds 37 2,8553 26493 1,532 8 16587
Non-controlling interests 37 1078 126 6 - -
TOTAL EQUITY 37 2,963.1 27759 1,532 8 15587

Approved by the Board and authorised for 1ssue on 15 March 2012 and signed OZ behalf of the Board

Lesley Knox (Chairman) %Z/
Nicholas Scarles (Group Finance Director) ‘_JW,QM 5 E

Company registration number 3219943
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for the year ended 31 December 2011
2011 2010

Note £m £m
Operating activities
Operaung profit before changes i working capital and provisions 38(a) 29.6 363
Increase i trade and other receivables (4 3) [EAR)]
{Increase)/decrease In trading properties (108.3) 43
Increase/f{decrease) in trade and other payables 14 {©8)
Decrease in employee benefits (12.2) 19
Decrease In provisions on 71
Cash flow from operations (93.9) 99
Interest paid (52 6) 491)
Income taxes received/(pard) 87 63 6)
Interest received 9.8 102
Net cash flows from operating activities (128 0) (112 4)
Investing activities
Proceeds from sale of nvestment property 1711 2080
Acquisition of nvestment property (69.2) ©34)
Development of investment and development property (33 3) (132)
Proceeds from sale of other property plant and equipment 01 -
Acquisition of other property, plant and equipment 349 04
Proceeds from sale of other financat assets 17 61
Acquisitien of other financial assets 8.9) (15)
Nert cash fiow from Jaint ventures {L4) 800
Proceeds from sale of joint ventures 116 186
Acquisition of joint ventures (22.3) (1251
Dividends received 01 04
Net cash flows from investing activities 521 795
Financing activities
Proceeds from additional barrowings 148.3 719
Repayment of borrowings (72 6) {129 9)
Non-controlling shares 1ssued by subsidiaries 03 24
Nen-controlling shares acquired by subsidiaries 16) (324)
Redemption of preference shares (25.9) (113 6}
Dividends paid (6.2) (12 5)
Net cash flows from financing activities 42.3 2141
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (33 6} (2470)
Cash and cash egquivalents at 1 January 269.3 505 2
Effect of exchange rate fluctuation on cash held 1.8 111
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 28 2375 2693

The Company had na cash or cash equivatents during the current and prior year and accordingly no cash flow 1s presented
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting policies

(A) BASIS OF PREPARATION

These finanaial statements have been prepared In accordance with Internattonal Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the Eurapean Union
These are those International Accounting Standards International Financial Reporting Standards and related interpretations (SIC-IFRIC interpretations),
subsequent amendments to those standards and refated mterpretations 1ssued or adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board (1ASB)

that have been adopted by the European Union

The financtal statemenis are prepared on the historical cost basts, except for the revaluation of investment and development properties certain
financral assets and derivatives and deferred tax therean The Accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis as described in the going concern
section of the Directors report on page 78 The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below The Company has elected under section 230

of the Compantes Act 2006 not to Include rts own Income statement in these finzneial statements

(B) BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
The consolidated financial statements of the Group incorporate the financial statements of the Company and s subsidiary undertakings

Subsidiary undertakings are those entittes including special purpose entities, controlled by the Company Control exists when the Company has
the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtam benefits from its activities The financial
statements of subsidianes are included s the consohdated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that

control ceases

Joint ventures are those entities over whose activities the Group has joint control, established by contractual agreement Associates are those

entities over whose activities the Group has significant influence Interests in joint ventures and assogiates are accounted for under the equity method
whereby the consolidated balance sheet incorporates the Group s share of the net assets of its joint ventures and associates and the consohdated
ncome statementincludes the Group s share of the jomt ventures and associates profit or loss after tax for the penod The censolidated fimancial
statements include the Group s share of the total recognised gains and losses of joint ventures and associates on an equity accounted basis

Where the Group has contractual relationships to share assets with other entities (Jointly controlled assets) the Group s share of the individual items
of assets, habitties income and expenses are recognised In the financial statements and dassified according to ther nature

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the results of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates to bring their accounting policies into hine with
those used by the Group intra-Group transactions, balances, income and expense are elimmnated on consolidation, where appropriate

Business combinations are accounted for under the acguisition method Any discount between the cost of the acquisition and the fair value of the

Group s share of the net asseis of the acquired subsidiary joint venture or associate at the effective date of acquisivon 1s credited to the income
statement In the penod of acquisition while any excess 15 recognised as goodwill Goodwill s reperted in the balance sheet as an intangible asset or
included within associates and joint ventures as appropriate Goodwill s subject to annual iImpairment reviews and is stated at cost less any impawment

The gain or loss on disposal of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates is calculated by reference to the Group s share of the net assets at the date
of disposal including the attributable amount of goodwill which has not been impaired

{C) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

At entity level transactions denorminated in foreign currencies are transiated into the relevant functional currency at the exchange rate ruling on the
date the transaction 1s recorded Monetary assets and labilities denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the exchange rate ruling at the
balance sheet date or, if hedged, at the exchange rate under the related hedging transaction and the resultant exchange differences are dealt within the
income statement On consolidation the results of overseas companves are translated into Sterling at the average exchange rate for the period and their
assets and habilities are translated into Sterling at the exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet date Exchange differences arising from the transtation
of forergn operations and of refated hedges are taken to the translation reserve They are released into the imcome statement upon disposal

In the cash flow statement cash flows denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Sterling at the average exchange rate for the period

(D) INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Investment properties including freehold and long leasehold properties, are those which are held either to earn rental ncome or for capital
appreciation or both Investment properties mclude property that 1s being constructed or developed for future use as an investment property
Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including transaction costs After initial recogmition investment properties are carried at
their far values, based on annual market valuations as determined by independent valuers

Any surplus or deficit on revaluation 13 recogrised in the income statement as a valuation gan or loss

when the Group begins to redevelop an existing Investment property with a view to sale the property 1s transferred to trading properties and
held as a current asset The property is re-measured to far value at the date of transfer and any gain or koss 1s recognised in the income statement
The re-measured amount becomes the deemed cost at which the property 15 then carnied in trading properties

(E) LEASES

Leases to tenants where substantially all the nisks and rewards of ownership are retained by the Group as bessor, are classified as operanng leases
Payments made under operating leases, including prepayments and net of any incentives provided by the Group are charged to the income statement
on a straight-hine basis over the period of the lease

Where a long leasehold property I1s held as an investrnent praperty it is mitally recognised at an amount equal to the sum of the premium pard on
acquisitton and the present value of mimimum ground rent payments The corresponding rent liability to the freeholder 1s included in the balance sheet
as a finance lease obligation
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1 Accounting policies

(E) LEASES {continued)

Leases where substantially ail the risks and rewards of gwnership are transferred to the tenant are classified as finance leases A finance lease asset

15 recognised as a recelvable i the balance sheet at an amount equal to the present value of the minimum lease payments Payments recewved are
allocated between repayment of the finance lease receivable and interest income so as to reflect & tonstant periodic rate of return on the Group s net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases A profit or loss on disposal 1s recogmised in the income staternent upon entering into a finance lease
for any difference between the present value of the mintmum lease payments and the carrying value of the property derecognised The net investment
in the lease 15 the gross investment In the lease discounted at the interest rate implicit in the lease

(F) OTHER PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses Land and buildings are stated at fair value,
with valuation gains and losses recogmised in equity

Depreciation is charged to the income statement on a straight-iine basis over the estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment,
and major components that are accounted for separately, at rates varying between 109 and 33 3% per annum except for freehold property occupied
by the Group which is depreciated where matenal over 1ts expected useful kfe

(G) OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets available for sale are stated at fatr value which 15 determuned by reference to an active market and any resultant gam or loss 1s
recognised 1n the fair value reserve Where the Group has the positive intent and ability to hold a financial asset to maturity 1t 1s stated at amortsed
cost less imparrment losses Trade receivables loans and other receivables that have fixed or deterrminable payments that are not quoted on an
active market are classified as loans and receivables Loans and receivables are included at amortised cost using the effective interest method

less any iImpairment Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate excent for shori-term recemvables when the recognition
of interest would be immatenial Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date Mezzanine loan investments
comprise a loan principal which attracts a rate of interest and 1s accounted for as loans and receivables, and a profit participation element which

15 treated as an embedded denivative and classified as held for trading The embedded denwatwe is held at fair value determined by reference to a
prudenti estimate of the profif parucipation that will be ulumately recewvable discounted where material Financial assets are impaired where there
15 objective evidence that as a resuft of one or more events that occurred after imttial recognition the estmated future cash flows of the investment
have been adversely affected

(H) TRADING PROPERTIES
Trading properties are held as current assets and are shown at the lower of cost and net realisable value Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price at completion less the estimated costs of completion including the esimated costs necessary 1o make the sale

(1} TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Trade and other receivables are stated at cost less any imparment

(J) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash eguivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits Cash equivalents are short-term, lghly iquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group s cash management are included as a deduction from cash and cash equivalents for the purpose
of the statement of cash flows

(K) DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Derivative financial instruments utilised by the Group are interest rate and property derivative swaps and caps and forward exchange contracts aganst
known transactions The Group does not enter Inte derivative contracts for solely speculative purposes Instruments are used for hedging purposes to
alter the risk profile of an existing underlying expasure of the Group in line with 1ts risk management policies Amounts payable or recevable in respect
of interest rate swaps are recognised as adjustments to interest expense over the period of the contracts

Changes in the fair value of dervative financial instruments that are designated and efiective as hedges of future cash flows are recognised direcily
In equity and the ineffective poruon is recognised immediately i the income staternent 1f the cash flow hedge of a irm commitment or forecasted
transaction results in the recognition of an asset or a Jiability then, at the time the asset or hiability 1s recognised, the associated gains or losses an
the derivative that had previously been recogrused in equity are included in the nitial measurement of the asset or iability

Changes n the fair value of dervative financial insiruments that do not qualify for hedge accounung are recogmised 1n the income statement as they arnse

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or 15 sold, terminated exercised or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting
At that time any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised i equity 1s retamed in equity unti! the forecasted transaction occurs

If a hedged transaction 1s no longer expected to occur the net cumulative gain or loss recognised m equity 15 transferred to net profit or loss for the period
Derwatives embedded in other financial instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate denwvatives when their risks and charactenistics are
not closely related to those of host contracts and the host contracts are not carrned at far value with gans or losses reported in the income statement

(L) TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade and other payables are stated at cost
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1 Accounting policies continued

(M} BORROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Borrowings anc other finzncial habiliies are recognised ininally at fair value less attributable transacuion costs Subsequent to inttial recogrution
borrowings and other financial habilities are stated at amortised cost with any difference between cost and redemption value being recognised
in the income statement over the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis

(N) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Obligations for contributions (o defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the income staiement as incurred

The Group s net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans 1s calculated separately for each plan by esnmating the amount of future benefit
that employees have earned in return for ther service in the current and prior periods that benefit 1s discounted to determine 1ts present value

The cakculation 1s performed by an actuary using the projected unit credit method The future beneit ability 1s offset by the fair value of the pension
plan assets at the balance sheet date

The expected annual charge for the defined benefit penston costs as estimated by the actuary 1s included in the income statement and comprises
the current service cost the interest cost on the future benefit hability and the expected return on plan assets

Adjustments between expectation and actual together with all actuarial adjustments, are recognised in full in the year in which they arnise and are
credited or debited directly to reserves

(0) REVENUE
The Group s revenue comprises rental income service charges and other recoverables from tenants, income from the provision of services including
property management fees development fees and fund management fees, proceeds of sales of its trading properties and development income

Revenue from development 1s recognised in the iIncome statement in proportion to the stage of completion of the transaction at the balance sheet
date Revenue is not recognised If there are sigmificant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due Provision 15 made for anticipated
development losses

Rental income from investment property leased out under an operating lease 1s recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental Income over the life of the lease

Revenue from the sale of trading properties is recognised in the income statement when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer which 1s usualty at completion

Performance fees receivable from funds are recognised in (ncome when it 1s considered probable that a performance fee will be received and that
fee can be reliably estimated The amount of the performance fee recognised 1s the lower of the fee that has accrued at the balance sheet date
and a prudent estimate of the fee that will be recevable at the end of the life of the fund Where matenal performance fees are discounted with
any unwinding of the discount being recognised i interest income

(P} EXPENSES
Rental payments made under operating teases are recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease Lease
incentives recetved are recognised in the incorme statement as an ntegral part of the total lease expense on a straight-line basts over the life of the lease

Minimum lease payments on finance leases are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the gutstanding liability The finance
charge 1s allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remamning balance of the hability
Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred

(Q) BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs relaung to the financing of development properties, major improvements Lo Investment propertes and trading properties that require
substantial periods of time to bring into saleable condition are capitalised Borrowing costs are calculated by reference to the actual rate payable

on borrowings specific to a project or where a project 15 ftnanced out of general funds, to the average rate for all borrowings Barrowing costs are
capnialised from the commencement of the project, until the date of practical completion of the project

All ather borrowing costs are recognised in the Group income statement i the perniod in which they are incurred

(R) INCOME TAX
Income tax on the profit and loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax including tax on capsial gains Income tax 1s recognised o the income
statement except to the extent that it relates 1o items recognised directly in equity i which case it 1s recogrised in equity

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years

Deferred tax 1s prowided using the balance sheet babhity method, providing for temporary defferences between the carrying amounts of assets and
habilkties for financtal reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes The following temporary differences are not provided for the
iiial recogmitton of assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries 1o the
extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future The amount of deferred tax provided 1S based on the expected manner of realisation
or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilites using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date The Group
provides deferred tax on investment properties by reference to the tax that would be due on the ulimate sale of the properties Recognitton on this
basis means that where applicable, indexation allowance Is taken into account in determining the tax base cost

A deferred tar asset 1s recogmised only to the extent that it s probable that future taxable profits will be avalable aganst which the asset can be
utihsed Deferred tax assets are reguced to the extent that 1t1s no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised
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1 Accounting policies continued

{5) GOVERNMENT GRANTS

An unconditional government grant 1s recognised In the income statement as revenue when the grant becomes recevable Any other government grant
15 recogrised in the balance sheet nitially as deferred income when there 1s reasonable assurance that it will be received and that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to it Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as revenue in the mcome statement on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred Grants that compensate the Group for the ¢ost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset

{T) ADOPTION OF STANDARDS
The Group adopted the followtng new and amended IFRS and IFRIC interpretations duning the year Their adopton did not have any matenal effect
on the financial performance or position of the Group

Amendment to 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (as part of Improvements to IFRSs 1ssued in 2010)
1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures (as revised in 2009)

— amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations

= Amendments to IAS 32 Classification of Rights Issues

— Amendments to IFRIC 14 Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement

— IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Lialities with Equity Instruments

The following standards and interpretations have been 1ssued but are not yet effective

— Amendments to IFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets

— IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

— IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

— IFRS 11 Jownt Arrangements

— IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

- IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

— Aamendments to 1AS 1 Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive tncome
— Amendments to 1AS 12 Deferred Tax — Recovery of Underlytng Assets
— 1AS 19 (as revised 1n 2011) Employee Benefits

— 1AS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate Financial Statements

— 1AS 28 (as rewvised in 2011) Investments In Associates and Jomt Ventures

The Direciors anticipate that the agoption of these stardards and interpretations 1s unkikely 10 have a matenal impact on the financial staternents of the
Group in the period of nitial apphcation

() SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

1} Property valuations

Investment properties are carried at market value in accordance with valuabons carried out by ndependent valuers Valuations are based on a number
of key assumptions including an estemate of future rental Income and the appropriate discount rate For investment properties under development key
Judgements alse include estimates of future development costs

Trading properties are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value Net realisable value requires judgement in estimating the future net
realisable proceeds and costs to complete for each trading property

n) Development provisions
Provisions for lgsses on developments are based on estimates ansing from a detailed review of the remaining costs to complete each project and
nvestment value at completion

ni} Leases
Classification of leases between finance leases and operating leases requires a judgement 1o be made regarding the extent to which the risks and
rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee

where operating lease premuums are recerved i exchange for the grant of a long leasehold interest that is classified as an operaung lease, the related
profitis recognised over the term of the lease Many of the transactions giving rise 1o deferred lease premiums ook place a number of vears ago before
the requirement to spread profit recognitton, the Group has had to apply its judgement to estimate certam of the lease premium deferrals and
associated deferred tax assets

w) Performance fees

Recognition of performance fees recevable from funds reguires estimates to be made regarding the performance of funds over the duration of the
performance penod and, where performance 1s measured against relative benchmarks that have not yet been published, estimates of the expected
benchmark returns

v) befined benefit pension schemes
The balance sheet assets and liatwhizes and the expected annual charge in respect of defined benefit penston plans are determined according to estimates
carried out by actuarnies on the basis of assumptions agreed by the Board The key assumptions underlying these calculations are set out in Note 11

vi) Taxation
The Group apphies jJudgement in the application of taxation regulations and makes estimates in calculating current income tax and deferred tax assets
and habilities, including the likely availabehty of future taxable profits against which deferred tax assets can be utiised
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1 Accounting policies continued

{U) SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES (continued)
vi1) Eurozone

The Group has economic interests both directly and through entities within the Eurozone The value and income streams from these investments may be
impacted by the outcome of the economic and political uncertainty 1n the Euro area As a result of hmited comparable transactional evidence in certan
Eurozone markets there is a greater than usual degree of uncertainty in respect of the figures reported by our valuers in those markeis

2 Foreign currency

The principal exchange rates used to transtate into Sterling the results assets habiities and cash flows of overseas companies were as follows

Average rate Year end rate

201 2010 2011 2010

£1 11 £1 £1

Us Dollars 1.60 155 155 157
Canadian Dotlars 158 159 1.58 156
Euros 115 116 1.20 117
Austrahan Dollars 1.55 167 1.52 153
Hong Kong Dollars 12.43 1202 12.07 1217
Chinese Renminb: 10.33 10 47 9.78 10 32
Japanese Yen 127 04 136 18 119.57 126 98
Swedish Krona 10.52 - 10.65 -

3 Segmental analysis

The Group s reportable segments are the three regional Operating Companies Indirect Investments and Grosvenor fund Management These operating
segments reflect the components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the Group Chief Executive to allocate resources and assess performance
The accounting policies of the reportable segments are consistent with the Group accounting policies detailed in Note 1

The reportable segments presented in 2010 have heen restated in accordance with the new structure The restaternent of segment informatson has had no
impact on the balance sheet as at 31 December 2010 and therefore a balance sheet at the beginming of the comparative period 1S not required to be presented

2011
Proprietary assets — Direct Propnetary assets — Indirect
Managed by
Briean & ASKd Grosvenor Fund Sonae Grasvenas Fund Nol
Ireland AMercas Pacihc mMapagement S0eTa Management dltocated Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Income statement
Gross rental income 710 274 55 230 - - - 126.9
Property ouigoIings
(excluding major refurbishments) (214) 68 22 (54} - - - (35.8)
Net rental ncome 496 206 33 176 - - - 91.1
Fees and other income/(expenses) 43 54 16 16 02 281 09 40.7
Net losses on trading properties 60) 02) - ©3 - - - (12.5}
Administrative expenses 12y (147} (107 {84) - (29 8) (141 (89.8)
Net financing (costs)/income (25 5) (33 an on - 01 (15 (39.0}
Revenue profit/{loss) of joint ventures
{Note 22} 61 50 193 163 458 - (22) 90.3
Group revenue profit/(lass) 164 128 124 131 460 (16) {18 3) 80.8
Net gains on revaluation
and sale of investment praperties 2856 298 25 65 - - - 324.4
Major refurtishment costs 42 - - - - - - (4.2)
Net losses on other investments 31 - 02 - - @n (21 (7.1
Impairment of goodwill - - - o7 - - - (0.7)
Dervative fair value adjustmeants - 56) 05 (1 4} - - 6 4) (12.9)
Other gains/(losses) of joint ventures
{Note 22) - 124 191 {10 3) 607) - - (39.5)
Profit/(loss) before tax 2927 494 347 72 (147 17) (26 8) 3408
Tax and non-controlling interests
In joint ventures (25.8)

Profit before tax reported tn the
Income statement

315.0
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3 Segmental analysis continued
2011
Praprietary assets — Duect Propretary assets — indirect
Managed by
Briain & ASI3 Grosvenor Fund Sonae  Grosvenor Fund Hot
Ireland Ameas Pacific Management Seerra Management altocated Total
£m £m fm £m £m 1] £€m £m
Balance sheet (proportional basis)
Investment property 19134 6827 3550 8914 13113 49 - 51587
Investrment property
under development 832 - - - 190 - - 202.2
Trading property 2868 531 257 866 - - - 452 2
Other financial assets - 90 46 126 - 03 - 265
Total property assets 22834 7448 3853 990 6 14303 52 - 5,839.6
Net debt #141 {187 4) (160 6) (a411) 6237) 285 02 1,798 6)
Deferred tax (3632) (68 3} {12 5) (36 6) (206 1) 17 49 6801)
Other net {habilities)/assets (211 8) (21 4) 284 04 (1967) 219) 260 (397 8)
Net assets 1,294 3 4677 2406 5125 4038 135 307 2,963.1
Investment property additions 573 657 11 877 1142 04 - 3264
2010 (restated)
Propretary assets — DereCt Propsietary assets — Indirect
Mznaged by
Britam & As Grosvenor Fund Sonae Grosvenor Fund ot
Iretand Amencas Pacfic Management Sierra Management ahocated Total
fm m £m £m fm £m fm £m
tncome statement
Gross rental income 654 255 51 188 - - - 114 8
Property outgoings
{excludmg major refurbishments) (212) (61 20 (56) - - - (35 0)
Net rental iIncome 442 194 30 132 - - - 798
Fees and other income/(expenses) 66 47 0g 23 - 409 14 540
Net {losses)/gains on trading properties {4 3) 25) - 11 - - - ()]
Administrative expenses (i34 (141) @7 84 - 291) (115) (86.2)
Net finanong (costs)/ncome (24 0) (57 (16) (56) - 05 - (36 4)
Revenue {loss)/profit of jont ventures
(Note 22) an 58 151 109 329 02 G 587
Group revenue profit/{loss) 80 76 77 135 329 125 (18 0} 64.2
Net gamns on revaluation and sale
of investment properties 2576 267 29 52 - - - 292.4
Major refurtishment costs 61 - - - - - - 61)
Net lesses on gther investments 02 - - (13 - - - 15
Dervative fair value adjustments 06) 03 13 02 - - - [13:]
Other gains/(losses) of joint ventures
(Note 22) 0l 147 11 686 i39 oL - 98.3
Profit/(Joss) before tax 2588 493 130 858 468 124 (180) 4481
Tax and non-gontrolling interests
IN joInt ventures (53.3)

Profit before tax reported in the

income statement

3948
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3 Segmental analysis continued

2010 (restated)
Propnetary assets — Ooect Propnietary assets - Indirect
wanaged by
Britain & As@a  Grosvenor Fund Sorae  Grosvenor Fund Not
Irekand Americas Pacilic Management Serra Marapement Allocared Total
fm £m £m €m £m m £m £m
Balance sheet {propaortional basis)
Investment property 17098 5892 3220 9116 13982 44 - 49352
Investment property
under development 610 - - - 872 - - 143 2

Trading praperty 2136 401 191 727 - — - 3455
Other financial assets - 45 62 47 - 157 - 311
Total property assets 1,984 4 6338 3473 9890 1,485 4 201 - 54600
Net debt (3891) (1027) (148 4) {436 0) (683 4) 159 (39 (1,747 6)
Deferred tax (3204 (491} (109) 320 217 4) 28 128 614 2)
Other net (liabitities)/assets (1807 (17 0) 165 (36 3) (116 0) 68 180 (322 3)
Net assets 10942 4650 2045 4847 4686 320 269 27759
invesiment property additions 776 288 1851 185 276 - - 3376

4 Revenue profit

The Group uses revenue profit as Its primary measure of underlying operating performance The calculation of revenue profit and its reconcibation to
profit before tax is set out below

2011 2010
Share of joint Share of joint
Group veniures Jotal Group venmures Total
£m am £m £m £m £m
Gross rental Income 126.9 1823 309.2 148 1692 2840
Property outgongs (excluding major refurbishments) (35 8) (48.3) (84.1) (350) (427) arn
Net rental income (before major refurbishments) 011 1340 2251 798 126 5 2063
Fees and other income 407 141 548 540 186 726
{Loss)/profit on trading properties (12.5) 19 24 57) 19 38
Administrative expenses (89.8) (307) (120.5) (86 2) (B70) (123 2)
wet finanting costs excluding derwatve fair value adustments) (390} (42 0) (8L.0) 36 4} 513 877}
Revenue profit (9.5) 903 808 55 587 642
Reconcil:auion of revenue profit to profit before tax
Revenue (loss)/profit 9.5) 90.3 808 55 587 642
lont ventures
— Revenue profit - (903) (90 3) - (587 587
- Equity accounted profit - 250 250 - 1037 1037
Net gains on revaluation and sale
of Investment properties 324.4 — 324.4 2924 - 2924
Major refurbishment costs (4 2 - 4.2) ©n - 61
Net losses on other mvestments {7.1) - (71) (15) - 19
Impawrment of goodwill {0.7) - 07) - - -
Dermvative fair value adjustments (12.9) - 129 08 - 08
Profit before {ax 290.0 250 315.0 2911 1037 3948
5 Revenue
2011 2010
£m £m
Rental income 126 9 114 8
Income from trading and development properties 20.1 362
Service charge income 75 97
Other income 40.7 540

195.2 2147
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6 Gross rental income
2011 2010
£m m
Gross lease payments recewvable 1257 1130
Amortisation of capitalised lease incentives (1.4) on
Amortisation of deferred lease premiums 2.6 19
1269 114 8

Investment properties are leased out under operating leases The majority of operating lease terms fall in the range between six months and 20 years

Total contingent rents included in gross rental income amounted to £0 1m (2010 £0 1m)

7 Property outgoings

o1 2010
£m £m
Service charge income 7.5 97
Service charge expenses 81 (10 2)
Net service charge expenses (0.6) 05)
Major refurtishment cosis 4.2) 61)
Other property operating expenses (35 2) (345
Total net property outgomngs (40 0) 411
Operating expenses associated with unlet properties totalled £1 6m (2010 £2 3m)
8 Other income
2011 2010
£m £im
Fund management and asset management fees 337 475
Project management fees 30 29
Other mcome 4.0 36
40.7 540
9 Administrative expenses
2011 2010
£m £m
staff costs 606 603
Office costs 14.6 139
Auditor’s remuneration — audit services 13 12
— other services 0.4 (631
Other professional fees 126 107
Other administrative expenses 0.3 -
89.8 862

All of the Group s Operating Companies were audited by Deloitte LLP and other member firms of Deloitie Touche Tohmatsu Limited £0 5m

(2010 £0 5m) of the total audit fee 1s estmated to relate to the audit of the Group and £0 8m (2010 £0 7m) to the audit of the Group s subsidiaries
The Company's audit fees (£0 1m) were borne by anather Group company (2010 £0 Im) Amounts paid ta other accountancy firms in 2011 totzlled

£1 8m (2010 £15m)
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10 Employee information

201 2010
£m £m
Stafi costs
Wages and salaries 563 578
Social security contnibutions 39 55
Other s1aff costs 12 53
Pension costs
Contnbutions to defined contributson plans 31 29
Net cost of defined benefit plans (Note il) 26 59
771 774
Included in
Administrative expenses 60.6 603
Property operating expenses 7.8 85
Development costs 8.7 86
771 774
Employee numbers
atend of year Average
2011 2010 2011 2010
Number Number Number Humber
Britain & treland 242 245 244 263
Americas 63 62 63 60
Asia Pacific 62 44 53 43
Fund Management 133 135 134 135
Indirect* 2 17 9 17
Holding Company and shared services 43 a4 43 44
545 547 546 562

“Indirect staff in 2010 represents the 17 staff in Australia The staff i Ausiralia were transferred to Grosvenor Fund Management during the year
The Company employs mil staff (2010 mil)

11 Retirement benefit schemes

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION SCHEMES

The Group operates a number of defined contribution retirement benefit schemes The Group coniributes a percentage of salary into defined contribution
schemes to fund the henefits The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of Independent pension
providers The only obligation of the Group with respect to the defined contribution schemes 1s to make the specified contributions

The total cost of defined contribution pension schemes charged to the income statement was £3 1m (2010 £2 9m)

DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates defined benefit pension schemes in Britain & Ireland, the USA Canada and Australia as explamed on page 75 Benefits

in the scheme in tISA were frozen in 2007 and the scheme in Canada was closed to new entrants In 2008 The scheme in Austrafia was closed
as at 31 December 2011

The defined benefit schemes are funded and are administered by independent and employer related trustees Independent qualified actuaries complete
valuations of the schemes at least every three years and in accordance with therr recommendations annual contributions are paid to the schemes so as
to secure the benefits set out I the rules

The Britain & Ireland scheme 15 a multi-employer scheme because it provides pensions for both the Group and employees of other entities owned
by the Shareholders The Group accounts for its proportionate share of the defined benefit obligaton scheme assets and cost of this scheme, based
on the proportion of the accrued habibities that relate to the Group s employees

Actuarial valuations were last carried out at the following dates

Britain & Ireland 31 becember 2008 (see below)
USA 31 December 2009
Canada 31 December 2010

Australia 30 June 2008
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11 Retirement benefit schemes continued
All the valuations have been updated to 31 December 2011 The triennial valuation of the Britain & Ireland scheme as at 31 December 2011 1s i the
course of being completed The results of these valuations together with the key assumptions used are set out below
In addition to the defined benefit schemes set out above the Group operates unfunded defined benefit schemes in Britain & Ireland and the USA
to satisfy pension commtments not catered for by the funded schemes
The Group has agreed with the Trustees of the Britain & Ireland scheme to make contributions, in addition to payments in respect of the continuing
accryal of benefits, of £3 7m per annum unul 2018 to fund the scheme deficit The level of contributions will be reviewed following the next triennal
valuation due as at 31 December 2011
The amounts recogmsed in the income statement in respect of defined benefit schemes are
2011 2010
£m £€m
Current service cost 5.2 51
Interest cost 9.2 88
Expected return on scheme assets 38) B0
Settlements and curtallments (3.0) -
2.6 59
The amounts mncluded in the balance sheet arising from the Group’s obligations i respect of defined henefit schemes are
2011 2010
£m m
Present value of unfunded obligations (152) (133
Present value of funded obligations (162 6) (158 2)
Present value of 1otal defined benefit obhigations (177 8) (171 5)
Far value of scheme assets 140.6 134 4
Detined benefit pension deficit 372 (371
The net deficit arises in the following regions
Britain & kreland (15.2) (18 6)
UsA (14 0) {102
Canada (8.0} (58
Australia - 25)
(372) (371)
Movements in the present value of defined benefit obhigations are
2011 2010
&m £m
At 1 January 1715 152 4
Current service cost 52 51
Past service cost 01 -
Interest cost 92 as
settlements and curtailments (0 -
Actuarial losses 2.3 71
Benefits paid 72) (54)
Exchange movements (03) 35
At 31 December 177.8 1715
Analysis of the scheme habilities.
2011 2010
£m &m
Britain & Ireland 120.6 1176
usa 237 203
Canada 298 267
Australia 37 69
At 31 December 1778 1715
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11 Retirement benefit schemes continued
Movements in fair value of scheme assets were

2011 2010
£m fm
At January 134.4 1152
Expected return on scheme assets &8 80
Actuanial {losses)/gans (10.1) 65
Contnbutions by the employer 149 74
Benefits pad 7.1 (53)
Exchange movemenis (0.3) 26
At 31 December 1406 1344
Analysis of the scheme assets and the expected rates of return
2011
Equities Bonds QOther Tota!
% fm % fm % £m £m
Britain & Ireland 68 824 37 214 30 16 105.4
USA 92 71 50 23 34 03 9.7
Canada 33 a7 30 58 20 73 21.8
Australia n/a - n/a - n/a 37 3.7
982 295 129 140.6
2010
Equities Bonds Other Total
% £m % fm 9% £m €m
Britamn & treland 72 777 a6 201 42 12 990
USA 92 77 51 23 35 01 101
Canada 85 87 36 60 22 62 209
Austraha 82 29 52 09 63 06 44
970 293 81 1344
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11 Retirement benefit schemes continued
2011
Britain &
Iretand UsA Canada Auvstralia
Discount rate 4.8% 4 3% 4 5% 4.3%
Expected return on scheme assets 6.2% 70% 4.4% nfa
Expected rate of salary increase 4 8% n/a 3.5% nfa
Expected rate of future pension increase 3.3% 3.0% 32% nfa
Inflagton 313% 3.0% 2.3% nfa
2010
Britan &
freland USA Canada Australia
Dsscount rate 5 4% 5 4% 5 5% 5 (0%
Expected return on scheme assets 6 8% 70% 47% 6 5%
Expected rate of salary ncrease 6 6% n/a 3 5% 40%
Expected rate of future pension increase 35% 30% 2 5% 2 0%
Inflation 35% 30% 2 5% 2 5%
Male Female
2011 2010 2011 2010
Life expectancy of a 65-year-old today
Britain & trefand 257 253 27.0 268
usa 191 190 210 209
Canada 19.6 195 22.0 220
Australia nfa 222 nfa 250
Life expectancy of a 65-year-old in 20 years
Britain & Ireland 280 285 290 287
usA 191 190 21.0 209
Canada 211 210 228 228
Austraha n/a 234 nfa 262
The sensitivity to the assumptions above of the total defined benefit obligation and approximate income statement charge 1s set out below
Total defined Approxemate
beng’t obligalion charge n 2012
£m m
Based on the assumptions above 1778 54
Approximate impact of
Increase in discount rate by 0 25% 81 (04)
Increase i inflation rate by 0 25% 78 08
Increase In life expectancy by one year at 65 50 04
Increase in return on assets by 0 25% - (04
The history of experience gains and losses Is as follows
201 2010 2005 2008 2007
£m £m Tm £m £m
Present value of defined benefit obhigation (177.8) {1715) (152 4) {1209) (113 8)
Farr value of scheme assets 140 6 1344 1152 914 046
Deftait in the schemes (372) (371 372 (295} 92
Experience adjustments on scheme assets
Amount of (loss)/gan aon 65 137 279 12
Percentage of scheme assets 7 2% 4 8% 119% 305% 11%
Experience adjustments on scheme hiabilities
Amount of gain/(loss) 07 (TaY (257 72 56
Percentage of the present value of scheme labilities 0 4% 4 1% 16 9% 6 0% 49%
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12 Directors’ remuneration detals

2011 2010
£000 £000

Aggregate remuneraiton
Emoluments 1,230 2,867
Performance-related bonus 365 1,609
Long-term ncentive scheme 275 1,053
1,870 5529

The total amounts payable under long-term incentive schemes comprise all amounts to which Directors became unconditionally entitled during
the year including aggregate amounts that vested as a consequence of Directors retinng

The amounts abave include for the highest paid Director emoluments of £631 000 (2010 £598 000) performance-related bonus of £223 000
(2010- £247 000) and long-term incentive plans of £130,000 (2010 £84,000)

Retirement benefits accrue tg two Directors under defined benefit schemes sponsared by Group companies both of whom are members of a scheme
that combines defined benefit and money purchase benefits The total annual accrued pension ynder the defined benefit pension schemes was

£51 000 (2010 £476,000) and for the tughest paid Director was £47 000 (2010 £43,000) Tatal contributions in respect of money purchase pension
benefits were £51,000 {2010 £258 000) and for the highest paid Director were £mil {2010 £nil)

13 Net losses on trading properties

2011 2010
£m £m
Development €osts {10 8) (110}
Proceeds from sale of trading properties 200 330
Carrying value of trading properties sold (151) (293
Provision for impairment of trading properties 67 20
Reversal of provision for impairment of trading properties - 34
Uphft on trading properties completed and transferred to investment property 0.1 02z
(12 5) 57
The carrying value of trading properties sold includes £nil of capitalised interest (2010 £nil)
14 Net losses on other investments
2011 2010
£m £m
Loss on disposal of interests in jont ventures (55) (15)
Impairment of joint ventures (2 6} -
Gain on disposal of other fixed assets 10 -

(71) (15}
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15 Net gains on revaluation and sale of investment property
201 2010
£m fm
Valuation gains on investment property 2671 2567
Valuation losses on investment property 6.7} (16 Q)
Valuation {losses)/gains on redevelopment properties (0.9} 125
Net valuation gains on investment property 259 5 2532
Profit on disposal of investment property 649 392
3244 292 4
16 Net financing costs
2011 2010
£m im
Dividend income 0.1 04
Interest iIncome 54 86
Other financial income 3.7 15
Financial income 9.1 101
Gross interest expense {including dividends on preference shares) 472) 416)
Interest capitalised 3.2 02
Commitment and other financing costs (5% GY)]
Financial expenses (499) 474)
Fair value adjustments of interest rate swaps and foreign exchange contracts {129) 09
Loss on property dervatives - on
Derwatve far value adjustments {129} 08
Fair value adjustments of embedded derwatives 17 05
Total far value adjustments {11.2) 3
Net financing costs (51.9) (356

The average rate of interest capitahised in the year was 7 0% (2010 6 5%)

The fair value adjustments above nclude interest rate swaps which relate to cash tlow hedges that are not designated as effecuve The movements in

fasr value of these derwvatives arise from undertying market movements and changes in ime to maturity

17 Income tax expense

Recogmised in the income statement

2001 2010
£m fm
Current tax expense
UK corporation tax at 26 5% (2010 28 Q%) 77 46
Overseas tax 6.2 67
Adjustment for prior years 08 938)
147 15
Deferred tax expense
Ongmation and reversal of temporary differences 56.7 772
Benefit of tax losses recogmsed (0.5) {04)
Adjustment for prior years (1.8) 03)
54.4 765
Total iIncome tax expenses In the tncome statement 691 780
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17 Income tax expense continued

201 2010
Deferred tax recognised n other comprehensive iInceme £m £m
Revaluation of property plant and equipment o8 09
Fair value adjusiments on financeal nstruments treated as cash flow hedges 0.4 -
Fair value adjustments on available for sale financsal assets 07 01
Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension schemes 2.7 on
Foreign exchange movemnents 19 32
Total Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income 11 41
Reconcihiation of effective tax rate
Profit before taxation 315.0 3948
Less share of profit of joint ventures (25 0) (1037)
Add prohit of joint ventures where the tax charge is directly attributable to the Group 214 a72
Adjusted Group profit before taxation 311.4 3783
Tax credit on adjusted Group profit at standard UK corporation tax rate of 26 5% {2010 28 0%) 825 1059
Higher tax rates on overseas earnings 60 83
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 55 6l
Other items attracting no tax rehef or hability 20 (223
Other tming differences 2.5 26
Reduction In tax rate (28 4) (125
Adjustments in respect of prior years (1.0} o1
Total income tax expense in the income statement 691 780
Effective tax rate based on adjusted Group profit 22 2% 20 6%

FACTORS AFFECTING FUTURE TAX CHARGES

The Budget on 23 March 2011 announced that the UK corporate tax rate would decrease from 28% to 26% from 1 April 2011 {rather than 27% as

previously enacted in 2010} The Finance Act 2011 enacted a further reduction to 25% from 1 April 2012

A current tax rate of 26 5% has been applied to the year ended 31 Becember 2011 1n the UK a deferred tax rate of 25% has been applied to opening

balances and movermnents in deferred tax in the year ended 31 December 2011

Subsequent annual rate reductions will require the restatemnent of deferred tax balances and this 15 ikely to reduce the effective tax rate of the Group
when compared to the statutory tax rate In 2011 the restatement of deferred tax balanges has reduced the effective tax rate of the Group from 31 3%
t0 22 2% {2010 23 9% to 20 694) and the overall impact of the rate change 15 a reduction in the tax charge of £28 4m (2010 £12 5m)

18 Property assets

The table below analyses the Group s Interests in property assets on a proportional basis including the Group s share of property assets i joint

ventures and associates
2011 010
Note £m €m
Investment property — Group 19 2,729.5 24649
— Share of joint ventures 22 2,429.2 24703
Investment properties under development — Group 19 83.2 610
~ Share of jomt ventures 22 119.0 872
Trading properties - Group 26 245.2 1387
— Share of jomnt ventures 22 207.0 206 8
Other financial assets* ~ Group 23 26.5 311
Total property assets 5,839.6 54600

*0Other financial assets included in property assets refate to equity and debt investments in praperty companes
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19 Investment property
Completed property uUnder development
Freehold Leasehold Totat Freehold teasehold Total Total
£m &m £m Em &m im £m

At 1 January 2010 7221 1553 4 22755 36 - 36 2,279.1
Acquisitions 296 634 930 01 17 18 948
Costs capitalised 26 44 70 01 58 59 129
Disposals (510) (120 4) (171 4) - - - (171.4)
Revaluation gans 178 2202 2380 - 125 125 2505
Release of deferred costs (10} 08 02 - - - {0.2)
Depreaiation of short leasehold properties - 08 08 - - - (0.8)
Transfer from/(to) redevelopment projects 02 (374) (372) 02 374 372 -
Transfer to trading properties (28) - 2 8) - - - (2.8)
Exchange movements 585 53 638 - - - 638
At 31 December 2010 776 0 16889 24649 36 574 6l0 2,525 9
Acqguisitions 506 246 752 01 - 01 75.3
Costs capitalised 14 67 81 - 248 248 329
Disposals (401 449 85 0) - - - {850)
Revaluation gains 368 2284 2592 {09 - 09 2583
Release of deferred costs {16 on an - - - 1.7)
Transfer from/(to) redevelopment projects 18 - 18 18 - (18) -
Transfer from trading properties 17 - 17 - - - 17
Exchange movements 15 38 53 - - - 53
At 31 December 2011 8221 1,9074 27265 10 822 832 28127

Investment properties were valued at 31 December 2011 by independent external valuers on the basis of market value in accordance with generally
accepted international valuation standards Valuations were performed as follows

m

Britain & Ireland Freehold DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Chartered Surveyors 772
Long leasehold DTZ Debenham Tie Leung, Chartered Surveyors 19194

Americas Freehold Cushman & Wakefield Le Page, Chartered Surveyars 2525
Freehold Altus Group Research valuation and advisory 2007

Asea Pacific Freehold Tanizawa SOGO Appraisal Co Ltd 244
Long leasehold Daiwa Real Estate Apprarsal Co Lid 158

Long leasehold Savills Valuation & Professional Services Limited 544

Indirect Investments Freehold Cushrnan & wakefield, Chartered Surveyors 391
Freehold Jones Lang LaSalle, Chartered Surveyors 2292

28127

The historical cost of the Group s investment properties was £1 161 1m (2010 £1 184 2m)

At 31 December 2011, investment properties with a carrying amount of £1,467 4m were pledged as secunty for bank loans (2010 £1 306 8m)

Included in the above are mvestment properttes available for sate of £11 2m (2010 £9 6m)
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20 Other property, plant and equipment

2011
Computer Fixtures fitt rgs
Land and Leaszhotd and IT and motor
buildings imprevements equpment vehxles Total
£m fm £&m im £m
Cost
At 1 January 2011 289 68 55 90 50.2
Additions - 02 26 09 3.7
Disposals - 06) {04) (05) (1.5)
Revaluation gains 38 - - - 38
At 31 December 2011 327 64 77 94 56.2
Depreciation
At I January 2011 on 60) {43} a2 (14.6)
Depreciation charge for the year - 03 X)) 14 (2.3)
Disposals - 05 04 D4 1.3
At 31 December 2011 01) 58) {4 5) 52 (15.6)
Carrying amount
At 1 January 2011 288 08 12 48 35.6
At 31 December 2011 326 06 32 42 40.6
2010
Computer Fixtures fitt ngs
Land and Leasehold and IT and motor
buldings Improvements equipment vehrles Total
£m Em Em £m £m
Cost
At 1 Jlanuary 2010 253 06 65 89 473
Additrons - 01 02 01 04
Disposals - - 13 on {14)
Revaluation gams 36 - - - 36
Exchange movements - 01 01 01 03
At 31 December 2010 289 68 55 90 502
Depreciation
At January 2010 on (56) {49) 36) (14 2)
Depreciation charge for the year - 03) 07 (¢15)] L6)
Disposais - - 13 01 14
Exchange movements - on - on 02
At 31 December 2010 on 60 {4 3) 42 (14 6)
Carrying amount
At 1 January 2010 252 10 16 53 331
At 31 December 2010 288 08 12 48 356

Land and buwidings are freehold and were valued at 31 becember 2011 by independent valuers DTZ Debenham Tie Leung, Chartered Surveyors
on the basis of market value for existing use in accordance with the Appraisal and Valuation Manual of the Roval Institution of Chartered Surveyors

The histortcal cost of the Group s revalued land and buildings above at 31 December 2011 was £13 6m (2010 £13 &m)
The carrymng value of freehold land and buildings includes capitalised interest of £ni1{2010 £nil)
At 31 December 2011 land and buildings with a carrying value of £nil were pledged as secunty for bank loans (2010 £28 3m}
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21 Investments 1n subsidiaries
Company
Shares
at cost
£m
At 1 January 2011 and 31 December 2011 1,358 4

At 31 December 2011, the Group had the following principal investments in subsidianes

INTERMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANIES

Grosvenor Estate Holdings**

Grosvenor Limited

Grosvenor Americas Limited (Canada)

Grosvenor Americas USA Inc {USA)

Grosvenor International SA (Luxembourg)®

Grosvenor International Investments SARL {Luxembourg)
Grosvenor Continental Europe Holdings SA {Luxembourg)
Grosvenor First European Property Investments SA (Luxembourg)!
Grosvenor Asia Pacific Limited (Hong Kong)

Grosvenor Australia Investments Pty Limited (Australia)

FINANCING
Grosvenor Group Finance Company™
Grosvenor UX Finance PIC

*Unlimited company
*100% of preference shares are also owned

PROPERTY INVESTMENT
Grosvenor West End Properties*
Eaton Square Properties Limited
Grosvenor (Basingstoke) Limited
Grosvenor Commercial Properties*
Grosvenor Properties®

0!d Broad Street Properties Limited
Liverpocl Property Investments Limited
Grosvenor Realty Investments Limited
Cambridge Retarl investments Limited

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT
Grosvenor Developments Limited
Liverpool PSDA Limited

FUND MANAGEMENT

Grosvenor Fund Management Limited

Grosvenor Fund Management UK Limited

Grosvenor International Fund Management Limited

Grosvenor investment Management Limited

Grosvenor Fund Management (USA) Inc (USA}

Grosvenor Fund Management (CE} SA (France)

Grosvenor Fund Management Hong Kong Limited (Hong Kong)
Grosvenor Japan Limited (Japan)

Grosvenor Fund Management Australia Pty Limited (Australia)

e0rdinary and non-voting preference shares are wholly owned All of the floating rate guaranteed class B voting preferred redeemable shares which carry approximatety

36% of the tofal voeing nghts are publicly held
177 5% owned

All the above companies except Grosvenor Estate Holdings are indirectly owned All companies are whelly owned and incorporated in Great Britain
except where indicated Except as disclosed above, all interests are i the form of ordinary shares

The above represent the Group's material subsidiary undertakings A full list of all subsidiary undertakings s available on request
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22 Investments 1n joint ventures
2011

Proprietary assets — Direqt

Praprietary assets — indicect

Managed by
Britam & Asia Grosvenor Fund sanae Grasvenor Fund Kot
Ireland Americas Paaihc Management Sierra Management allocated Tota!
£m £m im £m £€m £m £€m £mm
Share of profit from
joint ventures
Gross rental Income 10 162 130 414 1105 g2 - 182.3
Property OUtEOINES (05) 54) (28) (102 (293) on - (48.3)
Net rental ncome 05 108 102 32z 812 01 - 1340
Fees and gther (expenses)/income - (11) 01 04 147 - - 141
Net gain/(losses) on trading properties 67 01 116 09 {42 - - 149
Administrative expenses - 02 (0 5) (36) (24 1) 1) 22 (30.7)
Net finanuing cosis 11} (4 4) (E8)] (12 6) (218) - - (42.0)
Revenue profit/{loss) 61 50 193 163 458 - 22) 903
Net gains/(losses) on revaluation
and sale of nvestment properties - 126 191 (85) 202) - - 3.0
Net gains on other investments - - - 01 - - - 0.1
Impasrment of goodwill - - - 04 (405) - - {340 9)
Derivative fair value adjustrents - 02 - {19 - - - .7)
Profit/(loss) before tax 61 174 384 60 {14 9) - 22) 50.8
Current tax - - 22 47) (92 - - (16 1)
Deferred tax - - 04 26 12 - - 1.0
Non-controlling interest - - - 01 (10 6) - - (10.7)
61 174 358 38 (359) - 22) 25.0
Share of assets and liabilities
Non-current assets
- investment properties - 2295 2604 6231 11,3113 49 - 2,429.2
- Investment properties
under development - - - - 1190 - - 119.0
- pther 01 - - 189 49] 03) - 678
Current assets
-cash 59 31 208 323 647 08 - 1276
- trading propertres 1478 99 257 236 - - - 207.0
- other 81 13 194 74 677 - - 1039
Non-current hiabilities 173) (84 4) (1396) (361 2) (11253) 27 - (1,730.5)
Current babilities (102 1) 49 (78) 409 (932) o) 01 (249.2)
Net assets 425 154 5 1789 3032 3933 23 01 1,074 8
Borrowings included in labilities (84 1) {84 8} (1373 {360 49) {6890) (26) - (1,358.2)

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of part of the investment 1n Sonae Sierra has been reviewed for imparment As a consequence of this review
an imparment for the full amount of the goodwill has been recognised
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22 Investments in joint ventures continued
2010 (restated)
Proprietary assets = Direct Proprietary assets — Indirect
Managed by
Brta:n & Asa  Grosvenor Fund Sonae  Grosvenor Fung Not
weland AMenas Paific Management Serra Management allpcated Totat
£m im im £m £m m fm fm
Share of profit from
Jomnt ventures
Gross rental income 03 175 46 472 995 01 - 1692
Property outgoings 03 60 2o (101 (24 2) ©n - 427)
Net rental income - 115 26 371 753 - - 126 5
Fees and other ncome - - - - 184 02 - 186
Net gamns/(losses) on trading properties 03 - 146 - (130 - - 19
Administrative expenses on (16) (08) (55) 239) - 51 (370)
Net financing costs 13 41 13 (207) (239) - - (51 3}
Revenue {lossy/profit y 58 151 109 329 02 61 587
Net gains/{losses) on revaluation
and sale of investment properties - 140 28 704 141 [(13)] - 012
Net losses on other investments 0l - (17} on {02 - - (19)
Derivative fair value adjustments - 07 - (00)] - - - 10)
Profit/(loss) before tax 10 205 162 795 458 01 [C3Y} 1570
Current tax - 02 (22) 04) $6) - - (12 4)
Deferred tax - - on 20 218 - - (24 0)
Non-controlling interest - - - - (16 9) - - (16 9)
(10) 203 139 770 (15) 01 51 1037
Share of assets and habilities
Non-current assets
—investment properties - 1950 2353 6374 13982 44 - 24703
~ investment praperties
under development - - - 8§72 - - 872
— other 02 - - 29 618 - - 649
Current assets
—cash 35 17 177 445 245 08 - 927
— trading properties 1752 67 191 58 - - - 2068
—other 20 14 184 84 704 0t - 1007
Non-current iabilities 172 ©01) (1099) (132 0) (1,110 4) Q24 - (15320)
Current hatnlities 301 {133) (40 3) (282 Q) (1030) (1)) 23 (467 3)
Net assets 3o 1314 1403 2850 4287 20 23 10233
Goodwill - - - - 400 - - 400
336 1314 140 3 2850 4687 20 23 1063 3
Borrowtngs tncluded in labilities (108 9) (70 4) {107 4) (374 2) (7079) {22 - (13710
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22 Investments in joint ventures continued

At 31 December 2011 the Group had the following principal interests in joint vertures which are accounted for on the basis explaned in Note 1

Group share
Countryol Efftectne of net assets
Prncipal actvilies WICOrDOT 3LON/TeISINEon migrest tm
Britan & Ireland
GC Bankside LLP Property development England and Wales 50 0% 157
GC Campden Hill LLP Property development England and Wales 50 0% 108
Barkhill Lenmted Property development Republc of Ireland 50 0% 63
The Grouss Restdential Investment Partnership Property development Scotland 318% 95
Alpha Place Developments LLP Property development England and Wales 330% 39
Trumpington Meadows Land Company Ltd Property development England and Wales 50 0% €]
Americas
ot ventures with BBCAF Inc Property investment United States of America 50 0%/25 0% 1211
loint ventures with the Getty Famuily Trust Property investment United States of Amenca 50 0% 62
Art Hill Management Property investment United States of America 48 9% 69
Joint ventures with Rockwood Property mvestment United States of America 330% 20
Joint ventures with Maple Leaf Property investment United States of America 51 0% 120
Joint ventures with JBC Companies Property development United States of America 50 0% 64
Asia Pacific
Seatonmere Limited Property nvestrnent Heng Kong 50 0% 141 2
Paramount Shine Limited Property development Hong Kong 500% 132
GT3 Tokute! Mokuter Kaisya Property investment Japan 50 0% 60
Grosvenor Park Partners Property development Cayman Islands 50 0% 19
Chengdang investment Corporation Property development China 10 0% 66
indirect Investments
Grosvenor Shopping Centre Fund Property investment England and Wales 23 4% 512
Grosvenor London Office Fund Property investment England and Wales 24 2% 752
Grosvenor Festival Place Fund Property investment England and Wales 26 2% 298
Grosvenor Residential Investment Fund Property investment England and Wales 50 0% 95
Grosvenor Liverpool Fund Property investment England and Wales 19 6% 568
GEMOA Inc Property investment United States of America 20 0% 131
Shmael US Real Estate Fund Property investment United States of America 10 0% 14
Grosvenor Residential Investment Partners Property investment United States of America 25 0% 102
US Healthcare Venture Property investrment United States of America 50% 12
Grosvenor Vega — China Retal Fund Property investment China 70% 76
Grosvenor Diamond Capital — Stable Residential Fund ~ Property tnvestment Japan 4 0% i4
Grosvenor Capital Adwisors Partnership Property investment Japan 33 796/18 8% 156
Grosvenor Office Retail Fund Property investment Japan 7 6% 49
Hassall Street Trust Property development Australia 50 0% i30
Sonae Sierra SGPS 5A Property investment
and development Portugal 50 0% 3933

*Certain investments in joInt ventures in Continental Europe are controlled by Grosvenor First European Property Investments SA{GFEPI) which 1s 77 5% owned by the

Group The effective interest above includes the interests of the non-controlling investors in GFEP1

The financial statements mclude on an equity accounted basis the results and financial position of the Group $ interests in UK hmited partnerships

Accordingly advantage has been taken of the exemptions provided by Regulation 7 of the Partnerships and Unhimited Companies (Accounis) Regulations

1992 as amended by §1 2005 No 1987 The Partnerships and Unlimited Companies (Accounts) (Amendment) Regulations 2005 which dispenses with the
requirement for those partnerships to file accounts with Compames House
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23 Other financal assets
201 2010
€m £m
Non-current assets
Equity shares 175 266
Finance lease recewables 69 69
Mezzanmne loans 75 40
Other financial assets 5.0 51
369 426
Current assets
Mezzanine loans 3.2 05
Included n the above are praperty related financial assets of £26 5m (2010 £31 1m)
Principal financial assets at 31 December 2011
Equity shares
Country of Ellective
PrinCipal achvites INCOFporaton intergst
Asla Standard International Group Limited Property investment and development Hong Kong 4 1%
(hsted on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange)
ISPT Grosvenor International Property Trust Property investment vehicle Austrahia 99%
Finance lease receivables
2011 2010
£m &m
Finance lease recevable 55 55
Unguaranteed residual value 14 14
6.9 69
Finance lease receivables in respect of rents on leasehold properties are recewvable as follows
Mintmum Unearned
lease payments finance income Principal
fm £m &im
Less than one year 07 07 -
Between one and five years 28 28 -
Mare than five years 928 873 55
963 908 55

MEZZANINE LOANS

Mezzanine lpans are loans provided to residennal developers in the USA and Canada A return is earned comprising a fixed rate interest and a share

of the profits on completion of the develgpment
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24 Intangible assets

2011
Other
irtargble
Goodwill assels Total
fm fm £m
Cost
At 1 January 2011 8¢9 17 10.6
Exchange movements 03 - (0.3)
At 31 December 2011 86 17 10.3
Amortisation/impairment
At 1 January 2011 40 a7 a7
Impatrment {07) - 0.7
Exchange movemeants 02 - 0.2
A1 31 December 2011 {4 5) 17 6.2)
carrying amount
At 1 January 2011 49 - 4.9
At 31 December 2011 41 - 4.1
2010
Other
intangible
Goodwll assels Total
im £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2010 92 26 118
Disposals - 1y 10
Exchange movements 03) 01 02
At 31 December 2010 89 17 106
Amortisation/imparrment
At 1 January 2010 42 26) (6 8
Disposals - 10 10
Exchange movements 02 ©on 01
At 31 December 2010 (40) a”n (57}
Carrying amount
At 1)anuary 2010 50 - 50
At 31 Dacember 2010 49 - 49
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25 Deferred tax assets and liabihities
RECOGNISED DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Deferred tax assets and [labilities are attributable to the following items
2011 2010
ASELtS Liabirties Net Assets Liabeites Net
£m £m £m £m im £&m

Investrment property — contingent gains 269 (552 6} {(5257) 223 (4991) {476 8)
Investment property — deferred gains 468 - 46.8 449 - 449
Other property plant and equipment 0.1 {11.9) (118) 02 (120 (11 8)
Other financial assets 04 (0.5) on 26 06 20
Interest-bearmg loans and borrowings 59 0.9) 5.0 37 12 25
Employee benefits 160 (3.8) 122 153 (35) 118
Provisions 1.0 - 10 03 - 03
QOther items 55 {6.7) 12) 63 BG7 06
Tax vatue and loss carry-forwards recognised 0.8 - 0.8 83 - a3
Tax assets/(liabilities) 103.4 (576.4) (473 0) 1039 (522 1) (418 2)

At 31 December 2011 no deferred tax was provided in respect of unremitted earmngs of overseas subsidiaries because the Groug 1s able to control
the timing of the reversal of temporary differences and 15 satisfied that st1s probable they will not reverse in the foreseeable future At 3t December
2011 the total of these temporary differences was £416 2m (2010 £434 9m) and the potential tax effect £25 8m (2010 £217m) The temporary
differences at 31 December 2011 represent only the unremitted earnings of those overseas subsidianes where remittance of these earaings would stili
result In a tax hability principally as a result of diwdend withholding taxes levied by the overseas tax jurisdictions in which these substdiaries operate

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

201

2010

£m £m
Tax losses 385 305
Movement in temporary differences dustng the year
Balance at Balance at
1 January Recognised Recogrised Exchange 31 December
20n In Income N equity moverment 2011
£m fm fm fm £m
Investment property — contingent gains (476 8) 472) 08 09) (525 7}
Investment property — deferred gains 449 20 - {on 46.8
Other property plant and equipment (11 8) - - - (11.8)
Other financial assets 20 (14) o7 - (01
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 25 29 04 - 5.0
Employee benefits 18 23 27 - 122
Prowvisions 03 07 - - 1.0
Other items 06 a7n - on (12)
Tax value and loss carry-forwards recognsed 83 (74) - on 0.8
(418 2) (54 4) 08 {12) (473 0}
26 Trading properties
2011 2010
£&m £m
At 1 January 1387 1423
Additions ne o0 218
Capitalised interest 16 -
Disposals (15.1) (293)
Provision for imparrment ©7) (r30)]
Reversal of provision for impairment - 34
Transfer (to)/from vestment properties {L7) 28
Transfer from joint ventures 14 -
Exchange movements 2.0 03
At 31 December 2452 1387

At 31 Decernber 2011 trading properties with a carrying amount of £51 6m were pledged as security for bank loans (2010 £51 2m)
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27 Trade and other receivables

Company

01 2010 201 2010
£m im im fm
Trade recervables 208 167 - -
Recewvables due from subsidiaries - - 174.4 2003
Recervables due from joint ventures 678 702 - -
Other recevables 61.3 567 - -
Prepayments 4.3 94 - -
Accrued Income 43 39 - -
158.5 156 9 174 4 2003

Included in the above are recervables due after more than one year totalling £0 Im (2010 £0 2m)

28 Cash and cash equivalents

2011 2010
£m £&m
Bank balances 694 1148
Cash deposits 168.1 154 6
Cash and cash equivalents 237.5 2694
Bank overdrafts 01 Q1)
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows 237.4 2693

The amount of cash and cash equivalents not avaiiabte for use by the Group totals £26 Sm (2010 £32 1m) of which £1 2m (2010 £20 5m) has been

pledged as collateral

29 Interest-bearing loans and horrowings

2011

2010

£m im

Non-current habilities
Secured bank loans 314.5 2634
Unsecured bank loans 50.1 629
Secured bond 1ssues 2021 202 2
Unsecured bond issues 1775 526
Finance lease liabilities 1.4 14
Loan from non-controlling interests in subsidiaries 1.4 09
Preference shares 298 304
7768 6138

Current hatuhties

Current portion of secured bank loans 265 637
Current portion of unsecured bank loans - 598
Current portion of currency swaps 21 13
28.6 1248

The bank loans and secured bonds are secured over mnvestment properties with a carrying vatue of £1 467 4m (2010 £1,306 8m) land and bulldings
with a carrying value of £nil (2010 £28 3m) and trading properties with a carrying value of £51 6m (2010 £51 2m) Included in secured bond issues is

€2 2m (2010 £2 4m) of net un-amortised premium The preference shares are issued by a subsidiary undertaking (see Note 21)

FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES
Finance lease abilities are payable as follows

2011 2010

Muinimum Minumum

lease lease
payments Interest Prindipal payments. tnterest Principal
£m [7:)] £m £m £&m £m
Less than one year 0.3 03 - 03 03 -
Between one and five years 1.2 12 - 12 12 -
More than five years 727 713 1.4 731 717 14
742 728 1.4 746 732 14
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30 Financial instruments

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

111

The capital structure of the Group comprises debt which mcludes the borrowings disctosed in Note 29, cash and cash equivalents disclosed in Note 28
and equity comprising (ssued share capual, reserves and retained earrings as disclosed in Notes 36 and 37

The Group manages its capital to optimise the aflocation of equity between the Gperating Companies and Indirect Investments and to enable them to
meet therr short medium and long-term targets Internaf gearing and interest cover limits are set for the Group and each Operating Company Group

geaning at the year end 15 19 9% (2010 1779%)

Categories of financial instruments and their fair values

2011
Financiat Total
Loans and Held for  Avadable-for-sale assetsat carrying Falr
recervables trading secuntes amorirsed cost amount value
£m £m m tm £m £m
Financial assets:
Equity shares - - 175 - 175 17.5
Finance lease recevable 69 - - - 69 94
Mezzanine loan investments 90 17 - - 107 10.7
Other finanoial assets - - 50 - 50 5.0
Trade and other recewvables 678 - - 821 1499 1499
Income tax recewable - - - 120 120 12.0
Cash and cash equivalents - - - 2375 2375 237.5
Total financial assets 837 17 225 3316 439.5 4420
Financial Total
latahities at camnng Fair
amortised cost amount value
€m £m £m
Financia! iabihties:
Overdraft ©on {01 01
Fixed rate loans
Sterling secured mortgage 2034 (50 0) (50.0) (80 8)
Sterting secured bend 2026 (202 1} (202.1) (233.0)
Sterling unsecured bond 2031 929 929) (84.6)
sterling unsecured bond 2041 (300 (30.0) {27.4)
Sterhng unsecured bond 2019 (52 5) (52 5) (65 5)
sterling fixed rate 27 @n 27
us Dollars 491) (49.1) (529)
Canadian Dollars (383 (38.3) (43.0)
Total fixed rate loans (517 6) (517 6) (589.9)
Floating rate loans
Sterling 54 54} (54)
US Dollars (879) (87.9) (879}
Canadhan Dollars 24 (2.4) (2 4)
Hong Kong Dollars 65 (69) (6.5)
Japanese Yen 132 (132 (13.2
Euros (65 4) (65.4) (65 4)
Austrahian Dollars 633) (63.3) (633)
Total floating rate loans (234 1) (244.1) (244.1)
Finance lease babilities (14 14 1.4)
Loans from non-controfling mterests n subsidianes (1 4) a4} a4
Preference shares (29 8) (29.8) (29 8)
income tax payable (157 as7 (15.7}
Trade and other payables 790 (791) {79.1)
Total financial iabilities (889 2) (889.2) {961.5)
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30 Finaneaal instruments continued

2011
Total
Hekd for camng Far
irading amount value
im £m £m
Dervatives
Interest rate swaps
us Dollars 70 7.1 (7.1)
Japanese Yen on (0.1 {0.3)
Euwros 0e6) {0.6) (0.6)
Australian Dollars 12} (1.2) (L.2)
Total interest rate swaps 90) (90) (90)
Currency swaps
Us Dollars 22) (2.2} (2.2)
Hong Kong Dollars 05) 0.5 (0.5)
Japanese Yen {10} (L.0) (1.0}
Chinese Renminbi/US Dollars 19 19 (1.9}
Euros 41 41 41
Australian Dollars (06} (06) (0.6}
Total currency swaps @21 2.1 2.1
Total derivatives {111} (111) a1y

Currency swaps are aganst Sterling unless stated otherwise

The table below prowides an analyss of financial instruments that are measured at fair value subsequent to initial recogrution, grouped according to the

degree to which the far value 15 derived from observable data

2011
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£m m £&m £m

Avallable-for-sale financial assets
Equity shares 46 12.9 - 17.5
Other 50 - - 50
Financial assets held for trading
Mezzanmine loan investments - - 17 17
Derivatives - 41 - 41
Total financial assets 96 17.0 17 28.3
Finanoal habilrtes held for trading
Derwvatives - (15.2) - (15.2)
Total financial habilitries - (15.2) - (15.2)

Level 1 fair values derived from quoted prices in active markets for identical assets/habilities
Level 2 fair values derived from observable inpuis other than quoted prices
Level 3 far values denved from valuauon techniques that include inputs that are not based on observable data

The fair values of financial assets and habilities are determined as follows

— Interest rate swaps are measured at the present value of future cash flows estmated and discounted based on the applicable yield curves derived

from quoted interest rates

~ The fair value of financial assets and hablities with standard terms and conditions and traded on active markets s determined with reference to

quoted market prices

— The fair value of other finangial assets and habsites 1s determuned 1n accordance with generally accepted pricoing models based on discounted cash

flow analysis using prices from observable current market transactions
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30 Financial instruments continued
2010
Financual Total
toans and Held for  Avaiable-for-sate assets at carrying Fatr
recewables trading secunties amortised cost amount value
£m im im &€m im &m
Financial assets.
Equity shares - - 266 - 266 266
Finance lease recevable 69 - - - 69 97
Mezzanine loan investments 40 o5 - - 45 45
Other finanaial assets - - 51 - 51 51
Trade and other recewvables 702 - - 734 1436 1436
Income tax receivable - - - 361 361 361
Cash and cash equivalents - - - 2694 2694 2694
Total financoial assets 811 0% 317 3789 4922 4950
Financial Total
liatibues at carrymg Fair
amortised cost amount value
£m m £m
Finanaial liabhities:
Overdraft on {(1B)] 01
Fixed rate loans
Sterling secured mortgage 2034 (500) (500) 657
Sterling secured bond 2026 202 2) (202 2) {188 5}
Sterling unsecured bond 2019 (52 5) (52 5) (55 5}
Ster{ing fixed rate 0?7 o7 07
US Dellars {324 (324) (34 0)
Canadian Dollars (398 (39 8) 419
Total fixed rate loans (3776) (3776) (386 3)
Floating rate loans
Sterling (590) {590) 590
US Dollars (52 4) (92 4) (92 4
Canadian Dollars {19 19 t9)
Hong Kong Dollars (181) (181 (81
Japanese Yen (123 (123 (123
Euros 69 4} (69 4) (69 4)
Australian Dollars (559 (559 (559)
Total floating rate loans (3090} (3090) (3090
Finance lease liabilities (14) {14) (VR3]
Loans from non-controiling interests in subsidiaries {09} ©9) o9
Preference shares (30 4) (304) (30 4)
tncome tax payable (124) (12 4) (12 4)
Trade and other payabtles {65 0} 650) 65 0)
Total financial habilsties (796 8) {796 8} (8055)
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30 Financaal instruments continued

2010
Total
Held for carryng Far
trading amount value
fm £m im
Dervatives
Interest rate swaps
us Dollars 38 (38} 38
Japanese Yen on o 01)
Chinese Renminbi 19 (19) 19
Euros (10) (10) (10)
Australian Dotlars 02 02 02
Total Interest rate swaps (66} 6 6) 66
Currency swaps
uS Dollars (2 4) (24) 29
Hong Kong Dollars 08} 08 (08)
Japanese Yen (50} (50) (50
Ctunese Renminbi/US Dollars 43) 43) @3
Euros 02) ©2 02
Total currency swaps (127) (127) (127
Total dervatives (193) (193) (193)

The table below provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured at fair value subsequent to iial recogniiion grouped according to the

degree to which the far value 15 derived from observable data

2010

Level ] tevel2 Level 3 Total
fm £m £m £&m

Avallahle-for-sale financial assets

Equity shares 62 204 - 266

Other 51 - - 51

Financial assets held for trading

Mezzanine lgan investments - - 05 05

Derivatives - 02 - gz

Taotal financial assets 113 206 05 324

Financial habilities held for trading

Dervatives - {195) - (195)

Total financial hatulities - (195} - (199)

Level 1 fair values derrved from quoted prices in active markets for identical assets/labilities
Level 2 fair values derived trom observable inputs other than quated prices
Level 3 fair values denved from valuation techniques that include inputs that are not based on observable data

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has a decentralised treasury management operating structure, co-ordinated through a Group treasury function which monitors and
manages the financial risks relating to the Group s operations and seeks to maximise the efficiency of borrowangs and cash deposits throughout
the Group Treasury policies approved by the Board are

— tomanage wholly owned treasury operaiions in a co-ordinated manner, debt for joint ventures and funds 1s raised at jomnt venture and fund
level but s managed within the co-ordinated approach

~ 10 enasure sufficient commutted loan faclines to support anticipated business requirements as they arise
— to ensure that the Group's debt can be supported from maintainable cash flow through clear internai guidelines

- 10 manage mieresi rate exposure with a combnation of fixed rate debt and interest raie swaps so that a minimum of 60% of borrewings
are at fixed interesi rates for the next three years,

~ not to hedge long-term net asset positions held in foreign currencies, and
— to invest short-term cash with approved institutions within imits agreed by the Board

Transactions in financial instrumenis including denvatives are erither governed by specific delegations 1o Operaung Company beards or have prior
Board approval The Group does not enter into any treasury positions for purely speculative purposes Detailed treasury reports are produced on
a monthly basis with consolidated treasury risk reports presented to the Shareholders and the Board Risks include market risk (interest rates
currency and pricing), credit nisk and hquidity nsk
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INTEREST RATE RISK

115

Exposure to interest rate movements s controlled through the use of a muxture of floaung and fixed rate debt ang interest rate dervatives, 10 achieve
a balanced interest rate profile to ensure that a minimum level of borrawings are at fixed interest rates for the nexi three years The interesk rate profile

15 reviewed by the Group on a monthly basis

The Group's exposure to interest rates on financial assets and tinancial habilities 1s analysed below

2011
Effecuve Floating Fed interest eate Hon
interest interest interest
rate rate « 1 year 1 5years > 5 years bearing Total
% tm £m m im im £m
Ftnancial assets:
Equity shares - - - - - 175 17.5
Finance lease receivables 133 - - - 69 - 69
Mezzanine {oan mvestments 92 - 15 75 - 17 10.7
Other financial assets 81 50 - - - - 50
Trade and other recevables 43 367 286 - - 846 1499
Income tax receivable - - - - - 120 120
Cash and cash equivalents 11 1960 380 - - 35 2375
Total financial assets 2377 681 75 69 193 4395
Financial habilities
Bank overdrafts 06 (on - - - - o1
Fixed rate loans
Sterling secured mortgage 2034 104 - - - (500) - (500
Sterhng secured bond 2026 65 - - - (202 1) - (202 1)
Sterling unsecured bond 2041 61 - - - (300 - (300)
Sterling unsecured bond 2031 56 - - - 929 - (929)
Sterhing unsecured bond 2019 84 - - - (525) - (525)
Sterling fixed rate 60 - - 27 - - @27
US Dollars 93 - (05) (316) (17 0) - (49.1)
Canadian Dellars 61 - {10) (14 4) 229) - (38.3}
Total fixed rate loans - 1s 487 (467 4) - (517.6}
Floaung rate loans fixed through interest rate swaps
Us Dollars 28 - 02 (54 6) 62) - (60.6)
{apanese Yen 31 - (133) - - - {13.3)
Euro 21 - - (199) - - (199)
Austrahan Dollars 58 - - (64 5) - - (64 5)
Total floating rate loans fixed
through mnterest rate swaps - {131 (1390 62 - (158 3)
Floating rate loans
Sterling Hoating rate 32 59 (5.9)
US Dotlars floaung rate 31 (344) (34 4)
Canadran Dollars floating rate 40 24) Q4
Hong Kong Dollars floatmg rate 21 65 (6.5)
Euro floating rate 36 461 (46 1)
Total floating rate loans (94 8 (94.8)
Currency swaps - - - - - @n 21)
Finance lease labiities 127 - - - (14 - 14
Loans from non-controlling interests
In substdiaries 60 - - 08 06 - 14)
Preference Shares 15 (29 8) - - - - 29.8)
Income tax payable - - - - - (157) (5.7
Trade and other payables - - - - - (791 (79.1)
Total financial habilities (124 7} (14 6) (188 5) (475 6} 969) (900.3)

The total average cost of debt for the year ended 31 December 2011 was 6 0% (2010 5 59%)
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30 Financial instruments continued
2010

Effective Floating Fixed interest rate Non-
nterest Interest wnterest
rate rate <1 year 1 Hyears »5years beanng Total
% £m £m £m m im im
Financial assets:
Equity shares - - - - - 266 266
Finance lease receivables 126 - - - 69 - 69
Mezzanine loan invesiments 90 - - 40 - 05 45
Other financial assets 63 51 - - - - 51
Trade and other recervables 44 337 128 - 181 790 143 6
Income tax receivable - - - - - 361 361
Cash and cash equivalents 12 2373 292 - - 29 269 4
Total inanoial assets 276 1 420 40 250 1451 492 2
Financial habilities
Bank overdrafts 05 0N - - - - ©on
Fixed rate loans
Sterhing secured mortgage 2034 104 - - - (50 0) - (50 0)
Sterling secured bond 2026 65 - - - (202 2) - (202 2)
Sterling unsecured bond 2019 84 - - - 52 5) - (529
sterling fixed rate 60 - - 7 - - 07
US Dollars 56 - 05 (16 (303) - (324)
Canadian Dollars 61 - ) (101) (28 8) - (398
Total fixed rate loans - (14) {i2 4) (3638) - (3776
Floating rate loans fixed through mterest rate swaps
s Dollars 61 - 57 03 (51 4) - (56 8)
Japanese Yen 31 - - (12 4) - - (12 4)
Chinese Renminbi 33 - - (19 - - 19
Eurgs 34 - - (403) - - (40 3)
Australian Dollars 58 - 200) 200 (102) - (50 2)
Total floating rate loans fixed
through snterest rate swaps - (257 (74 3) (61 6) - (161 6)
Floating rate loans
Sterling 09 (59 0} - - - - (59 0}
US Dollars 29 (394) - - - - (394}
Canadkan Dollars 40 (19) - - - - (19}
Hong Kong Dollars 14 WER)] - - - - (181
Euros 15 (301 - - - - (30D
Australian Dollars 48 (55) - - - - (5 5}
Total floating rate loans (154 O) - - - - (154 Q)
Currency swaps - - - - - {127) (127)
Finance lease liabiities - - - - (14) - {14)
Loans from nen-controlling interest in subsidiarias 60 - - - 09 - [(8}}]
Preference shares 17 (30 4) - - - - (304)
Income tax payable - - - - - (12 4) (12 4)
Trade and other payables - - - - - (650) 650)
Total financial habihties (184 9) 271) 867 (4277) (901) (816 1)
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30 Financial instruments continued

INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY
The sensitivity analysis below 1s based on the exposure [0 Interest rates at the balance sheet date For floating rate habiltties and cash balances
it s assumed the labibity or asset at the balance sheet date was outstanding for the whole year

If interest rates had been Q 5% higher and all other vaniables were held constant the impact on the Group’s equity would be

2011 2010
£m £m
Increase/f(decrease) in results for the year — interest charge 07 02
— mark to market of interest rate swaps 25 21
- tax charge 09) 0 6)
Total increase i profit and equity 2.3 17

Similarly if interest rates had been 0 5% lower then Group profit and equity would have increased by £2 3m (2010 £1 7m) The Group s sensitivity
to interest rates has decreased during the year mamly due to lower levels of cash deposits

As part of the Group's terest rate nisk management, interest rate swaps exchanging floating for fixed interest with a notional princrpal of £2879m
(2010 £336 2m) and a fair value hiability of £14 4m {2010 £13 9m) were designated for cashflow hedge accounting at 31 Decernber 2011
These hedges were highly effective during the year

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Investments outside Britain & Ireland are held for the long term, 50 1t 15 the Group s pohicy not to hedge the net investment in these regons
Within each region there 1s a certain amount of natural currency hedging as debt 1s drawn in ocal currency to finance local operations
Short-term cash flows between currencies are hedged by the use of foreign exchange derivatives

At the end of the year, other than that arising on its equity in non-UK Operating Companies, the Group has no materia! foreign exchange
currency risk as there are no materra! finanaal instruments denominated in non-functional currenties

EQUITY PRICE RIS5K
The Group Is exposed to equity price risks ansing from its equity investments disclosed in Note 23 Equity nvestments designated as
available-for-sale are held for strategic rather than trading purposes

EQUITY PRICE SENSITIVITY
The sensitivity analysis below 1s based on the exposure to equity price risks at the balance sheet date

If equity prices had been 10% higher/lower other equity reserves would increase/decrease by £1 8m (2010 increase/decrease by £2 7m)
as a result of changes in fair value of avatlable-for-sale shares

The Group’s sensitivity to equity prices has not changed significantly from the prior year
CREDIT RISK

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will defauli on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group The Group
15 exposed to credit risk in respect of its surplus cash depaosits, trade recevables mezzanine loan investments and loans to joint ventures

surplus cash is deposited with major financial institutions and 1n meney market funds with credit ratings at or above a specified level
Limits are set to restrict the total amount of funds that can be deposited with any single counterparty

At the year end deposits were invested as follows

Standard & Poor’s credit rating of institution

Tota) deposits at 31 December

o1 2010

£m £m
AAA 52.1 508
AA+ - -
AA 05 976
AA- 109.2 672
A+ 323 256
A 58 232
A- 376 45
Qther - 05

2315 269 4
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30 Financial instruments continued

Trade recewvables consist of amounts due from a large number of tenants spread across diverse industries and geographical areas Credit checks

are carned out before commencement of tenancies and before entering joint venture partnership agreements and continuing credst evaluation seeks
to ensure any recervables are prowided for as required Trade receivables are small relauve to turnover and therefore do not present a significant risk
to the Group Trade recevables at the year end totalted £20 8m of which £3 Om was outstanding at 1 March 2012

Mezzamine loans represent loans to developers on which Grosvenor earns interest and a share of the development profit Grosvenor makes loans
to estabhished developers with a track record of stable performance and carries out due diligence before commetung funds In the majonty of loans
Grosvenor receives a second charge on the development property and has a guarantee regarding the principal and interest

The carrying amount of financial assets excluding equity investments, recorded in the financial statements, net of any allowances for losses,
represents the Group s maximum expasure 1o credit nisk on those financizl assets without taking account of the value of any collateral obtained

LIQUIDITY RISK

Grosvenor obtamns finanaing from a number of sources, including secured lending at project tevel together with secured and unsecured borrowing at
the corporate level To ensure sufficient cash is available to meet operating plans cash flow projections are maintained at Operating Company level
and are reviewed by the Group on a monthly basis In addition to facilities at Operating Company and project leve! committed borrowing facilities
are maintamed in the Holding Company at levels deemed appropriate by the Group Board

At 31 December 2011 the Group had the following drawn and undrawn committed borrowing faciiies avallable

Drawn facisties Undrawen facelities
2011 2010 2011 2010
&m £m £m &m
Expiring i less than one year 22.2 629 924 1087
Expiring from one to two years 1167 493 1977 846
Expiring from two to five years 185.5 256 6 386.2 4039
Expiring after more than five years 476.2 3549 51.3 -
Total 800.6 7237 727.6 5972

Borrowing limits are set for each Operating Company Each Operating Company and the Group produces on a monthly basis, 2 mediumn term cash
forecast under an expected and stressed scenario the latter designed to simulate an extreme financial and market crash The Operating Companies
and the Group seek to maintain sufficient hquidity to sustan such a crash for at lease two years

The Group also manitors its resifrence to potential {alls in property market values Resihence is defined in the glossary

The maturity profile of the antictpated future cash flows including interest, relating to the Group s non-derivative financial habihties on an undiscounted

hasis (which therefore differs from both carrying value and fair value) 1s as follows

2011

10ans from

Fixed Flpatng Fwance lease ngo-gonirotling
rate kpans rate loans habuties Mterests Other Total
£m fm £m &m £m £m
Due within one year 347 310 03 - 759 141.9
From one {0 two years 347 111 03 - 189 1650
£rom two to three years 420 a8 03 - - 61.1
from three to four years 739 1029 03 - - 177.1
From four to five years 321 134 03 08 - 46.6
After five years 8223 60 727 06 - 201.6
10397 2832 742 14 94 8 1,493.3

2010

Loans from

Fixed Floatng Fmance lease non-controfling
rate loans rate loars labdities INeresis Other Total
fm fm fm £m fm £m
Due within one year 269 523 03 - 770 565
From one to two years 269 405 03 - 04 681
from two to three years 269 1426 03 - - 169 8
From three to four years 345 153 02 - - 501
From four to five years 639 696 03 - - 1338
After tive years 5821 55 731 09 - 661 6

7612 3258 46 09 774 12399
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30 Finanecal instruments continued
The maturity profile of the Group s financial derivatives using undiscounied cash flows 15 as follows
201 2010
Payable Receivable Payable Receivabie
£m £m im &m
Due within one year (75) 33 60) 33
From one to two years (6.0) 24 49 26
From two to three years (5.0) 22 [EX:)] 25
From three to four years (4.4) 23 Z24) 23
Fram tour to five years (3.3) 18 an 11
After five years (10.2) 74 - -
(36.4) 194 178 118
31 Trade and other payables
Group
2011 2010
£m £m
Current labities
Trade payables 13.3 151
Payables due to joint ventures 0.2 -
Other payables 467 495
Accrued expenses 587 544
Deferred income 44 41
123.3 1231
Non-current liabilities
Payables due to joint ventures 18.8 -
Other payables 0.1 04
Deferred income 185 4 164 6
204.3 1650
Deferred income includes £187 3m In respect of deferred lease premivm profits (2010 £166 6m)
32 Provisions
Development loss provision
201 2010
£m £m
At1 January 35 106
Recognised in the year - 11
Utihised in the year (0.1} (82
At 31 December 34 35
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33 Operating lease commitments

LEASES AS LESSEE
The amount of lease rentals charged to the income statement during the year comprised
2011 2010
£m £m
Land and buildings 50 54
Non-cancellable operauing lease rentals are payable as follows
2011 2010
£m £m
Less than one year 61 61
Between one and five years 10.6 11
More than five years 1.1 14
178 186
LEASES AS LESSOR
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable leases are as follows
2011 210
£m £m
Less than one year 1056 1149
Between one and five years 2411 3472
More than five years 1,335.4 11389
1,682.1 160i 0
34 Capital commitments
2011 2010
fm 1)
Investment properties contracted but not provided 834 422
Development properties contracted but not provided 1203 1609
2037 2031

Included in the above 1s Grosvenor s share of joint venture and associate capital commitments of £58 3m (2010 £138 4m)

35 Contingent habilities

In connection with the demerger of Wheatsheaf Investments Limited (formerly Deva Group Limited) in 1999 the Company has provided guarantees

up to a maximum of £8 8m (2010 £13 2m)

Certain Group companies have given performance undertakings o third-parties in respect of various contractual gbligations entered nto in the

ordinary course of business
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36 Share capital
2011 2010
Mumber Number

of shares £m of shares £m
Allocated called up and fully pasd
Ordinary Shares of £1 5,684,877 57 5 684,877 57
Non-Veting Ordinary Shares of £1 45,479,016 455 45 479 016 455
A Preference Shares of £1 5,684,877 57 5,684,877 57
B’ Preference Shares of £1 82,089,624 82.1 108 012 663 1080

138,938,394 139.0 164 861 433 1649

RIGHTS OF CLASSES OF SHARES

Profits determined by the Directors as available for distnbution are to be applied nirst in paying a fixed non-cumulative dividend of 129 per
annum on the amounts patd up on the A Preference Shares, secondly in paying a floating coupon on the amounts paid up or deemed paid up
onthe C Preference Shares The balance of profits available for distribution are payable (o the holders of the ordinary shares and non-voting
ordinary shares in praportion to the amounts paid up on their shares Holders of the B’ Preference Shares are not entitled to a distribution of
profits No ‘'C Preterence Shares have been isued

0On a return of the Company s assets 10 Shareholders the assets are to be apphed first in repaying to the holders of the A Preferences Shares

the amounts paid up on their shares, secondly repaying to the holders of the ‘B Preference Shares the amounts paid up on their shares and thirdly
repaying the holders of the ‘C Preference Shares the amounts paid up or deemed paid up on thew shares The balance of the assets Is payable

to the holders of the ordinary shares and non-voting ordinary shares i proportion to the amounts paid up on thesr shares up to an amount

of £10bn Thereafter the balance of assets 1s payable to the holders of the ‘B Preference Shares, € Preference Shares, ordinary shares and
non-voting ordinary shares tn proportion to the amounts paid up on their shares

Holders of the 'B Preference Shares and non-voting ordinary shares are not entitled to vote at general meetings of the members of the Company
except on resolutions varying or abrogating any of the special nights or privileges attaching to their shares

37 Reconciliation of share capital and reserves

{a) Group
Farr Non-
Share Share Transtation Othes value  Revaluation Retained controfiing Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve earmngs Total interest equity
fm fm fm &m fm tm £m fm fm £m
At 1January 2010 2785 283 3160 {121) (154) 70 17845 23868 1565 2,5433
Profit far the year - - - - - - 7 3117 51 316 8
Revaluation movement - - - - - 36 - 36 - 3.6
Fair value adjustments - - - 23 15 - - 3.8 09 3.3
Deferred tax - - - - on 9 @n “@n - (4.1)
Pension actuanal losses - - - - - - Co) (0.6) - (0.6)
Dividends - - - - - - (116 (11.6) (09 {12.5)
Non-controlling shares issued
by subsidianes - - - - - - - - 24 24
Non-controlling shares acquired
by subsidiaries - - - - - - - - (324) (32 4)
Transfer between reserves - - 07 01 - - 26 34 (34) -
Redemption of Preference Shares (113 6) - - 1136 - - 11360 (113 6) - (113.6)
Exchange - - 699 - - - - 699 02 697
At 31 December 2010 1649 283 3866 1039 (14 0) 97 19699 26493 1266 2,77159
Profit for the year - - - - - - 2508 2508 (49) 2459
Revaluation movement - - - - - 38 - 38 - 38
Farr value adjestments - - - 03 3n - - {40) 02 4.2}
Deferred tax - - - 04) ©n (08 08 1) - any
Pension actuaral losses - - - - - - (12 4) (124 - (12 4}
Dividends - - - - - - - - 62 62)
Non-controlling shares issued
by subsidiaries - - - - - - - - 03 03
Non-contro!ling shares acquired
by subsidiaries - - - - - - - - (16} (1.6)
Redemption of Preference Shares (259 - - 259 - - (259) (25.9) - (259)
Exchange - - 07 - - - - (0.7} {50) (57
Other movements 0 joint ventures - - - - - - (45) {4 5) 12) (57)
At 31 December 2011 1390 283 3859 1291 (18 4) 127 21787 2,855.3 1078 29631

Other reserves comprise net interest rate hedging tosses of £14 4m and capital redemption reserve of £143 5m
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37 Reconcihation of share capital and reserves continued

(b) Company
Merger Capstat
Share Sharg capital redemption Retamned Total
capual premium reserve reserve earnmngs equity
m £m fm £m &m £m
At1January 2010 2785 283 10470 40 3050 1,662.8
Retained profit for the year - - - - 211 211
Dwidends to Shareholders - - - - (116) (11.6}
Redemption of Preference Shares (113 6) - - 1136 (113 6) (113.6)
At 31 December 2010 1649 283 L0470 1176 2009 1,558 7
Redemption of Preference Shares (259 - - 259 (259) (25 9)
At 31 December 2011 1390 283 10470 1435 1750 1,532.8

38 Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows

(a) Reconaibiation of profit from eperatsons including share of profit from joint ventures to operating profit before changes in working capital

and provisions

2011 2010
£m £m
Operating activities
Profit from operations including share of profit from jein: ventures 366.9 4304
Adjustments for
Depreciation 23 24
Amortisation of capitalised lease incentives 1.4 24
amortisation of deferred lease premiums (2 6) 19
Recogmtion of income from operating lease incentives 03 22
Net losses on ather investments 71 15
Net gains on revaluation and sale of investment property (324 4) {292 4)
Share of profit of joint ventures (25 0) (103 7)
Impairment of goodwill 0.7 -
Forergn exchange 30 -
Uphft on trading properties completed and transferred 1o investment property o1 (02
Operating profit before changes in working capital and provisions 29.6 363
(b) Analysis of net debt
Other
1 k2nuary ron-Cash Exchange 31 Decembey
201 Cash Tow MOvemens movements 01
£m im m im 11
Cash at bank and in hand 1148 (44 4) - 10 694
Short-term deposits and short-term hqwd investments 154 6 108 - 27 168.1
Bank averdraft on - - - (0.1)
Cash and cash equivalents 2693 (336 - 17 237.4
Borrowings due within one year (124 8) 996 32 02 (28.6)
Borrowings due after more than one year (613 8) (175 3} ns 05 (776.8)
Total borrowings (738 6) (757) 86 03 (805.4)
Net debt (469 3) (109 3) 86 20 568.0

Other non-cash movements include net farr value adjustments on mterest rate and currency swaps
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39 Related party transactions
Grosvenor Group Limited 15 wholly owned by Trusts and members of the Grosvenor Family headed by the 6th Duke of Westrminster During 2011 the
Group entered nto the followmng transactions with the Grosvenor Trusts and members of the Grosvenor Family
2011 2010
£m £m
Rent and service charge income 0.3 [s]]
Rent and service charge expenses (1.0) (09
Development management fees 08 06
Management and administration fees 148 130
During 2011 the Group entered into the following transactions with other related parties
2011 2010
£m £m
Development and asset management fees received from joint ventures 28 2 342
Other fees receved from joint ventures 29 22
Other fees paid to |oint ventures ()]} -
Insurance premiums payable to a related company 48 54
At the end of the year the following amounts were due from/{ta) related parties
2011 2010
£m m
Grosvenor Trusts - (4]
Amounts due from joint ventures 69.9 710
Amounts due to joint ventures (1 4) 9
Amounts due to a related company (19.1) (55)

As explained in Note 35 the Company has provided guarantees up to a maximum of £8 8m to Wheatsheaf Investments Limited, which 1s owned

by the Grosvenor Trusts

Total compensation paid to key management personnel during the year was £71m (2010 £5 5m) including shori-term benefits of £3 9m (2010 £4 5m)
post employment benefits of £0 2m (2010 £0 3m) long-term employee benefits of £1 4m (2010 £1 1m) and compensation for loss of office of £1 6m

{2010 £nid)
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Consolidated income statement presented in US Dollars

for the year ended 31 December 2011

201 2010
usgm ustm
Total revenue 311.6 3322
Gross rental income 2026 1776
Property cutgoings (639) (63 6}
Net rental income 138 7 1140
Other income 650 835
Administrative expenses (143 4) (133 4)
Net losses on trading properties (20.0) 88
Net losses on other investments (3) 23
Net gains on revatuation and sale of investment property 517.9 452 4
Impairment of goodwill an -
Share of profit of jomt ventures 40.0 1604
Gain from operations including share of joint ventures 5858 6658
Drvidend income 02 a6
Financial income 14.5 156
Fmancial expenses 797 (733)
Fair value adjustments (179) 20
Net financing costs (829) 551)
Profit before tax 5029 6107
Current tax expense (23 5) 23
Deferred tax expense {86 B) (118 4)
Profit for the year 392.6 4900
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 400 4 482 2
Non-controlling interest (7 8) 78
Profit for the year 3926 4900

The above staternent, prepared under IFRS accounting standards, 1s translated at the average exchange rate for the relevant year
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Accounts Consohidated balance sheet presented 1n US Dollars 125
as at 31 December 2011
Group
20n 2010
ussm ustm
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investment property 4,371 2 3954 8
Other property, plant and equipment 63.1 557
Investments in jont ventures 1,670 3 16648
Other hnancial assets 57.3 667
Intangible assets 64 77
Deferred tax assets 1607 1627
Total non-current assets 6,3290 59124
Current assets
Trading properties 3811 2172
Trade and other recevables 246.4 2457
Other financial assets 50 08
Income tax recevable 186 565
Cash and cash equivalents 3691 4218
Total cusrent assets 1,020 2 9420
TOTAL ASSETS 7,3492 6,854 4
LIABILITIES
Non-current habihittes
Interest-beanng loans and borrowings (1,207 2} (961 0)
Trade and other payables (317.5) (258 4)
Employee benefits (572.8) (531)
Deferred tax liabilities (895 8) (8175)
Total non-current liabilities (2,478 3) {20950}
Current habilities
Qverdrafts 0.2) ©2
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (44.4) {195 4)
Trade and other payables (191 6) (1927)
Income tax payable (24 4) (194)
Provisions (53) (55
Total current habilities (2659) (413 2)
TOTAL LIABILITIES (2,744 2) (2508 2)
NET ASSETS 4,6050 43462
Equity
Issued capital 216.0 258 2
Share premium 440 443
Reserves 7915 7612
Retained earnings 3,386 0 30843
Shareholders’ funds 4,437.5 41480
Non-controlling interest 167.5 198 2
TOTAL EQUITY 4,605 0 4,346 2

The above statement prepared under IFRS accounting standards 15 translated at the closing exchange rate for the refevant year
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126 Accounts Consohdated income statement presented in Euros -

Consolidated income statement presented in Euros

for the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 00
n €m
Total revenue 2248 2494
Gross rental income 146 2 1333
Property outgeings (a6.1} @7mn
Net rental iIncome 1001 856
Other sncome 46.9 627
Administrative expenses (103.4) (100 1)
Net losses on trading properties (14 4) 66}
Net losses on other nvestments (8.2) a7
Net gains on revatuation and sale of investment property 373.6 3396
Impairment of goodwill {0 8) -
Share of profit of jomt ventures 288 1204
Gain from operattons including share of jomnt ventures 422.6 4999
Dividend income 0.1 05
Financial income 10.5 17
Financial expenses (57.5) (55 1)
Farr value adustments (12.9) 15
Net financing costs (59.8) (41 4)
Profit before tax 3628 4585
Current tax expense (16.9) 17)
Deferred tax expense (62.7) (88 8)
Profit for the year 283.2 3680
Attnibutable to
Equity holders of the parent 288.8 3621
Non-controlling interest (5 6) 59
Profit for the year 283.2 3680

The abave statement, prepared under IFRS accounting standards, is translated at the average exchange rate for the relevant year
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Accounts Consohdated balance sheet presented in Euros 127
Consolidated balance sheet presented in Euros
as at 31 December 2011
Group
2011 2010
€m m

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investment property 3,367.4 29480
Other property plant and equipment 43 6 415
Investments In joint ventures 1,286.8 12410
Other tinancial assets a4.2 497
Intangible assets 49 57
Deferred tax assets 1238 1213
Total non—current assets 48757 44072
Current assets
Trading properties 293.6 1619
Trade and other recevables 1897 1831
Other financial assets 38 06
Income tax recewvable 14.4 421
Cash and cash equivalents 28413 3144
Total current assets 7858 7021
TOTAL ASSETS 5,661.5 51093
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabibities
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings {930.0) (716 4)
Trade and other payables (244.6) (192 6)
Employee benefits {44.5) {43 3)
Deferred tax habilities 6901) (609 3}
Total non-current hiabilrties (1,909 2) (1561 6)
Current habilities
Overdrafts ©on on
Interest-bearng loans and borrowings {(342) (1457)
Trade and other payables (147 6) {143 &)
Income tax payable (189) (14 5)
Provisions 41) 41
Total current hahilities (204 9) (308 0)
TOTAL LIABILITIES (2,114.1} (18696)
NET ASSETS 3,5474 32397
Equity
Issued capital 166 4 1925
Share premium 339 330
Reserves 6098 5674
Retained earnings 2,608 2 22991
Shareholders’ funds 3,418.3 3,0920
Non-controlling interest 129.1 1477
TOTAL EQUITY 35474 3,2397

The above statement, prepared under IFRS accounting standards s transiated at the closing exchange rate for the relevant year
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128 Accounts Five-year summary

Five-year summary

Income statement

2007 2008 2009 2010 201

im £m £m £m £m

Net rental and other income 1071 1053 1225 1277 127.6
Administrative expenses 815) @27 (84 5) (86 2) (89.8)
Net losses on trading properties (354) (106 6) {14} 57 (12.5)
Net gamns/(lasses) on other investments 126 (120} {12 8} (15) (71)

Net gains/(losses) on revaluation and sale of investment properties 4139 2677) 876) 292 4 324.4
Impairment of goodwill - - - - (07)

Share of profit/loss) from jont ventures 1200 (2097} (134 4} 1037 250

Profit/(loss) before net financing costs and tax 5367 (573 4) {198 2) 430 4 3669
Net financing costs (127 (20 5) (376} (356) {51.9)

Profit/(loss) before tax 5240 (5939) (235 8) 3948 315.0

Balance sheet

2007 2008 2009 2010 01

fm im £m £m £m

Total property assets including share of joint ventures 5963 3 61728 52219 54600 5,839.6

Investment property 29216 27858 22791 2,5259 2,812.7

Investment in joint ventures 11560 10933 8596 10633 1,074.8

Other financial assets 554 466 387 426 369

Other non-current assets 1246 1338 1334 144 4 148.1

42576 40595 33108 37762 4,072.5

Trading properties 1471 164 2 1423 1387 245 2

Cash and cash equivalenis 3236 915 5052 2694 237.5

Other net current {(hiabilities)/assets @87 577 (22 3) 545 313

4420 3134 625 2 462 6 514 0
Borrowings (including current) (671 4) (7859) (775 4) (7387 {805.5)
Deferred tax (604 4) (519 3) (431 5) (522 1) (576 4)
Other non-current liabilities {360 3) (231 2) (185 8} (202 1) (241.5)
(16361) (15364) (13927 (14629) {1,623.4)

Net assets 30635 2,8365 25433 27759 2,963.1

Share capital and share premium 2299 2299 3068 1932 167.3

Reserves 26585 24204 20800 24561 2,688 0

2,888 4 2,6503 23868 26493 2,855 3

Non-controling interest 1751 1862 156 5 126 6 107.8

Total equity 30635 28365 25433 27759 29611
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Glossary

Area
All frgures grven are for the gross area

Assets under management

The total investmeni in property assets
managed by the Group including the future
cosis of commutted developments.

Co-fnvestment
Where Grosvenor invests equity 1n joint venture
or fund vehicles alongside third-parties

Condomumium

A torm of real praperty where a specified part

of real estate (usually a mult-famity property) s
ndividually owned while use of and access to common
facieies are controtted by an assoCiation of owners.

Core*
A fund which 1s considered to be a low-risk fund
that invests in stabirsed income-producing assets.

Core plus*
A fund that invests in a core-style asset but adopts
a more aggressive management style

currency

Financal informasion s presersed 1n Sterlng. with

the exception of the Propnetary assets — diredt reports
on pages 20-71 where 1L 1s presented in the principal
currency of the respective Operating Company

Development exposure ratio

Grosvenor s share of development properties including
its share of the future development commitment. as a
percentage of propefty assets including the future
development comamitment.

Development pipeline

The development programme including proposed
projects that are nat yet committed but are likely
to proceed

Developmert property
A properly that 1s being developed for future use
as an mvestment property

Economic property interest
Grosvenor s equity Interest in properties (or debt) after
deducting the share attnbutable 1o minonty investors.

Estimated rental value (ERY)

The estimated market rental value of the totat letiable
space n 4 praperty calculated by the Groups valuers
This will usually be thiferent from the rent being paid

Finance lease
A lease that transfers substantsally all the nsks and
rewards of ownership from the tessar to the lessee

Grotnd-rented

Property where the freeholder grants a long lease

to the tenant usually sn exchange for an up-front
premaurn (for the major part of the value) and a lower
ground rent payment for the duration of the lease

Group
Grosvenor Group Limited and its subsidiary
undertakngs

Prefet
A lease signed with a tenant prios to the completion
of a devetopment.

Property assets

Investrents in propesty and property-related
Instruments — Compases Investment properties.
development properties. trAJINg properties. mezzanme
loans and equity Imvestments in property companies

Head lease
The lease for an invesiment property unger which
the Group 15 a lessee

Property derivative
Financaal nstruments whose price 1s derrved
by reference to a property feturns index.

Holding Company
Grosvenor Group bimited

IFRS
Internatienal Finanaial Reporting Standard(s)

Indlrect Investments
Propfetary Investments managed by Grosvenor
Fund Management or third party managers.

Interest rate swap

A contractual agreement with a counterparty
{usually a bank) to exchange an interest oblgation for
an afternative intesest ebliganon for a predetermined
period of tme (usually used to convert Hoating rate
sneerest obligauon to fixed rate obliganons)

Investment property
A property that 15 held for the purposes of earning
rental income of for capiial appreciation or both

Jont venture
An entity in which the Group invests and which  jointly
controls with the other investors

London estate

Grosvenor s portfolio of office retail and residentizl
properties in the Mayfair and Belgrawia areas of
Londons west End

Mark to market adjustment
An accounting adjustment to adjust the book
value of an asset or Lability to its market value

Market value

Market value 15 the amouni for winich an interest in

an asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable
willing parties in an arm s length transaction For
nvestment properties 1t s determined by independent
external valuers

Mezzaning lending

Lending lo property developers that is subordinated
to senior lending in return for 2 profit share in the
completed development

Finanoal @pacity
Wholly-owned unrestricted cash and undrawn
committed facilives.

Occupancy rate
Ocrupancy rates given i the Review section are the
average occupancy by floor area for the refevant year

Funds under management Operating Companies

The total value of properties managed by Grosvenor Grosvenor s regicral iInvestment and development
Future develapment commitment b 5 and Grosvenar Fund Management

The expected costs to complete the development Passing rent

programme to which we are commitied

Gearing

Total short- and long-term borrowings including
bank overdrafts less cash and cash deposits as
a percemage of Shareholders funds.

Gross rental intome
Tota! income from rents of the Groun's propertes.

GrOSVEnor:
A property or other investmen that 15 managed
by the Group

*Defintions abbrewiated from defimtions used by
INREV (the European Associaton for Investors in
Non-Iisted Real Esiate Vebuctes)

The annuat rental income recemvable which may
be more or less than the ERY

Performance fees

Fees that are payable in the event that the
performance of the undertying smvestment
exceeds a predetermined benchmark.

Proportional
The total of the Group s wholly-owned and ks share
of jointly-owned property assets or net debt

Proprietary

Relating 1o Grosvenor s share of investments in
property assets. Proprietary assets are direct or
Indirect, see structure diagram on page 3.

Rack-rented
Referning (o property that is rented out at full
market rent

Resilience

The extent to which market values of property assets.
on a propurtonal basis can fall before Group financial
covenants are breached

Revenue profit

Profit before tax exduding profits on the sale of
IVeStMENd proper ties, gains or 1055es on other
NON-CurTent Mvestments, revaluation movements,
major refurbishment costs and derwvatve far
value adjustments. See also Note 4 1o the
finanual statements

Reversionary yield

The anticipated yield to which running yeeld will nse
{0 fall) once the rent reaches ERv- calculated a5 ERV
as a percentage of the value of investment properties

Running yield
Passing rent as a percentage of the value of
Investment propertes.

Separata acoount chent
A private real estate portfolio managed by Grosvenor
Fund Management on behalf of a third-party

Third-party
The non-Grasvenor share of investmenis
managed by Grosvenor

Total return

Total returm on property assets Is revenue

profit befose financial expenses but after major
refurtwshments, plusthe net gain on revaluation and
sale of mvestment properties and other investments
and including fair value adjustments and exchange
movements recogrused In reserves, as a parcentage
of average property assets {before current year
revaluations) and cash Jomt ventures and associates
are treated proportionally for the purposes of

this calculation.

Trading propesty

Property held a5 a current asset n the batarke
sheet that 1s being developed with a view o
subsequent resale

welghted average cost of capita)

The wesglited average cost of debt and the
notional cost of equity Used as a benchmark
for total refurn performance




